
 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 
 

COMMISSION MEETING 
MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 
COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

TOWN HALL 
 

Thursday, May 9, 2024 
1:30 p.m. 

 
Remote Option 

To join by video and see any screen sharing, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” below. You 
do not need to have Microsoft Teams for the link to work.  

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting  
Meeting ID: 266 407 809 124  
Passcode: uX5uTC  

 
To participate by phone, use the conference call information below.  

+1 614-362-3056 United States, Columbus  
(888) 596-2819 United States (Toll-free)  
Find a local number  
Phone conference ID: 301 397 045#  

 
AGENDA 

 
1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 2. Welcome and Introductions – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of 

Dublin, MORPC Chair 
 

• Recognition of Guests and New Members – Eileen Leuby, 
MORPC Membership Services Officer 

 
 3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTcwY2MxZTAtZGJjZC00MWZiLWEzYTMtMDE1NTUxNGViZDM1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22d225c0aa-f4a0-4925-bc81-eaff87943970%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2290194b29-9096-438a-9d8e-b061540a6761%22%7d
tel:+16143623056,,301397045
tel:8885962819,,301397045
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/9eeccbc9-763c-4f46-acbe-13012739f1b2?id=301397045


 

 

Commission Agenda 
May 9, 2024  
Page 2 

• Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, MORPC 
Membership Services Officer 

 
 Committees 

 
 4. Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Chris Amorose Groomes 

(City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 a. Call to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC 
Chair 

 
 b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report – Parag Agrawal, 

MORPC Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of 
Programming 

 
 c. Proposed Resolution T-3-24: “Adoption of the 2024-2050 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan” – Nick Gill, Transportation 
Study Director 

 
 d. Complete Streets & MORPC-Attributable Funds – Parag 

Agrawal, MORPC Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior 
Director of Programming 
 
1) Proposed Resolution T-4-24: “Adopting MORPC Complete 

Streets Policy” 
2) Proposed Resolution T-5-24: “Adopting Policies for 

Managing MORPC-Attributable Funds” 
 

 e. Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda 
 

1) Approval of April 11, 2024 Transportation Policy Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

2) Proposed Resolution T-6-24: “Acceptance of the MORPC 
Fiscal Year 2025 Planning Work Program” 

3) Proposed Resolution T-7-24: “Certification of the MORPC 
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process” 

 
 f. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Chris 

Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 5. Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization – Parag Agrawal, MORPC 
Chief Mobility & Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of Programming 
 

 6. Regional Policy Roundtable – Lourdes Barroso de Padilla (City of 
Columbus), Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 



 

 

Commission Agenda 
May 9, 2024  
Page 3 

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and 
Joseph Garrity, MORPC Senior Director of Government Affairs & 
Community Relations 

 
 7. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Laurie Jadwin (City of 

Gahanna), Sustainability Advisory Committee Vice Chair 
 

 8. Commission Consent Agenda 
 

a. Approval of April 11, 2024 Commission Meeting Minutes 
b. Proposed Resolution 07-24: “Authorizing the executive director 

to file applications with, execute agreements with, and receive 
funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Ohio 
Department of Transportation” 

c. Approval of Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 
 

 9. Other Business 
 

2:45 p.m. 10. Adjourn – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
 

 
PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org 

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, June 13, 2024, 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
PARKING AND TRANSIT: When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a 
MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with a yellow “M”. Handicapped parking is available 
at the side of MORPC’s building. On Commission meeting days only, additional parking is 
available in numbered spaces toward the west end of the parking lot. Electric vehicle charging 
stations are available for MORPC guests.  
 
Indoor bike parking is available for MORPC guests. 
 
MORPC is accessible by COTA BUS. The closest bus stop to MORPC southbound is High 
Street & W. Blenkner Street. Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 5th 
Ave./Refugee, and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. The closest stop to MORPC northbound is 
High Street & E. Hoster Street. Buses that accommodate this stop are the 5 - West 
5th Avenue/Refugee and the 8 - Karl/S. High/Parsons. Accessible from the Courthouse stop by 
a quick walk are COTA lines 1, 2, 4, and CMAX. 
 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


1 
 

 

 
MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

April 2024 

 
Senior Directors 

Parag Agrawal pagrawal@morpc.org  
Dave Dixon ddixon@morpc.org  
Joe Garrity jgarrity@morpc.org 
Shawn Hufstedler shufstedler@morpc.org 

Níel M. Jurist njurist@morpc.org 
Brandi Whetstone bwhetstone@morpc.org  
Robert Williams rwilliams@morpc.org 

 
 

CREATE AN ENVIRONMENT FOR PROSPERITY 
 

Regional Water Study 
In response to strong population and economic growth, the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 
together with other state agencies and MORPC, kicked off a Regional Water Study for the 15-county Central 
Ohio area. MORPC hosted the April 24 kick-off webinar. Speakers from Ohio EPA, ODNR and MORPC 
provided an overview of the workplan, timeline, and next steps. Contact Dr. Edwina Teye, eteye@morpc.org,  
to be included on the invitation list for future webinars. 
 
Ohio EPA Water Resources Planning 
MORPC concluded the current contract with Ohio EPA and submitted available data addressing facility 
planning boundaries for sewer service, areas of interest where there are overlapping boundaries, current 
wastewater and future treatment options, and the responsible management agencies documented for 
wastewater collection and management in the ten-county region. Team Members anticipate continuation of 
this work in the summer pending a new scope of work and contract with Ohio EPA. In the meantime, we 
encourage ongoing discussions and collaboration across jurisdictions where there are overlaps in facility 
planning areas. Contact Dr. Edwina Teye, eteye@morpc.org, for more information. 
 
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion 
MORPC hosted COMTO Columbus on April 17 for their monthly membership meeting. This year, COMTO 
Columbus is celebrating 10 years and is recognizing this milestone anniversary with several significant 
events, including their annual scholarship luncheon. 
 
Team Members attended the Annual ODOT Transportation Civil Rights Symposium on April 9. This year’s 
theme was “Moving Forward Beyond What is Now: Fostering Accessibility, Equality, and Inclusion.” Parag 
Agrawal served as a panelist and Maria Schaper served as moderator. 
 
MORPC participated in the 2024 My Brother's Keeper (MBK) and Commission on Black Girls (COBG), 
College, Career & Community Fair on April 13. MBK and COBG are two key City of Columbus initiatives that 
provide programming to support the advancement of minority youth & young adults. The event, in 
partnership with the Classic for Columbus (presented by the Franklin County Commissioners), provided an 
opportunity for the community to meet and talk with MORPC Team Members about our key initiatives and 
programs. 
 
Leaders Listen Survey 
The Leaders Listen Survey focusing on Housing concluded March 22. Preliminary survey results were 
covered by local news media adding new insights on area residents’ housing experiences. Team Members 
are developing an Actional Insights report with an expected release date during second quarter 2024. 
 
Gohio Commute 
MORPC and the Mobility Coalition are planning a May 17 bike to work event. 
 
MORPC welcomed a new Huber Heights to Whitehall vanpool. The vanpool is a part of the ongoing support 
being provided to Defense Logistics Agency’s return to the workplace. 
 

mailto:pagrawal@morpc.org
mailto:ddixon@morpc.org
mailto:jgarrity@morpc.org
mailto:shufstedler@morpc.org
mailto:njurist@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetstone@morpc.org
mailto:rwilliams@morpc.org
mailto:eteye@morpc.org
mailto:eteye@morpc.org


2 
 

The Make Your Miles Matter Spring Challenge is underway. The quarterly challenge offers commuters who 
sustainably travel to work a chance to win gift cards. 
 
Gohio ran a marketing campaign on social media focused on vanpooling and carpooling to increase program 
awareness. 
 
Active Transportation Planning 
The next Active Transportation Committee meeting is May 22, 10 a.m.-Noon. 
 
MORPC participated in the City of Columbus Department of Public Service E. Broad Street Bicycle Facility 
Pop Up event on April 10. The event included testing a temporary two-way separated bike facility on E. 
Broad Street between Franklin Park West and the entrance to Wolfe Park. The event was an opportunity for 
staff and community members to help evaluate barriers and bike facility types and provide feedback. It was 
held in advance of a quick-build project for protected bike lanes that will be installed later this year. 
Columbus was recently awarded a $1.38 million Safe Streets and Roads for All federal grant to fund 
demonstration pilot projects and support safety improvements for all roadway users. 
 
Team Members participated in the April 12 stakeholder meeting for the City of Gahanna Active 
Transportation Plan. The consultant team provided a detailed summary of the existing conditions analysis 
that was conducted and guided the stakeholders through an activity to develop action items for the plan. 
Recommendations will be developed and shared at the next stakeholder meeting. 
 
MORPC hosts virtual group viewings of the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals (APBP) 
monthly Professional Development webinars. The webinars are eligible for 1.0 hour of American Institute of 
Certified Planners (AICP) Certification Maintenance credit. Contact Jordan Petrov (jpetrov@morpc.org) if you 
are interested in attending any of the MORPC group viewings. The next webinar is Wednesday, May 15, on: 
“Planning to Advance Transportation and Health Equity.” 
 
Transportation Safety 
The Ohio Traffic Safety Office is hosting the first annual Ohio Traffic Safety Summit in Columbus, May 20-21. 
This is a great opportunity to hear from engaging speakers, participate in workshops, share resources and 
ideas, and network with colleagues from around the state. Registration is free. More information is available 
at https://ohiotrafficsafetysummit.com/.  
 
Team Members participated in the following safety committee meetings: 

• Franklin County Safe Communities Coalition 
• Franklin County Traffic Fatality Review Meeting 

• OARC Transportation Safety Planning Subcommittee 

• Ohio Traffic Records Coordinating Committee Technical Council 

• Ohio Strategic Highway Safety Plan Steering Committee 

• Ohio Traffic Safety Council Pedestrian Safety Working Group 
 
Technical Assistance Program 
Team Members hosted a workshop with Franklin Township on April 5. MORPC and Franklin Township staff 
convened regional stakeholders to discuss relevant recent and ongoing planning work, review existing 
conditions for walking and bicycling in the area, identify a walk audit route to conduct an on-the-ground 
assessment of active transportation facilities, determine needs for further analyses, and begin drafting a set 
of priority connections to evaluate.  
 
Central Ohio Greenways (COG) 
The COG Trail Towns Working Group met April 19 to discuss the best way to implement the COG Trail Town 
Framework and the COG Wayfinding Strategy. 
 
The COG Trail Closure and Detours Steering Committee met April 25.  
 
The COG Mapping Natural Assets Steering Committee met April 25 and will meet six times over the next six 
months to summarize and analyze environmental data related to watershed quality. This data will be used to 
inform development decisions, conservation efforts, and outdoor recreational access. 
 
The Designing Local consultant team is under contract to complete the COG Wayfinding Strategy. The team 
met with stakeholders and drafted a recommended signage strategy. They also integrated Trail Towns, 

mailto:jpetrov@morpc.org
https://ohiotrafficsafetysummit.com/


3 
 

Public Art, and Placemaking concepts into the wayfinding strategy. The final draft was submitted to MORPC 
for final review. 
 
Central Ohio Blueways 
The first meeting of the Central Ohio Blueways Steering Committee was May 8. The meeting focused on 
developing and refining a committee mission and vision to help guide the work of Central Ohio Blueways. 
Members also considered developing working groups to focus on Central Ohio Blueways components which 
are more pertinent to members’ organizational interests. Working Groups are anticipated to include Water 
Trail Designation, Water Stewardship, and User Experience. 
 
Team Members ae finalizing updates to a new Central Ohio Blueways interactive map available by the end 
of May. 
 
Regional Housing Strategy 
Tea Members are working with the National Association of Regional Councils’ Housing Working Group on 
discussions surrounding the housing crisis to learn how peer organizations are approaching housing issues. 
 
Are you interested in a housing/growth workshop for your community’s elected officials, staff, or community 
leaders? MORPC is accepting requests for presentations and workshops. Our Team will work with you to 
design the agenda, including recommended speakers and learning objectives. Contact Jonathan Miller for 
more information (JMiller@morpc.org). 
 
Sustainability Advisory Committee (SAC) 
The next Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting is June 5. 
 
Sustainable2050  
The next Sustainable2050 meeting is May 9. Presenters will focus on communications strategies and 
storytelling to promote the benefits of sustainable practices. Sustainable2050 membership and tier status 
certification is open to MORPC members. Current Sustainable2050 members interested in earning their tier 
status certification should contact Brandi Whetstone at bwhetstone@morpc.org. A certification workbook will 
be provided, and a kick-off meeting is encouraged to review the process. The deadline for completed 
workbooks is May 3 for consideration at the June 5 Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
Sustaining Scioto Board 
The Sustaining Scioto Board met April 24. Apoorva Bajaj with Climavision gave a presentation on “Improved 
Real Time Rainfall Measurements Through Water Weather Radars in Ohio,” highlighting their advanced 
weather radar capabilities to fill the gaps in precipitation and weather data. Board Members also discussed 
the first Regional Water Study Kickoff Webinar. 
 
Energy & Air Quality 
The next Energy & Air Quality Working Group meeting is May 22. The Working Group is looking for 
candidates to serve as Chair and Vice-Chair. Contact Brian Filiatraut, bfiliatraut@morpc.org, if interested in 
attending the next meeting or serving in a leadership position. 
 
Earlier this year, the City of Dublin earned SolSmart Bronze designation. In doing so, Dublin is the latest 
local government to spur solar market growth by increasing transparency and access, making going solar 
easier in their community. Congratulations to Mayor Amorose Groomes and the City of Dublin. 
 
A recent report by IQ Air again claimed that Columbus has the worst air quality of the major cities in the U.S., 
which is inaccurate and inconsistent with official data from Ohio EPA’s regulatory air monitors. Further, 
Grove City came up as having worse air quality than Columbus, which is also misleading. Team Members 
investigated this. The claim appears to be based on two PurpleAir sensors, one of which was malfunctioning 
during the analysis period and the other located at a school, where bus and drop off traffic could impact the 
readings. Industry best practices do not recommend drawing conclusions from one sensor to characterize an 
entire community. We continue to field questions about this report. 
 
Air Quality Awareness Week, May 6-10, is an annual initiative aimed at increasing public understanding and 
awareness of air quality issues that affect our health and the environment. Each day, MORPC will provide air 
quality tips and information on our social media platforms. Local governments can adopt a proclamation 
recognizing Air Quality Awareness Week. Contact Mauro Diaz-Hernandez, mdiazhernandez@morpc.org, for 
a sample proclamation. 
 

mailto:JMiller@morpc.org
mailto:bwhetstone@morpc.org
mailto:bfiliatraut@morpc.org
mailto:mdiazhernandez@morpc.org


4 
 

Neighborhood Air Monitoring Project/U.S. EPA Project 
MORPC continues to move forward with the U.S. EPA funded air monitoring project working in partnership 
with Franklin County Public Health. Team Members are nearing completion of collocating 40 PurpleAir 
sensors with Ohio EPA monitors to test and validate their performance before placing them in the 
community. Dr. Huyen Le, professor at OSU and Project Advisory Committee member, agreed to lend us 
additional sensors for the project's duration; we expect up to 30 more sensors to be added to our network. 
MORPC began removing malfunctioning or older sensors from the community and refurbishing or replacing 
these as needed. Ankit Annapareddy from OSU Medical College was welcomed onto the team as a fellow for 
the next year focusing on community outreach and engagement. 
 
Climate Pollution Reduction Grant (CPRG) 
The CPRG Strategy Subcommittee met April 24 to discuss the CPRG Phase 1 Priority Climate Action Plan 
submission, the CPRG Phase 2 Implementation “Growing Green” application submission, and the future 
needs and meeting cadence of the subcommittee. 
 
Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) 
RDAC Met April 2. Their focus this year is on the areas of Workforce & Job Quality; Diversity, Equity & 
Inclusion; Cyber Security; and Regional Data Coaches projects and initiatives.  

• Data Day Working Group:  The Data Day Working Group is planning for Data Day 2025. They are 
researching potential venues for an event of between 250 and 300 individuals, as well as looking into 
budgetary considerations. 

• The Regional Information & Data Group (RIDG):  The RIDG Steering Committee met April 9 to 
discuss plans for the next RIDG meeting. 

• Central Ohio GIS User Group (COGUG): The next meeting is May 15. 
• The Regional Data Coaching Working Group: The Working Group met March 28. There are two 

types of coaching group users proposed going forward: “Advisors” and “Members.” The group 
created nine core subject matter areas and set up future priorities to evaluate platform options, 
define role of advisors, and recruit advisors. 

• Workforce and Job Quality Working Group: The Working Group met April 18 to refine goals and 
determine next actions. 

• DEI & Data Working Group: The group met April 26. 

• Cyber Security Working Group: The group April 17 and began developing an impact statement and 
proposed near-term activities to achieve the desired impact.  
 

Data & Research Activities 
Development continues on the MORPC Insights platform, a web application whose purpose is to provide 
data-derived insights on a variety of topics at the regional, county, and community levels. Each insight is 
supported by data, visualizations, and expert commentary, and is eventually expected to feature content 
from trusted partners in addition to MORPC-produced content. Current efforts are focused on development 
of standards to ensure the content is reproducible, updateable, and scalable. 
 
 

DRIVE INVESTMENT 
 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
Team Members shared draft projects with over 50 Central Ohio organizations, councils, trustees, and 
neighborhood commissions. The public comment period for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 
ended March 29. Staff reviewed comments received and incorporated them into the MTP as appropriate. 
Changes include adding/removing projects or changing how a project is displayed. The MTP web map will be 
updated to reflect projects included in the final plan.  
 
Passenger Rail 
The City of Fort Wayne issued an RFQ on April 5 for consultant services to assist with Corridor ID Program 
planning for the Chicago-Fort Wayne-Columbus-Pittsburgh corridor. Proposals were due May 3. 
 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) 
Team Members drafted bylaws for the Economic Development District Governing Board and are ready for 
leadership review. 
 
Team Members submitted the close-out report to the Economic Development Administration (EDA) for the 
grant awarded in 2021. Notification on the 2024 EDA Partnership Planning grant is pending. 
 



5 
 

Federal Competitive Programs 
MORPC was awarded $2 million from the U.S. DOT Federal Highway Administration’s Electric Vehicle 
Charger Reliability and Accessibility Accelerator Program focused on repairing or replacing broken or non-
operational EV charging ports throughout the 15-county region.  
 
MORPC submitted a joint grant application to the 2024 Safe Streets and Roads for All funding program on 
April 3. The application was for a collaborative research initiative titled, Crash Analytics and Injury Research 
(CAIR). If awarded, the research will be led by the Ohio State University’s Injury Biomechanics Research 
Center (IBRC) in collaboration with partners at the City of Columbus Department of Public Service, Franklin 
County Engineer’s Office, Honda Development & Manufacturing of America, LLC and American Honda 
Motor Co., Inc., as well as other local, regional, and state partners. The primary objective of the research is 
to uncover valuable insights into the causes, patterns, and contributing factors in fatal and serious injury 
crashes throughout the proposed study area in Central Ohio. 
 
MORPC submitted an application to U.S. DOT’s Prioritization Process Pilot Program for $1.4 million to 
enhance the Metropolitan Planning Organization’s MTP project evaluation process. 
 
As lead applicant, MORPC submitted the region’s $73.5 million grant application to implement two main 
strategies to reduce pollution and increase workforce development. The application, Growing Green: A 
Community-Focused Energy Strategy for a Growing Columbus Region, is comprised of the Regional 
Community Energy Strategy (ReCES) and the West Broad Transit Project of LinkUS, while building out the 
clean energy workforce. ReCES focuses on deploying solar on local government, school, and nonprofit 
buildings and spaces and solar on low-income single-family homes across the ten-county Columbus MSA. 
The LinkUS West Broad Mobility Corridor Project will introduce the region’s first battery electric bus rapid 
transit line accompanied by replacing existing streetlights with LED smart lighting along the corridor’s 
neighborhoods. This collaborative effort included assistance from the City of Columbus, Clean Energy 
Ventures, the Columbus Region Green Fund, COTA, IMPACT Community Action, Nutter Consulting, Power 
a Clean Future Ohio, and the 50 various ReCES partners who provided letters of intent and over 250 
potential site locations for solar. MORPC anticipates learning the status of the CPRG Growing Green 
application by the end of summer/early fall. 
 
The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) received a $1.2 million award from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation’s Transit-Oriented Development Planning program. The award will help plan equitable transit-
oriented development along the LinkUS West Broad Street Bus Rapid Transit Corridor. MORPC is identified 
as a partner and supported COTA in the application development. 
 
LinkUS Mobility Initiative 
LinkUS partners continue to engage with regional partners to share information on the initiative. Partners 
identified additional corridors to be studied for high-capacity, rapid transit in the region and refined corridors 
to be advanced in the near-term for consistency with other regional planning activities such as the 2024-2050 
MTP and ODOT’s Workforce Transit Plan. 
 
The Transit Supportive Infrastructure (TSI) Committees continue to meet to develop the regional TSI 
Capital Improvement Program and the Technical Coordinated Committee adopted TSI Policies to 
recommend to the Leadership Committee for final approval and adoption on May 7. 
 
Mobility Management 
The Central Ohio Mobility Manager Working Group met April 15 to complete a SWOT (Strengths, 
Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats) analysis of the Coordinated Plan for ODOT’s Human Service 
Transportation Coordination Region 6. After approved by the Regional Mobility Plan Steering Committee the 
SWOT will be incorporated into the yearly Coordinated Plan Update. 
 
Central Ohio Rural Planning Organization (CORPO) 
The public comment period for CORPO Dedicated Funds State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024-2025 was open 
until April 19. Five projects are proposed to receive around $1.1 million in funding in Knox and Madison 
Counties. CORPO will consider final approval of the funding commitments on May 6. The funding 
commitments will be incorporated into the CORPO Transportation Improvement Program for the appropriate 
fiscal year. 
 
The public comment period for the CORPO Safety Action Plan was open until April 19. The CORPO Safety 
Action Plan identifies the most significant roadway safety concerns and establishes specific strategies and 
action items for implementation to address the identified roadway safety issues. The plan’s goal is to develop 
a holistic, well-defined approach to prevent fatal and serious injury crashes in the seven CORPO counties. 



6 
 

Additionally, completion of the Safety Action Plan will make local agencies within the CORPO planning area 
eligible to apply for implementation funds through the SS4A program. CORPO will consider final approval of 
the CORPO Safety Action Plan on May 6. 
 
The CORPO Committee meets for their biannual meeting on May 6 at MORPC. 
 
MORPC-Attributable Funding 
MORPC is preparing the online attributable funding application to begin soliciting new applications and 
commitment updates in May. There is an applicant workshop on May 22. 
 
Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) 
The District 3 Public Works Integrating Committee adopted an applicant manual for SFY 2026 State Capital 
Improvement Plan & Local Transportation Improvement Plan requests. Applications for the SFY 2026 
funding open in May. 
 
Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) 
The 2024 application period for Major New Construction Program funding is expected to open May 1 and run 
through the end of the month. 
 
Clean Ohio Conservation Fund 
The Clean Ohio Conservation Fund has approximately $5 million available for FY 2025. Preliminary 
screeners are encouraged and due June 3. Final applications are due August 30. Projects located in Frankin 
County will be considered. For more information, contact Edwina Teye at (ETeye@morpc.org) or visit 
MORPC’s Clean Ohio Conservation Fund website.  
 
Money Mondays 
MORPC hosted the following Money Monday sessions: 

• April 1 – Department of Justice Public Safety Funding 
• April 15 – Using Digital Signage to Enhance Value to Your Community 

• April 22 – Community Development Block Grant Program 

• April 29 – Section 5310 Funding and Other Mobility Related Items 
 
Upcoming sessions: 

• May 6 – ODOT: Urban Paving Program 
• May 13 – A.I. 2.0: Impact of A.I. and How it can be a Helpful Tool in Crafting a Grant Application 
• May 20 – Council of Development and Finance Agencies 

 
 

PAY IT FORWARD 
 
Membership Services 
MORPC welcomed the 88th member, the Village of Mount Sterling, on April 11.  We're also welcoming the 
Village of Ashley in Delaware County and the Village of Alexandria in Licking County to join upcoming 
meetings and events to experience the value of a MORPC membership. 
 
Team Members completed three member visits and attended six various State of the 
City/Village/Township/County events. 
 
Summer Intern Program 
Approximately 50 interns are participating in MORPC’s Summer Internship Program starting May 14. 
 
Events 
MORPC hosted/held the following events: 

• April 25 – Mobilizing Your Workforce Rural Forum, Marysville 

• May 1 – Central Area Regional Planning Luncheon, Franklin County 
 
Upcoming Events 

• May 9 – Pre-Commission Luncheon featuring Colonel Andrew Powers, Noon-1:15 p.m., MORPC 

• May 22 – Revitalization that Inspires Investment Rural Forum, Newark 
 
 
 

mailto:ETeye@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/programs-services/clean-ohio-conservation-fund/


7 
 

Outreach 
MORPC’s Air Quality Awareness Program was featured in a presentation at ODOT’s April 23 Transportation 
and Environment Sustainability Conference. Team Members also attended and supported Earth and Arbor 
Day celebrations in Bexley and Columbus.  
 
Public Involvement & Engagement 
MORPC attended an affordable housing resource fair in Milo Grogan on April 1 and had the opportunity to 
talk with community members about MORPC’s home repair and weatherization programs, as well as other 
direct service programs offered by the agency. 
 
MORPC promoted the following requests for public input through social media and on our website: 

• 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Public Comment Period 

• City of Fort Wayne Midwest Connect RFQ 
• Gohio Commute Make Your Miles Matter Challenge 

 
 

BUILD VALUE FOR OUR MEMBERS 
 

Community-Based Planning Assistance 
Team Members are assembling information for a Planning Resources Library. If there is a specific topic or 
area of planning you think should be included, contact Jonathan Miller (jmiller@morpc.org).  
 
The Community-Based Planning Assistance Program (CBPA) is available for community assistance 
requests. Members may learn more about, or request assistance from, the CBPA by visiting  
https://www.morpc.org/community-based-planning-assistance/. Contact Jonathan Miller at jmiller@morpc.org 
with any questions or to discuss potential ways that MORPC may assist. 
 
Consultant Services Program 
MORPC is working with several communities on the Consultant Services Program to assist with the RFP 
process for both Comprehensive Plan Updates and Zoning Codes. The Program was expanded to include 
economic development activities, like financial planning and the creation of economic development overlays, 
as well as the addition of public engagement services to assist with high-profile projects.  
 
Planner Pool Program 
Members are invited to submit applications for assistance from the Planner Pool Program. MORPC is 
accepting projects related to planning, zoning, and sustainability. If you are interested in additional staffing 
assistance, filling staff vacancies during vacation, assistance with gaps in staffing, or other planning or pre-
planning activities such as guidance with best practices, contact Jonathan Miller (jmiller@morpc.org) to 
schedule a time to discuss your communities potential needs and ways that MORPC may be able to help. 
 
MORPC in the News 
Links to press releases and news article for the month are available at www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews   
 
Finance 
The annual financial audit is well under way by the Ohio Auditor of State. The AOS team will present their 
audit report at the June Executive Committee meeting.  
 
Personnel Updates 
The following new Team Members recently started at MORPC: 

• Royce Chesser, Temporary Senior Accountant began April 2 
• Steve Armstrong, Finance Director began April 16 
• Katie McMahon, Summer Intern began April 16 

 
MORPC is currently recruiting for open positions:  

• Strategic Director of Technology 
• Water Planning Intern 
• Chief Regional Planning Officer 
• Residential Services Customer Service Specialist 
• Active Transportation & Safety Intern 
• Programming Assistant/Associate Planner 
• Programming Associate/Senior Planner 

 

mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
https://www.morpc.org/community-based-planning-assistance/
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
mailto:jmiller@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/MORPCInTheNews


8 
 

The requirements for the posted positions are available for review on the website at 
http://www.morpc.org/careers/.  
 
RFP/RFQ Postings 
The following RFP’s/RFQ’s were posted: 

• HVAC Contractor for Residential Energy Programs  
• Insulation Contractor for Residential Energy Programs  

 
The full RFP/RFQs are available at http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/.  
 

http://www.morpc.org/careers/
http://www.morpc.org/rfps-rfqs/


��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<8=�>?@8=ABC�DCBAA8A@�E=FF8GG8=A�HI?JKL8M?�E=FF8LL??�;NN8J?OG�BA9�P=BO9�7?FQ?OG�ROBAGS=OLBL8=A�D=C8JT�E=FF8LL??�ROBAGS=OLBL8=A�U9M8G=OT�E=FF8LL??�E=FFKA8LT�U9M8G=OT�E=FF8LL??��VW5+6� X8JY�Z8CC[�ROBAGS=OLBL8=A�\LK9T�]8O?JL=O��_̂4̀ 6� �������_a/bc�dde�dfdg��hijk̀l46� DO=S=G?9�>?G=CKL8=A�R:m:nop��4q,�+,r/.a.cbr01�sc011b1t�5/t01bu0rb.1�v+s5w�0xrb1t�rq/.3tq�rq,�4/01ya./r0rb.1�s.cbxz�l.--brr,,�by�/,ya.1yb{c,�|./�02.arb1t�rq,�+,r/.a.cbr01�4/01ya./r0rb.1�sc01�,},/z�|.3/�z,0/y~�4qby�0xrb.1�q,cay�,1y3/,�x.1rb13,2�|,2,/0c�0yybyr01x,�|./�r/01ya./r0rb.1�a/.�,xry�b1�rq,�/,tb.1~�W,y.c3rb.1�4���dg��bcc�02.ar�rq,�dfdg�df�f�l.c3-{3y�_/,0�+,r/.a.cbr01�4/01ya./r0rb.1�sc01�|./�rq,�l.c3-{3y�_/,0�+,r/.a.cbr01�sc011b1t�5/t01bu0rb.1�012�0||b/-�rq,�x.1ybyr,1xz�.|�rq,�hV��dfdg�r.�dfd��4/01ya./r0rb.1��-a/.},-,1r�s/.t/0-�v4�sw�r.�br~���̂3/b1t�rq,�2,},c.a-,1r�.|�rq,�+4s�.},/�rq,�c0yr�r�.�z,0/y�y,},/0c��,z�,c,-,1ry��,/,�a/,y,1r,2�|./�/,}b,�e�a3{cbx�x.--,1re�012�02.arb.1~�4q,y,�b1xc32,26����+4s��.0cy���+,0y3/0{c,�.{�,xrb},y�012�a,/|./-01x,�-,0y3/,y���df�f�a.a3c0rb.1�012�,-ac.z-,1r�a/.�,xrb.1y��_22brb.10ccze�01�b1r,/0xrb},��,{�-0a��0y�3y,2�0y�0�r..c�r.�y.cbxbr�012�x0ar3/,�|,,2{0x��.1�x012b20r,�r/01ya./r0rb.1�a/.�,xry~���V/.-�k0130/z�rq/.3tq�_a/bc�dfdg�-./,�rq01��f�a/,y,1r0rb.1y�.1�rq,�+4s��,/,�-02,�r.�c.x0c�t.},/1-,1ry�012�1,btq{./q..2�0yy.xb0rb.1y�rq/.3tq.3r�rq,�/,tb.1~�_1�.a,1�q.3y,��0y�q,c2�0r�+5Wsl�.1�+0/xq���e�dfdg~�s/b./�r.�x.-ac,rb.1e�rq,�yr/0r,tb,ye�a/.�,xr�cbyrb1tye�012�rq,�2.x3-,1r��,/,�-02,�0}0bc0{c,�r.�-,-{,/y�012�rq,�a3{cbx�|./�/,}b,��23/b1t�0�a3{cbx�x.--,1r�a,/b.2�rq0r�c0yr,2�rq/.3tq�+0/xq�d�e�dfdg~�4q,�dfdg�df�f�+,r/.a.cbr01�4/01ya./r0rb.1�sc01�v+4sw�



�

�

�������	� 
��� ���� ����� ��������� 	�� 	
�� ������ ��� �������� ����	���
		�������������������� �!"� # "��	������	��"	�������	�	���"�����$����������	�����	
����
�	
�������������	
����������%���������	��
���������������������������������&
������	�����'�	
��� �!"� # ��&�����������	
��������������	(�	
���)���	����������*���		��
���	��	
��������	���$(�����	
��'���������������������+� ,�	����-����.���+� %���/����	*����'����	*��+� 0���������	���1��	����&��
������%���*����+� 0���������	�����	���	����+� ���2��	�0�����	����+� ���������	�����	�����%���/����	*�������	���*�&
�������������������������'������������	
�	��	��������������������'����2��	��'��	
���	
���������'�	
��������%���%�	�%�������	���'�344 ��&
��� �!"� # ���	������	���&�������	�	������������2��	��
������������*5���*��6�&7���������������������809���'	������:��������	
�������*���(�	
��� �!"� # ��&��
���������	��������	����������'����	*���	
�	
����;�������	���'�	
��������%���%�	�%�������	���'�344 ���&
��������	�������'�����	
�	�	
������(�����	
���*�	
��&�������	�	����<���������	����������&<�$(����'�����	��	
��������%���%�	�%�������	���,���������	
�������	���(�	
��� �!"� # ��&�������	��������������������'���������	���6�&�'���'���������������&
������;����	*����'����	*�'�����������������������		���'���'�������������������%		��
���	�� ������	����&"="�!�� � � ��



���������	
�����


��������
���
��������
��������
��������
��  �!!���
�!
��!�������
�!
���
 ��"�#������
#�������
�"����$�����
%���&
'(
���
��)�"��"
�*����
��"�+��
���
����
,�#�"� ���
�-
�"��!#�"������
���
��
*��#�"�����
.���
��*���(
���*���
�--�*���!
-�"
/"��0���
���
,���.�"�
*�+����!�
	�.
��'��(�
����!0���
���
����
��.�!��#
��
��*0���
��+��(�
1�����
���
2��� 
��.�!��#!
��
/��"-����
��+��(�
���
3�"� �
��.�!��#
��
�����
��+��(4
���

��������
���
����
#+"!+���
��
�
������
�����!
����
5��
���
�6
������
�����!
����
578%�&%&�
578�%5&�
���
578�%�&%5&�
��!
*�+!��
���
8��898
���"�#������
�"��!#�"������
����
%���&
�����
��(
8�
��
'�
#"�#�"��4
���

��������
���
8��898
���
.�!
��)���#��
�"�+��
����!�
 ��!+"�'��
�':�*��)�!
%#�"-�" ��*�
 ��!+"�!&
���
898
��+!�����
���
� #��( ���
-�"�*�!�
���#���
)��
��!��+����
��59�
��
	�)� '�"
6�
8�
��!��+����
��5��
��
/�'"+�"(
6�
8�
���
��!��+����
��59��
��
��#�� '�"
5��
8�
"�!#�*��)��(4
���

��������
���
���
��*�+��!
-���"���(
"�;+�"��
#�"-�" ��*�
 ��!+"�!
�����
.���
����������
#�"-�" ��*�
 ��!+"�!4
���

��������
����"
#���!
��*�+����
��*��
����
+!�
#���!�
��*��
*�#����
� #"�)� ���
#���!�
�"��!��
����*(
#���!�
"�������
#���!�
���
!����.���
#���!
.�"�
*��!+����
���
��*�"#�"����
����
���
8��898
���4
���

��������
���
"�������
�����������
�"��!#�"������
�(!�� 
%���&
�"*����*�+"�
�!
*�����+���(
+#�����
���
��*�+���
�!
#�"�
�-
���
8��898
���4
���

��������
#+"!+���
��
�
���
5���
�
-����*���
#���
.�!
#"�#�"��
-�"
���
8��898
���
����
�� ��!�"���!
����
��
*��
'�
� #�� �����
���
�!
*��!�!����
.���
-+�����
"��!���'�(
�<#�*���
��
'�
�)����'��4
���

��������
���
��)���# ���
�-
���
8��898
���
��*�+��!
�##����*�!
��!���
��
���
��*+ ���4
���

��������
��
*� #����*�
.���
�=�=
,��>!
�����
1�
"��+������!�
!���*�������
�-
*���$��!>
*�  ���!
��
���
8��898
���
.�!
 ���
'(
-����.���
�����>!
���#���
�+'��*
��"��*�#�����
����
��"�+��
��)�"��!� ���!
��
���
��*��
 ����
���
#"�!��������!
��
�+ �"�+!
�"�+#!
.�����
���
#�������
�"���
��
��
�#��
��+!�
 �������
���
��  +���(
��)�!�"(
��  �����
���
�"��!#�"������
��)�!�"(
��  �����
 ������!�
��
�����?!
.�'!����
���
����"
 ���!4
���

��������
#+"!+���
��
�6
����
578@�
�
����
5��
���
�
����
@987�
���
8��898
���
��!
'���
����($��
'�!��
��
�**�#���
 ���������(
���
��!
'���
����" ����
��
'�
��
*��-�" ��(
.���
���
"�;+�"� ���!
�-
���
�����
��"
�*�
� ��� ���!
�-
56684
���

��������
���
����
#+"!+���
��
�
������
�����!
����
5��
���
�6%578@&
������
�����!
�����
��!
#"�#�"��
�
�"��!#�"������
� #"�)� ���
�"��"� 
-�"
/�!*��
A��"!
8�
��"�+��
8@�
.��*�
�!
*��!�!����
.���
���
8��898
���4
���

��������
���
��  +���(
��)�!�"(
��  �����
��
��!
�#"��
6�
8�
 ������
���
���
�"��!#�"������
��)�!�"(
��  �����
��
��!
��(
5�
8�
 ������
"�*�  �����
���#����
�-
���!
"�!��+����
'(
���
�"��!#�"������
����*(
��  �����4
��.
���"�-�"�





���������	
�����
����
�
��
��
��������
��
��� �

������	
� 
 �!��
��
�"�#��
�!�
�$����$%$
&��
'�(
�!�
)���*+��
,(��
*��(�#�����	
#��		�	�
�(��	�-����	
"���"
&�.
�$��/
�	���"�	�
���
�##�	"���� 



������	
� 
 �!��
��
�!�
�����"��	
�'
�!�
)�	�(��
�!��
�����	��
���
,(�!������(�
0,(�!������(�1/
��
�"�#��
�!�
��
�!�
,(�!������(�
��
*��	���	�"
+.
&���)
��
�!�
'�"�(���.
(�2��(�"
(����	��
�(�!������(�
'�(
�!�
&���)
�(�	�#�(�����	
���		�	�
,(�� 

������	
 

 �!��
��
"�(����
���''
��
3�(4
3��!
&���)
��**������/
�����
5�(��"�����	�/
�(�	���
���	����/
�!�
�!��
��#�(�*�	�
�'
�(�	�#�(�����	
�	"
��!�(
#�(�	�(�
��
�*#��*�	�
�!�
�$����$%$
&��
��(�������
�	"
#(�5���� 

������	
� 
 �!��
��
(���**�	"�
�!��
���
*�*+�(�
�	��(#�(���
�!�
�$����$%$
&��
��(�������
�	"
#(�5����
�	��
�!��(
#��		�	�
'�(
�(�	�#�(�����	
�*#(�6�*�	��
�	
�!��(
��6�(	*�	���
�	��� 

������	
% 
 �!��
��
�''�(*�
�!�
��	'�(*��.
�'
�!�
�$����$%$
&��
3��!
�!�
�����
�*#��*�	�����	
���	 

������	
7 
 �!��
��
�''�(*�
�!��
�!�
�8�
�$��
��
�$�9
�(�	�#�(�����	
�*#(�6�*�	�
�(��(�*
��
��	�����	�
3��!
�!�
�$����$%$
&�� 

������	
9 
 �!��
��
"�(����
���''
��
�"*�	���(���6��.
*�"�'.
�!�
�$����$%$
&��/
�'
	������(./
��
*�4�
���!	����
��((�����	�/
(�'����
(�'�	�*�	��
��
�	.
�	���"�"
#(�5����
�(
�(�	���
��((�"�(�
��
�!�.
"�6���#/
�!��
"�
	��
���	�'���	��.
�!�	��
�!�
'�����
+���	��/
�*#���
�!�
��(
2�����.
��	'�(*��.
"���(*�	����	/
�	"
"�
	��
	�����6��.
�*#���
�!�
����+���!�"
�����
�	"
�+5����6�� 



������	
: 
 �!��
�!�
�;�����6�
"�(����(
��
���!�(�-�"
��
��4�
���!
��!�(
�����	
�	"
�;�����
�	"
"���6�(
���!
��!�(
"���*�	��
��/
����	�
3��!
�!�
�"6���
�'
�����
���	���/
!�
�!���
"��*
	������(.
�	"
�##(�#(����
��
��((.
���
�!�
�	��	�
�'
�!��
(��������	 

������	
< 
 
�!��
�!��
)�**�����	
'�	"�
�	"
"���(*�	��
�!��
���
'�(*��
"���+�(����	�
�	"
�����	�
�'
�!��
)�**�����	
��	��(	�	�
�	"
(�����	�
��
�!�
�"�#���	
�'
�!��
(��������	
3�(�
��4�	
�	
�#�	
*����	��
�'
�!��
)�**�����	 


 















































































)!(��
,*�(���
=(��*��/
)!��(

 
 
 
 
 


��+*����"
+.�
 >��4
=���/
�(�	�#�(�����	
���".
��(����(
�(�#�(�"
+.�

 ���''/
�(��(�**�	�
��#�(�*�	�

,����!*�	��

 �$����$%$
&��(�#�����	
�(�	�#�(�����	
���	
�;�����6�
��**�(.





������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	����������������� !"�#$%&'�(&)*$+)&'�&,-*&./'�$.0�$--&##*+)&�/($.#12(/$/*2.�#3#/&4�*#�&##&./*$)�/2�/5&�&-2.243�$.0�67$)*/3�2%�)*%&�%2(�/52#&�852�9*#*/'�)*9&'�$.0�82(:�*.�/5&�;&./($)�<5*2�(&=*2.>�?5&�@A@BC@ADA�E&/(212)*/$.�?($.#12(/$/*2.�F)$.�GE?FH�&#/$+)*#5&#�$�#&/�2%�(&=*2.$)�/($.#12(/$/*2.�=2$)#�$.0�2+I&-/*9&#'�$.0�(&-244&.0#�#/($/&=*&#J*.-)70*.=�1(2I&-/#J�/5$/�8*))�4$*./$*.'�4$.$=&'�$.0�0&9&)21�;&./($)�<5*2K#�/($.#12(/$/*2.�#3#/&4�/5(27=5�@ADA>�?5&�E?F�(&1(&#&./#�$�-2.#&.#7#�$42.=�(&=*2.$)�1$(/.&(#�2.�/($.#12(/$/*2.�.&&0#�$.0�1(*2(*/*&#'�$.0�#527)0�+&�*41)&4&./&0�-2))$+2($/*9&)3�/5(27=527/�/5&�(&=*2.>�F(2=(&##�*.�4&&/*.=�/5&�1)$.K#�2+I&-/*9&#�8*))�+&�42.*/2(&0�$.0�(&12(/&0�2.�$..7$))3>



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

������������� !��"#���$�%�� ��&�&$'�%�()��!��$�*�'���+�%��)��� �*�,�-$� !����$ �$ ����.�������������� !��$ � �����/!��'�%!�������+�(����)!�%$���+�(��0� � ���+$���1&�������������+�� �2%� ������+�����3$�$������.�+�(��+$���� !�� ���$)�� � ����$3$ �(,�#!��"#���$�%�()��!��$�*����� !� �� ��++��$$�$�����$&���%�� ��*����) ���$���%�&+���� !���& �(�4���'� ���$� '�4�%3%��$'�)�+�$ ����$'���+������! �(�*�(�� $,�5 ���$����%����6�$� !� � !��1&��� 3���� !�� ���$)�� � ����$3$ �(��()�% $'���+��$��()�% �+�43�+�*���)(�� �)�  ���$'��%���(�%�%��+� ���$'���+���*����(�� ���)���%��$,�7�����3'� !��"#���$�%��)��� �*��.� !���$)�% � �� !����%���%�((&�� ��$'�����%��$'���+�$ �0�!��+��$� !� �!�*��.��0�+� ��� !��� ��+�*���)� !��)������+�.!��(&$ �.��0� ��� !���(�*�������.��+� ��$&%%�$$�&��3����%!� !���& %�(�$�)��)�$�+�43� !��)���,�"��3�+�8���� �����%��$���+���%�����*���(�� $�%��+&% �$ &+��$������+�%�()�� ���()��*�(�� $� �� !�� ���$)�� � ����$3$ �(,�9�.�*��'�"/:�;��$� !��)���%�)���)&4��%�����%3�%��+&% ������������� ���$)�� � ����$ &+��$����� !��;�� ����/!��������4�%�&$��� �$��*�$��$� !��+�$���� �+�"� ��)��� ������������/�����6� ����<"�/=����� !��;��&(4&$�>�4���6�+�-���,�5 �%�*��$�7���0����;�&� 3'�?���.����;�&� 3'���+�)�� ���$����7���2��+'�@�%0���'���+�>�����%�&� ��$,�#!��"#��%�*��$� !��"�/�����'��$�$!�.��4���.A



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������
�������� !��!�"#$#%&��'()*�++�),�-�.�/)'01��2&��3%��(�450(�+��++56'20)1+��1-��1�/7+�+�),�&)8�6�17�'�)'/��80//�/0.���1-�8)(9�01�2&��3�:�01�;<=<>��1-�8&�(���1-�&)8�2&�7�80//�2(�.�/>�+)�2&�2�2&��-�6�1-+�),�2&��2(�1+')(2�20)1�+7+2�6�*�1�?���120*0'�2�-@A�*�5+��2&��'/�1�65+2�?��B+*�//7�?�/�1*�->�,)(�*�+2+�),��.�0/�?/��,51-01��,)(�6�012�0101���1-��C'�1-01��2&��2(�1+')(2�20)1�+7+2�6�8�(���/+)�-�.�/)'�-@�%&��+2(�2��0�+��1-�'()D�*2+�0-�120B�-�01�2&0+�'/�1�+2�7�802&01�2&��,)(�*�+2�-�(�.�15�+@�%&0+�'/�1�8�+�-�.�/)'�-�802&�2&���++56'20)1�2&�2�+060/�(�,51-01��80//�?���.�0/�?/��2)�2&���(����+�8&�2�&�+�?��1�6�-���.�0/�?/��01�2&��'�+2>�?52�802&�6)-�(�2���()82&>�'�(20*5/�(/7�,)(�2(�1+02�(�.�15�+�-5��2)�2&���120*0'�2�-�E019FG�'()�(�6@

HIJ!�� JIK�L� MN�O��P�K%&��;<;QR;<=<�3�2()')/02�1�%(�1+')(2�20)1��/�1�&�+�?��1�-�.�/)'�-��()51-���+�2�),��)�/+�2&�2��0.��-0(�*20)1�2)�6�901��(��0)1�//7�?�+�-�01.�+26�12+�01�2&��2(�1+')(2�20)1�+7+2�6@��()�(�++�01��*&0�.�6�12�),�2&�+���)�/+�80//�?��6��+5(�-�?7�)?D�*20.�+��1-�2�(��2+��+�)52/01�-�01�S&�'2�(�T@

MU�VWXYXZV�XZ[\]̂_\Ẑ�XZ�̂̀aZ]bc̀ â̂XcZ�aZY�_cdXeX̂U�XZf̀a]̂ ẀĝẀ\�aZY�]\̀[Xg\]�hi�jkilmno�pqhrs�lqk�tuv�hwkilhxky�ylmnlkzhky�lr�nw{ni|k�lqk�}roor~hiz�yh��zrnoy��
vmr�k|lkw�vr��onlhri�jqnizk�����jr�il���kzhri �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��������������������������������������������������������� �¡���������������¢����������������£������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ¢����������������������������������������������������������������¤�������¤�����¥��������������������@¦�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������§���̈������������������������§�����������
¢��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

������� ���!�"�#$�%��&'��(&��)*�+,)-�.�/0�.,1�,��)�.�,'�,��1��)+,�+*�*�,2�3��456-66�*�37�(89�:��+*�2,'�1�1��)2+�6��+*�62;�6�<6�++)+��<�1,+�1.=�&'��(&��;'�<,�1.�*).;5..���;'�.,1�,��7>�)+;65*)+��,'���<<12�;'�,2�)?<12@)+��,'��,1�+.<21,�,)2+�.7.,�?�.,�1,)+��A),'�BC�<'7.);�6�<1�.�1@�,)2+D�EC�2<�1�,)+��),��F;)�+,67D�GC�?�H)+��),�.�4���+*�.�;51�D��C�1�*5;)+��*�?�+*�421�,1�@�6D��+*�IC��J<�+*)+��,'��.7.,�?�,'125�'�<�*�.,1)�+�)+41�.,15;,51�>�3)H��)+41�.,15;,51�>�,1�+.),�)+41�.,15;,51���+*�.�1@);�>�)+,�1?2*�6�;2++�;,)2+.��+*�-+�667��**),)2+�6�12�*A�7�)+41�.,15;,51�=�&'��.<�;)-;�<12K�;,.�)+;65*�*�)+�,'��(&���1��?�<<�*�2+���42662A)+��<���.=L�M�NL�M�N���M�N��������� ��"OPQRSTU�"VWQWVXTYRZ[��9\]�B̂�9�<�)1�21�1�<6�;��31)*��.�)+�<221�<'7.);�6�;2+*),)2+��9\]�Ê�9�<�@��21�1�;2+.,15;,�12�*.�)+�<221�<'7.);�6�;2+*),)2+��9\]�Ĝ�9�<�@��21�1�;2+.,15;,�.)*�A�6H.��+*�3)H�A�7.�)+�<221�<'7.);�6�;2+*),)2+��9\]��̂�9�<6�;��,1�+.),�@�');6�.�,'�,��1��3�72+*�,'�)1�5.�456�6)4���9\]�Î�9�<�)1�21�1�<6�;��,1�+.),�4�;)6),)�.�)+�<221�<'7.);�6�;2+*),)2+��9\]�_̂�̀,)6)a���*@�+;�*�?�,�1)�6��+*�,�;'+)b5�.�,2�?�J)?)a��6)4��24�,1�+.<21,�,)2+�.7.,�?�;2?<2+�+,.��9\]�/̂�:2+,)+5��,2��@26@��;2+.).,�+,�*�,��;266�;,)2+��+*��+�67.).�<12;�*51�.�,2�1�,��,'��<'7.);�6�;2+*),)2+�24�,'��,1�+.<21,�,)2+�.7.,�?�;2?<2+�+,.�#cWVTYRZ[Q�8��B̂�:266�;,>�*�@�62<>��+*�?�)+,�)+�*�,��2+�12�*A�7>�,1�+.),>�3)H���+*�<�*�.,1)�+�;2+*),)2+.��+*�2,'�1�?2*�.��+*�.'�1��,'��*�,���+*�)+421?�,)2+�,'125�'�,�;'+262�7=�

8��Ê�d12�*�+�,'���J).,)+��,1�+.<21,�,)2+�.7.,�?�?�+���*�)+���;221*)+�,�*�?�++�1�,'125�'�e+,�66)��+,�&1�+.<21,�,)2+�]7.,�?�,�;'+262�)�.8��Ĝ�e?<6�?�+,�?�+���*�6�+�.��62+���**),)2+�6�41��A�7�;211)*21.�8���̂�f<<67��;;�..�?�+���?�+,��62+���1,�1)�6��+*�;266�;,21�;211)*21.�8��Î�e?<12@��;2++�;,)2+.��+*�;221*)+�,)2+��?2+��,1�+.),�.7.,�?�2<�1�,21.�8��_̂�\J<�+*�.)�+�6�<1)21),7��62+���**),)2+�6�12�*A�7�;211)*21.�421�,1�+.),��+*��?�1��+;7�@�');6�.�8��/̂�e?<12@��*�?�+*�1�.<2+.��,1�+.),�.�1@);��8��0̂�(�+���>�)?<12@���+*�;221*)+�,��'5?�+�.�1@);�>�<1)@�,���+*�<536);�,1�+.<21,�,)2+>�,2�3�,,�1�?��,�,'��+��*.��+*�-66�,'����<.�8��ĝ�e?<6�?�+,�@�');6��,2�)+41�.,15;,51���+*�@�');6��,2�@�');6��;2??5+);�,)2+.�8��Bĥ�(2*)47��J).,)+��12�*A�7�6�+��;2+-�51�,)2+.>�A'�1���<<12<1)�,�>�,2�)?<12@��.�4�,7�421��66�5.�1.�8��BB̂�e?<6�?�+,�;513.)*��?�+���?�+,�,2�4�;)6),�,��<�;H����*�6)@�17��+*�?23)6),7��.���.�1@);��<);Hi5<��+*�*12<i2j�A')6��?)+)?)a)+��)?<�;,�2+�,1�+.<21,�,)2+�.7.,�?�2<�1�,)2+.�8��BÊ�k�;)6),�,��?56,)iK51).*);,)2+�6�*)�62�5��,2�)?<12@��2<<21,5+),)�.�421�;266�321�,)2+



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

������� !"�#$�%&''�()*�+�,�'&-*�.�/0)�/0*��0+��0�'12��(3�45�+�)��)&�/+�0)/61�3��/&0�'�4�6�)1��.-5�4/4��3��4��0+�-3/&3/)1�4�6�)1�'&(�)/&04*�7/)5��0��.-5�4/4�&0��'/./0�)/0��6�)�'��0+�4�3/&84�/09831�(3�45�4� !"�:$�%&''�()*�+�,�'&-*�.�/0)�/0*��0+��0�'12��+�)��&0�)3�04/)�4�6�)1� !"�;$�<.-'�.�0)�(&80)�3.��483�4�)5�)��++3�44�-3/&3/)1�4�6�)1�'&(�)/&04�7/)5��0��.-5�4/4�&0�6�)�'��0+�4�3/&84�/09831�(3�45�4� !"�=$�<.-'�.�0)�(&80)�3.��483�4�)5�)��++3�44�)3�04/)�4�6�)1�/448�4� !"��$�!+,�0(���+8(�)/&0�'�/0/)/�)/,�4�)5�)��++3�44�3��/&0�'�4�6�)1��.-5�4/4��3��4�7/)5��0��.-5�4/4�&0��'/./0�)/0��6�)�'��0+�4�3/&84�/09831�(3�45�4� !"�>$�!+,�0(��'��/4'�)/,��/0/)/�)/,�4�)5�)��++3�44�3��/&0�'�4�6�)1��.-5�4/4��3��4���?@AB��� C%�#$��3&.&)���0+�4)3�0�)5�0�4�(83/)1*�/0('8+/0��3�4-&04���0+�3�(&,�31�-'�04�6&3�(1D�3�4�(83/)1� C%�:$��3&.&)���0+�4)3�0�)5�0��.�3��0(1�-3�-�3�+0�44��E&3)4� C%�;$�%&''�()*�+�,�'&-*��0+�.�/0)�/0�+�)���0+�/06&3.�)/&0�)&�/.-3&,��+�(/4/&0�.�F/0�� C%�=$�"�(/'/)�)��.8')/G983/4+/()/&0�'�+/�'&�8��)&�/.-3&,��&--&3)80/)/�4�6&3�(&''�D&3�)/&0�H�I�JK�L�J�M�I�J���NCO�#$�%&''�()*�+�,�'&-*��0+�.�/0)�/0�+�)��&0�3&�+7�1*�)3�04/)*�D/F���0+�-�+�4)3/�0�(&0+/)/&04��0+�&)5�3�.&+�4��0+�45�3��)5��+�)���0+�/06&3.�)/&0�)53&8�5�)�(50&'&�1��

NCO�:$�%&''�()*�+�,�'&-*�.�/0)�/0��0+��0�'12��)3�,�'�+�.�0+�+�)��)&�/+�0)/61�&--&3)80/)/�4�)&�-3&,/+���--3&-3/�)��.&D/'/)1�&-)/&04��NCO�;$�%&''�D&3�)��&0�+�,�'&-.�0)�4)3�)��/�4��0+�3��8'�)/&04�)&�48--&3)�.&D/'/)1�&-)/&04�NCO�=$�C+8(�)���0+�.�3F�)�)3�,�'�+�.�0+�.�0���.�0)�PQNOR�-3&�3�.4�)&�/0(3��4��84��&6�)3�04/)*�3/+�G45�3�*�D/(1('/0�*��0+�7�'F/0���NCO��$�%3��)��)3�,�'�+�.�0+�.�0���.�0)�PQNOR�-�3)0�345/-4��.&0��)5��6�(/'/)�)&34��0+�-3&,/+�34�&6��''�.&+�4�&6�)3�04-&3)�)/&0*�(&..80/)1�'��+�34*��0+�/04)/)8)/&04�)5�)�.�F��8-�5/�5G+�04/)1�)3/-���0�3�)/0��+/4)3/()4�NCO�>$�O�F��0�/�5D&35&&+4�4�6�'1�7�'F�D'�*�D/F��D'�*��0+��((�44/D'��D1�)3�04/)�)53&8�5�0&0G/063�4)38()83��-3&9�()4��0+�-3&�3�.4��NCO�S$�"�(/'/)�)��.8')/G983/4+/()/&0�'�+/�'&�8��)&�/.-3&,��&--&3)80/)/�4�6&3�(&''�D&3�)/&0�T�UVL�HVWVXYZLV[U��U\]UV̂ _V�B̀a��b�Z�K�c�AB�J�_J�A�c�A@?�@A�d��#$�%&''�D&3�)��&0�+�,�'&-.�0)�4)3�)��/�4��0+�3��8'�)/&04�)&�/.-'�.�0)�4�6���0+�(&.G6&3)�D'��/063�4)38()83��6&3�7�'F/0���0+�D/(1('/0�d��:e�<0(3��4��)5��f8�0)/)1��0+�f8�'/)1�&6�,&'8.���0+�)3�,�'�D�5�,/&3�+�)��&0�-�&-'��7�'F/0�*�D/(1('/0�*��0+�84/0��4/./'�3�.&+�4�&6�)3�04-&3)�)/&0d��;$�d8/'+�4�6���0+�(&.6&3)�D'��/063�4)38()83��6&3�7�'F/0���0+�D/(1('/0�d��=$�<.-'�.�0)�)5��%�0)3�'�g5/&�h3��07�14�)3�/'�,/4/&0d���$�<.-'�.�0)��0+�8-+�)��)5��!()/,��Q3�04-&3)�)/&0��'�0�)&�(3��)��4�6���0+�(&.6&3)�D'��/063�4)38()83��6&3�7�'F/0���0+�D/(1('/0�



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

��������������� !"# ""$%�&�'��!'����$�!����!'��( #")� ���*#�%(#)+()#��,#"-�+(%�( �(�.''���,%���$���+#��%��+"���+(�/�(0�"*�%�*����$�+"1*"#(�!'��*�+�'�(��%�*"#�&�'�������$�!�+0+'������2��3�%)#������ !"# ""$%���$��+(�/�(0�+��(�#%� �/��%�*����$�+"1*"#(�!'��+"���+(�"�%�*"#�&�'�������$�!�+0+'����("�(#��%�(���(&"#�%���4��5�+�'�(�(��1)'(�6-)#�%$�+(�"��'�$��'"�)��("��1,#"/��",,"#()��(��%�( #")� �+"''�!"#�(�"��789:;<=�>:?89;=8@A=@8BCDEF�G��H"''�!"#�(��("�!)�'$�(#��%�(���*#�%(#)+()#��( #")� �$�/�'",1��(�#��)'�(�"�%CDEF�I��J�+#��%��*#�K)��+0�"���,,#",#��(��.L�$�#")(��(#��%�(�#")(�%CDEF�M��J1,'�1��(� �� 6+�,�+�(0N�#�,�$�(#��%�(�%�#/�+���'"����$$�(�"��'�+"##�$"#%CDEF�O��3L,��$���"�#�, �+�+"/�#����"*�.L�$�#")(��(#��%�(�%�#/�+�CDEF�P��J1,'�1��(��,,#",#��(���$$�(�"��'Q���"/�(�/��%�#/�+��("��$$#�%%�.#%(Q'�%(�1�'�����$%CDEF������������� !"# ""$%�(#��%�(�%),,"#(�/��( #")� ���*#�%(#)+()#��,#"-�+(%CDEF�2��5�+�'�(�(��1)'(�6-)#�%$�+(�"��'�$��'"�)��("��1,#"/��",,"#()��(��%�*"#�+"''�!"#�(�"�R8B<ST=�U9<V�>:?89;=8@A=@8B5D3�G��J1,#"/���(6�#�$��#��'�+#"%%���%���$�+'"%��"#��#�$�6%�,�#�(��+#"%%���%�& �#��WXYZ[\]X5D3�I��E$$#�%%�+"���%(�"��,"��(%�!̂"(('���+�%_�"��( ��#��'�%0%(�15D3�M��H"''�+(���*"#1�(�"��"����$����'0̀��*#��� (��+(�/�(0�("��$��(�*0�$�/�'",����(#��$%���$�&"#��("�$�%%�1���(��( �(���*"#1�(�"���1"���,�#(��#%���$�,��#%

5D3�O����L�1�̀��( ���a+���+0���$�,#"/�$�����$�$�+�,�+�(0�"*�#��'�(�#1���'%5D3�P��J1,'�1��(���&�(�+ �"'"���%�*"#�*#��� (�1"/�1��(5D3���������(#��%,"#(�(�"��$�+�%�"�%�( �(�,"%�(�/�'0��1,�+(�*#��� (�1"/�1��(%���$�1�L�1�̀��( ���b�+(�/���%%�"*�( ��#���"�c%���(��#�(�$�*#��� (�(#��%,"#(�(�"��%0%(�15D3�2��5�+�'�(�(��1)'(�6-)#�%$�+(�"��'�$��'"�)��("��1,#"/��",,"#()��(��%�*"#�+"''�!"#�(�"�d@V=<efg9V�>:?89;=8@A=@8B�hf::BA=<f:;�ijCJ�G��5"#���,)!'�+Q,#�/�(��,�#(��#% �,%�("�,#"/�$��#�%")#+�%�("�1���(������$��L,��$���0�'������%�!�(&������#N�#��'���$�#"�$&�0�(#��%,"#(�(�"��1"$�%�ijCJ�I����L�1�̀���a+���+0�"*��L�%(����(#��%�(�(�#1���'%���$�+"�%(#)+(���&�(#��%�(�(�#1���'%N�1"!�'�(0�+��(�#%���$�,�#����$�#�$�%�&�( �%�*��!���N�,�$�%(#���N���$�/� �+'���++�%%�& �#��( �#���%���+"�/�#���+��"*�(#��%�(�#")(�%�"#���(�#+�(0�#�,�$�%,��$�(#��%,"#(�(�"��1"$�%�ijCJ�M��J�+"#,"#�(��/� �+'��% �#�������$%��(�(#��%�(�(�#1���'%N�%(�(�"�%���$�1�-"#�%(",%�ijCJ�O��J1,#"/��(#��%�(N�!������$�,�$�%(#����+"���+(�"�%�("���#,"#(%�ijCJ�P��E''�/��(���L�%(����"#���(�+�,�(�$�+"���%(�"���(�#"�$&�0���$�#��'�(�#1���'��++�%%�YkXYZ�ijCJ����E''�/��(���L�%(����"#���(�+�,�(�$�+"���%(�"���(�#"�$&�0���$���#�(�#1���'��++�%%�YkXYZ�ijCJ�2��J�+"#,"#�(���#")�$����$%�*"#�l0������(#�#���"��'�(#��%,"#(�%)+ ��%�$#"��%�*"#�,�+�����$�'�/�#0���$�,�#%"��'�(#��%,"#(�ijCJ�4��5�+�'�(�(��1)'(�6-)#�%$�+(�"��'�$��'"�)��("��1,#"/��",,"#()��(��%�*"#�+"''�!"#�(�"�



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

�������� !"#�$%#&'%&#(�)*+,�-.�/00�1�2�13456�78�9���229:293�4�6�4:��;;�<3�4���=3>43?��:9��?43132�4�0�1:?��>43:?��;:?���=3>43?��@9��7�5>��?0��4�3?4�918�?��>)*+,�A.�B:?43?C��1:?<�9>3:?�:@�D�5�03<30�0��=29�>>7�5>�3?4:�;3E34�0��11�>>�@9��7�5>)*+,�F.�B:?>49C14�?�7�3?4�918�?��>6�78�9���229:293�4�6�4:��;;�<3�4��1:?��>43:?�:9�>C22:94�9��3:?�;�0�<�;:2E�?4��:�;>)*+,�G.�/00�1�2�13456�78�9���229:293�4�6�4:��;;�<3�4���=3>43?��1:?��>43:?�48�4�83?0�9>��1:?:E31��143<345��;:?���=3>43?���94�93�;��?0�1:;;�14:9�1:9930:9>�)*+,�H.�/00�1�2�13456�78�9���229:293�4�6��4�;:1�43:?>�>C18��>�3?4�9>�143:?>�4:��;;�<3�4���=3>43?��1:?��>43:?�48�4�83?0�9>��1:?:E31��143<345)*+,�I.�B:?>49C14�?�7�9:�07�5>6�78�9���229:293�4�6�4:��;;�<3�4��1:?��>43:?�:9�>C22:94�9��3:?�;�:9�;:1�;�0�<�;:2E�?4��:�;>)*+,��.��9:<30���J13�?4�1:??�143<345�:@�;:1�;�9:�0>�4:�48���94�93�;��?0�1:;;�14:9�9:�07�5�>5>4�E)*+,�K.�L�13;34�4��EC;43MNC93>03143:?�;�03�;:�C��4:�3E29:<��:22:94C?343�>�@:9�1:;;�O:9�43:?PQRSTUVQPRPWVS�RSX�TYTPZ[�QZ\RPZX�TPQRPZ]WZT,̂̂ �-.�B:;;�O:9�4��4:��?>C9��;:1�;3_�0��?0�9��3:?�;�49�?>2:94�43:?�>5>4�E>�?��0>��9���009�>>�0�3?�0�<�;:2E�?4�0�13>3:?>,̂̂ �A.�*�<�;:2�49�?>2:94�43:?�>5>4�E�4:�>�9<���;;�0�E:�9�2831�2:2C;�43:?��9:C2>,̂̂ �F.�B9��4��2;�?>��?0�2�94?�9>832>�4:��449�14�3?<�>4E�?4�3?��;4�9?�43<��@C�;�<�831;�>��?0�3?@9�>49C14C9�

,̂̂ �G.�̀E2;�E�?4�O�>4�E�?���E�?4�29�1431�>�@:9�>4:9E�7�4�9�9C?:a��?0�3E2;�E�?4�43:?�:@��9��?�3?@9�>49C14C9�



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������

��������� !"#$�%��&'(�!�%���)�*+�,--�./��01�0+2�3�2145�46�7814�369:�248�29/�617��;<�=1>�8+�?�174�17��7-��@3�7-�ABC,��7-�DAC�8�6/12��EF;G�1726��8�H+�,--�IJ;�=1>�8�9K�84�7-+�>97��L1M���7-N96�3�-�8461�7�K�21>141�8+�O1-�7�F��=1>�8�9K�K6��P�58+�A97/�64�QI�=1>�8�9K�K9R6+>�7��-1/1-�-�69�-P�58�49�K6��P�58+�,--�FJ�=1>�8�9K�>�7��=�7���=�74��>97��K6��P�58+�?9-1K5�JS�K6��P�5�174�620�7��8+�,--�I�7�P�174�620�7��8+�,--�T;�=1>�8�9K�7�P�69�-P�5�2977�241978+�,--�TF�=1>�8�9K�4069R�0�>�7���--141978+�U72>R-��QJJ�69�-P�5�=1>�8�P140�=1796�P1-�717�N8�K�45�1=369/�=�748+�?9-1K5�QQI�174�68�241978

,163964�V�>�4�-W�XQ<<�Y1M�N��-�8461�7W�XQZ�<<�[6��P�5W�XJZI<<�U74�620�7��W�XQZ\<<�U74�68�24197W�XJ�S� ?�:96�O1-�717�N]�P�V9�-P�5W�XFZ;<<� ?�7���=�74��7-�B3�6�41978W�X�Z;<<� ?1796�O1-�717�W�XJZQ<<�V�1>69�-�V�>�4�-W�XQ<<�4̂R-1�8NB40�6W�X�<�C6�7814W�XQJZT<<�

_̀ abcdbe�_̀ abfegdhibj�dkilhmk�nopo�qgf�rgssglfjt
�'�)"*�uvw�xyzzy{|



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������ �������� !"#$%�&'(�)%(%*+,#&'�),-.%/+*



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������� ����� ��!"#$%&'()�*$+,-.)'

/0123445617

80749:;</1

=>13?@>AB>:;<

C23B7�;< D=0A>CE>

D344302?;<

=3F>:B7�;<

@9?G:07�;<
8:0FH>�;< I0E>A?�@9:A>:?�;<

50:?9A?�CE> J:3K>�;<
L3BM2344>:;<

;0BN2>44�;< ;9N:;<

L0:4�;<

;0<A9:�;<

@>AB>:FH:G;<

J3OF7;<

CP:3K0;<
JHK6>7>5617

Q?B:0A<>:;<
=>9A0:<?FH:G;<

/Q4</B0B>;<

C463:>�;<
D3AKN>?B>:�;<

=3BN9R943?�;<

S2>:04<5617
/B>4M>:�;<T9:BN1>?BJ4E<U3?N>:�;<

T�I3GN�/B

QR9??H2�;HA�;<

/H443E0AB�CE>
;9F>:B?;< T�@0??0<7�CE>

I70BB?�;<

J91B91A;<

J3G;HA/9HBN;<V>29:>
?B;<

@>AB:04�@944>G>�;<

DW8NCE>

L34F9H:A>�;<

D046>:;<
X:9E>�@3B7�;<

JH:AB�59A<�;<

DI>A<>:?9A;< Y9:?>�;<
;><J0A6;<

Y3A6�/B:>>B�;<

Z0A?Z044>7;</Q4<[@I17J3GD04AHB;<
C4H2@:>>6V:

\A<H?B:304�5617

/K39B9V0:F7;<

@N>?N3:>;<
@N>::7J9BB92;<

J0?34]D>?B>:A�;<=02F>:B;<

S�=3E3AG?B9A�CE> ;>PHG>>�;<

YK63A4>7CE>

TQ4</B0B>;<

U3?N3AG>:�;<

D9:BN3AGB9A;<

D3AKN>?B>:536>

=9K6F9H:A>�;<

VHF43A�;< @40:6�/B0B>�;</HAFH:7;<

T9:B9A�;<

Q4>AB0AG7;3E>:;<

X:9E>R9:B;<

Y344?�;<
@4>E>40A<�CE>

I0:BP9:<�;<

S�W8N�CE>

I99E>:;<

;>PHG>>�;<�/1

8:>AB9A�;<
/012344�;<

/H223B;</1 Y3A6�/B�/1
X>A<>:;<

I07<>A;HA;<

@>AB>:�Z3440G>�;<

8:97�;<
I0:4>2;<

Q43E>�X:>>A�;<

C20A<0]T9:BN>:A;<

T�8N:>>�Ĵ/�_�L�;<
Y344>:]50H4;<

T�D0GG9A>:�;<

I92>�;<
;3KN0:<?9A;< 53K6>:3AGB9A;<

T�/>KB39A�=3A>�;<

V0:F7@:>>6V:

D99<B91A�;<

I>0<4>7?Y344;</1
/�/>KB39A�=3A>�;< TQ4<[@I17@9A<3B�;<

I9:?>?N9>�;<

/B>02B91A;<

D34?9A;<

U0AKN>:;<

;3E>:;<

`
8N>�3AP9:20B39A�?N91A�9A�BN3?�20R�3?�K92R34><�P:92�E0:39H??9H:K>?�20<>�0E0340F4>�B9�H?�1N3KN�1>�F>43>E>�B9�F>�:>430F4>aTbcC:KX\/c@Q;ScY85cdedec;>R9:Bcdede�Y85�ffgfha2O<V>K>2F>:�ded[

i j klmnopqrstuvwvsr�xyzzvryz{|�xyt{uz}~uvyt���������}{����vr��z�t{vu�xyzzvryz{�y}u�s�{u��v���x���~vu���z�t{vu�xyzzvryz���y}u��s{u��v���x���~vu���z�t{vu�xyzzvryz���u�sz��zs�v}���z�t{vu�q��zy�s�stu{�yzu�s�{u��v���x���~vu���z�t{vu�xyzzvryz� �u}r��xyzzvryzxyzzvryz{�wyz��}zu�sz��u}r�|
��yrs��tr�zy}us���v�t�stu�uy��s�vrstuvwvsr����{s��z�us���uszt�uv�s{��t���{v{��ts�xyzzvryz�uy��s�~yt{uz}~usr����������uy��s�vrstuvwvsr����{s��z�us���uszt�uv�s{��t���{v{�������� ¡¢£¤�¥¦§����̈£©ª£����«̈©�ª�«�ª£̈¬��£�®¡̈ª�



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������� �������� !"#$$%&'�(#)*$+,-



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

������� ����� ��!"#$%&'())*+,�-$+.*+,�/($0)123



������������	
��
�������������	��������������������	��

�������

������ ��! !�"�"�#��$� #��"#%��&'()*+)�,�(-�./*,�0*,,1(2-2�3�42-52(�-5��6�7�4�3�2,8*/-�(-�2(�-5��9�)�+*8,�(-�*.�-523�8+�(:��(9�2-�23�-5/*1�5�-5�2/��0-2*(3:��(9�-5*3��*.�*-5�/�/��2*(�+�8+�((2(��8�/-(�/3:�-5�-�2,8+�,�(-�-2*(�42++�*001/;�67<�=�42++�4*/>�42-5�3-�-���(9�+*0�+��*)�/(,�(-3��(9�/��2*(�+�8+�((2(��8�/-(�/3�-*��?�01-��-5��3-/�-��2�3�29�(-2@�9;�A52+��2-�23��3-2,�-�9�-5�-�-5��8/*B�0-3�29�(-2@�9�2(�-523�6C��42++�D��42-52(��?8�0-�9��)�2+�D+��/�3*1/0�3�DE�-5��E��/�FGHG:�38�02@0�.1(92(��5�3�(*-�E�-�D��(��++*0�-�9�-*�,*3-�*.�-5��8/*B�0-3;�A5�(�7I7C:�=7CJ:�I=C:�*/�+*0�+��*)�/(,�(-3�9�029��-*�3�01/���(9�0*,,2-�.1(92(��.*/�-5��9�32�(��(9�0*(3-/10-2*(�*.���8/*B�0-:�-5��8/*B�0-�23�-5�(��99�9�-*�-5��C/�(38*/-�-2*(�',8/*)�,�(-��/*�/�,�KC'�L:��(9�8/*�/�,,�9�.*/�0*(3-/10-2*(;�6�(E�+*0�+��*)�/(,�(-3��+3*�,�2(-�2(�-5�2/�*4(�=�82-�+�',8/*)�,�(-3��/*�/�,�K='�L:�45205�29�(-2@�3�8/*B�0-3�42-52(�-5��+*0�+�B1/23920-2*(�42-5�0*,,2--�9�.1(92(�;C*�,��31/��3100�33�*.�-5��6C�:�67<�=�81D+235�3��(��((1�+�/�8*/-�0�/9�-5�-�29�(-2@�3�2.�-5��/��2*(�23�*(�-/�0>�.*/�/��052(��-5���3-�D+235�9�-�/��-3�.*/���05�*.�-5��*DB�0-2)�3��3�+23-�9�2(�=5�8-�/��;�C523�23�9*(��DE�0*,8�/2(��01//�(-�9�-��-*�-5��D�(05,�/>3��(9�-�/��-3:�-*��33�33�2.�-5��/��2*(�23�,*)2(��2(�-5��/2�5-�92/�0-2*(:��(9�*(�-/�0>�-*�,��-�-5��35*/-M��(9�+*(�N-�/,�-�/��-3;



�

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456� 789:;<=8>9>?=:�@=A?BC�D=EE?>>FF�789:;<=8>9>?=:�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF�D=EEJ:?>C�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF�KL5+6� M?BN�O?AAP�789:;<=8>9>?=:�Q>JHC�R?8FB>=8�ST4U6� G<8?A�VVP�VWVX�YZ[\U]46� @8=<=;FH�̂F;=AJ>?=:�7_X_VX̀�aT2.bcd1e�+5Lf]�].-bg,c,�Yc/,,ch�f.gdija��� 7kF�<8=<=;FH�̂F;=AJ>?=:�7_X_VX�l?AA�J<H9>F�>kF�Fm?;>?:n�op̂ @D�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�@=A?BCq�@8=I?H?:n�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�k9;�9�I98?F>C�=r�sF:Fr?>;�89:n?:n�r8=E�?E<8=I?:n�;9rF>Ct�<8=E=>?:n�9A>F8:9>?IF�E=HF;�=r�>89:;<=8>9>?=:P�>kF8Fr=8F�?E<8=I?:n�9?8�uJ9A?>C�9:H�8FHJB?:n�B=:nF;>?=:t���F:B=J89n?:n�<kC;?B9A�9B>?I?>C�>=�9AA=l�r=8�kF9A>k?F8�8F;?HF:>;t�<8=I?H?:n�9BBF;;�9:H�B=::FB>?=:;�r=8�<F=<AF�lk=�B9::=>�=8�H=�:=>�l9:>�>=�H8?IF�>=�<A9BF;�v?:BAJH?:n�Bk?AH8F:P�;F:?=8;P�=8�<F=<AF�l?>k�H?;9s?A?>?F;wt�9:H�;>8F:n>kF:?:n�FB=:=E?B�n8=l>k�9:H�;>9s?A?>C�r=8�B=EEJ:?>?F;�9:H�8Fn?=:;q��7kF�VWVX_VWxW�oF>8=<=A?>9:�789:;<=8>9>?=:�@A9:�vo7@w�?:BAJHF;�E9:C�;>89>Fn?F;�l?>k�8Fn98H�>=�Fm<9:H?:n�s?NF�9:H�<FHF;>8?9:�?:r89;>8JB>J8F�9:H�?E<8=I?:n�>kF�;9rF>C�=r�>kF�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�;C;>FEq�7_X_VX�rJ8k>F8;�>kF;F�;>89>Fn?F;�sC�<8=I?H?:n�8F;=J8BF;�l?>k�8Fn98H�>=�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�9:H�8FuJ?8?:n�9AA�<8=yFB>;�8FBF?I?:n�op̂ @D_9>>8?sJ>9sAF�rJ:H?:n�>=�sF�sJ?A>�9;�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;q�7kF�H89r>�=r�>kF�<=A?BC�l9;�<8F;F:>FH�>=�>kF�GB>?IF�789:;<=8>9>?=:�D=EE?>>FFP�>kF�D=EEJ:?>C�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FFP�9:H�>kF�789:;<=8>9>?=:�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF�?:�zFs8J98C�VWVXq�7kF�H89r>�<=A?BC�l9;�9A;=�8FAF9;FH�r=8�<JsA?B�B=EEF:>�9:H�B?8BJA9>FH�>=�A=B9A�n=IF8:EF:>;�9:H�=>kF8�;>9NFk=AHF8;q�D=EEF:>;�9:H�rFFHs9BN�=:�>kF�<=A?BC�lF8F�9BBF<>FH�sF>lFF:�{9:J98C�VVP�VWVX�9:H�zFs8J98C�V|P�VWVXq�7kF8F�lF8F�9�>=>9A�=r�VW�B=EEF:>;P�9AA�?:�;J<<=8>�=r�>kF�<=A?BC�J<H9>F�9:H�B=:BF<>�=r�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;q�o9:C�=r�>kF�B=EEF:>;�;JnnF;>FH�9HH?>?=:;�>=�>kF�<=A?BC�>=�9A?n:�l?>k�>kF�QE98>�O8=l>k�GEF8?B9�z89EFl=8N�r=8�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�@=A?B?F;q�7kF;F�9HH?>?=:;�lF8F�H?;BJ;;FH�F98AC�=:�l?>k�>kF�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�@=A?BC�}=8N?:n�O8=J<P�9:H�?>�l9;�HF>F8E?:FH�>k9>�>kFC�l=JAH�sF�B=:;?HF8FH�?:�E=8F�HF>9?A�?:�>kF�:Fm>�<=A?BC�8FI?Flq�M=�Bk9:nF;�lF8F�E9HF�>=�>kF�BJ88F:>�H89r>�<=A?BC�9;�9�8F;JA>�=r�>kF;F�B=EEF:>;q�7k?;�~�������op̂ @D�D=E<AF>F�Q>8FF>;�@=A?BC�l?AA�9<<AC�>=�9AA�<8=yFB>;�;FAFB>FH�r=8�>kF?8�r?8;>�B=EE?>EF:>�=r�op̂ @D_9>>8?sJ>9sAF�rFHF89A�rJ:H?:n�;>98>?:n�l?>k�>kF�VWVX_VWVx�9<<A?B9>?=:�BCBAFq�@8=yFB>;�9<<8=IFH�r=8�op̂ @D_9>>8?sJ>9sAF�rFHF89A�rJ:H?:n�<8?=8�>=�VWVX�98F�8FuJ?8FH�>=�



�

�

��������������	
���������������������
��������������������	
����������� �������!������� ����
�������"#"$%�&�������������� �'�������
���������(���)���������������*�����(� � !�������*�	��������������)��������
������'������������ �'�������*��*������+,����(���(���-��� %�&�� �����
��)���������

������������	�.������  ��������*� ��������'�'������'�����*������ %�����������������������
������'�������������	
����������� �����������"#$#!� �)��������������������		������ ���)�����
���������������	
����������� �
������ !��� ������� !������������� %�,�
��'��	������(/����)�����
������������&��� ��(�� �� ������*����'�$##0��'�������	�	(�����		������ ����
���*���	
����� ����� �
������ ����
������ ����������������� �����	��� �(�����������"#1#%��&����)�������� ��&���(/����)�!������� ��''������)����(�������  � ��	����������*�)���	��� �������
����� ��
����  � !�� ������ ��������*������������	
����� ����� �
������ !�����������*�
��/���� 
�� �� ����(��	��������)���)������� �*���*������������� %���,�����	���2����
� ����� ��������&+3+"3���



���������	
�����

���������
���
�����
��������
 �!���"
����#$%

&'���(�)
*+,
�-./012-*.*32/
425367
82993**,,
2:
*+,
;3<��+32
�,=32/.5
45.//3/=
829930032/
30
<,03=/.*,<
.0
*+,
;,*-21253*./
45.//3/=
�-=./3>.*32/
?;4�@
:2-
*+,
825A9BA0
9,*-21253*./
15.//3/=
.-,.C
./<

&'���(�)
*+,
D��DED
;,*-21253*./
�-./012-*.*32/
45./
?;�4@
3/65A<,0
0*-.*,=3,0
:2-
3915,9,/*3/=
0.:,
B3F,
./<
1,<,0*-3./
3/:-.0*-A6*A-,
*+-2A=+2A*
*+,
-,=32/C
./<

&'���(�)
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
.-,
.
G,55�,0*.B530+,<
B,0*
1-.6*36,
:2-
0.:,
./<
629:2-*.B5,
*-.H,5
B7
.55
A0,-0
2:
-2.<G.70)
3/65A<3/=
B3676530*0)
1AB536
*-./012-*.*32/
./<
06+225
BA0
-3<,-0)
./<
1,<,0*-3./0
2:
.55
.=,0
./<
.B353*3,0C
./<

&'���(�)
*+,
(6*3H,
�-./012-*.*32/
45./
?(�4@
1-2H3<,0
*2250
./<
-,02A-6,0
*2
=A3<,
526.5
.=,/63,0
3/
*+,
<,03=/
2:
82915,*,
�*-,,*0C
./<


&'���(�)
3/
DID
*+,
425367
82993**,,
2:
*+,
;3<��+32
�,=32/.5
45.//3/=
829930032/
?;��48@
.<21*,<
*+,
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367
B7
�,025A*32/
��J�ID)
./<
.<21*,<
./
A1<.*,<
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367
3/
DI
B7
�,025A*32/
��I�IC
./<


&'���(�)
*+,
425363,0
:2-
;./.=3/=
;��48�(**-3BA*.B5,
KA/<0
-,LA3-,0
1-2M,6*0
*+.*
-,6,3H,
:A/<3/=
*2
629157
G3*+
*+,
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367C
./<

&'���(�)
A/<,-
*+,
=A3<./6,
2:
.
IJ�9,9B,-
G2-F3/=
=-2A1
G3*+
-,1-,0,/*.*32/
:-29
9,9B,-
=2H,-/9,/*0
./<
*+,
8,/*-.5
�+32
�-./03*
(A*+2-3*7)
0*.::
1-,1.-,<
./
A1<.*,<
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367)
G+36+
BA35<0
A12/
*+,
1-,H32A0
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367
B7
3/62-12-.*3/=
*+,
5.*,0*
/.*32/.5
=A3<./6,
./<
B,0*
1-.6*36,0C
./<

&'���(�)
.
1AB536
6299,/*
1,-32<
2/
*+,
A1<.*,
*2
*+,
;��48
82915,*,
�*-,,*0
425367
G.0
+,5<
B,*G,,/
N./A.-7
)
D�)
./<
K,B-A.-7
O)
D�C
./<

&'���(�)
*+,
8299A/3*7
(<H302-7
82993**,,
.*
3*0
9,,*3/=
2/
(1-35
P)
D�)
./<
*+,

�-./012-*.*32/
(<H302-7
82993**,,
.*
3*0
9,,*3/=
2/
;.7
I)
D�)
-,6299,/<,<
.11-2H.5
2:

*+30
-,025A*32/C
/2G
*+,-,:2-,


 




���������	
����
����
�

��
��
��������
��
���
����� ��������
 ���!�
!�""�����
�#
���
$%&'()%(
*+,%(-./
0/.--%-,
1($$%22%(-3

�456789
:;
 �<=6
76
=>8?6@
6<4
=66=5<4>
"�� !
!8A?B464
�6C446@
 8B75D;

�456789
E;

 �<=6
76
C458AA49>@
5496C=B
�<78
F8G4C9A496@
H@4
6<4
"�� !
!8A?B464
�6C446@
 8B75D
79
?B=9979FI
>4G4B8?79FI
589@6CH5679FI
=9>
8?4C=679F
=9>
A=796=7979F
6C=9@?8C6=6789
79JC=@6CH56HC4
?C8K456@;

�456789
L;
 �<=6
6<4
?C7957?B4@
=9>
?C854>HC4@
8J
6<4
"�� !
!8A?B464
�6C446@
 8B75D
M7BB
N4
C4G74M4>
=9>
4G=BH=64>
4G4CD
6M8
D4=C@
=9>
N4
A8>7J74>
=@
M=CC=964>;


�456789
L;
 �<=6
6<7@
58AA76644
J79>@
=9>
>464CA794@
6<=6
=BB
J8CA=B
>4B7N4C=6789@
=9>
=56789@
8J
6<7@
58AA76644
58954C979F
=9>
C4B=679F
68
6<4
=>8?6789
8J
6<7@
C4@8BH6789
M4C4
6=O49
79
8?49
A44679F@
8J
6<7@
58AA76644;


 PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP
!<C7@
�A8C8@4
QC88A@I
!<=7C
$RS'(TRU
*VWRUXYZ
0ZYXXRXW
1U[[R\\RUX

 PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP

�=64



 C4?=C4>
ND]
 C8FC=AA79F
�4?=C6A496
�6=JJ


�66=5<A496]
"�� !
!8A?B464
�6C446@
 8B75D





 
 
 
 
MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
May 2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



  

May 2024 2 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

 

Section 1. Complete Streets Defined .............................................................................................................. 3 

Section 2. Background and Vision ................................................................................................................... 3 

Vision Statement ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 3. Purpose .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Section 4. Applicability and Review Process ................................................................................................... 4 

Complete Streets Review Process .......................................................................................................... 4 

Section 5. Policy .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Requirements .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Recommendations ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Section 6. Appeal Process .............................................................................................................................. 7 

Section 7. Design ............................................................................................................................................ 7 

Design Criteria ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Design Guides ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Additional FHWA Resources: .................................................................................................................. 9 

Section 8. Implementation and Evaluation ...................................................................................................... 9 

Key Term Definitions from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) ...................................................... 10 

 

  



  

May 2024 3 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Section 1. Complete Streets Defined 
Complete Streets are roadways, highways, bridges, and other transportation facilities that are designed, 
implemented, operated, and maintained in an equitable and context-sensitive manner so that people of all 
ages, incomes, and abilities can use them safely. These streets consider the needs of all people, including, 
but not limited to, people walking, bicycling, using shared mobility devices and assistive devices, using 
transit and riding school buses, driving, and operating commercial and emergency vehicles.  

Please refer to the appendix for key term definitions. 

Section 2. Background and Vision 
The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) supports the development of a safe and 
sustainable transportation system that ensures accessibility for everyone using the transportation system. 
As Central Ohio experiences historic population growth, a regional Complete Streets policy can help to 
guide public transportation infrastructure investments in a manner that supports regional safety, multimodal 
mobility, and sustainability goals while accommodating population growth and shifts in development. This 
policy builds upon previous efforts to develop a comprehensive, multimodal transportation system and 
promotes integration with sustainable land use development.  

This policy is consistent with regional goals and objectives established in the Metropolitan Transportation 
Plan (MTP), the Regional Sustainability Agenda (RSA), the Active Transportation Plan (ATP), the Central 
Ohio Transportation Safety Plan (COTSP), and other key regional plans and policies. The policy aligns with 
development principles established through the insight2050 initiative and sustainability principles outlined 
through the Sustaining Scioto Adaptive Management Plan.  

Vision Statement 
This Complete Streets Policy aims to enhance the quality of life in Central Ohio through improvements to 
transportation safety, equity, mobility, accessibility, connectivity, sustainability, and resiliency as well as 
public health and economic vitality. This vision will be implemented through street design that is context 
sensitive and incorporates principles and practices that focus the function of a street around the safe 
movement of people, balancing mobility for everyone with safe and appropriate travel speeds. 

Section 3. Purpose  
The Complete Streets policy outlines the requirements and recommendations for project development to 
ensure implementation of the vision set forth in Section 2, Background and Vision, as well as established 
regional goals and objectives.   

The following principles guide this policy and serve as the basis for the recommendations and requirements 
established in Section 5, Policy.  

Complete Streets: 

1. Serve people of all ages and abilities using all modes of transportation, as well as the movement of 
goods, without loss of life or serious injury. 

2. Are key to creating a Safe System, and specifically incorporate the six principles of the Safe System 
Approach.  

3. Consider not only the presence of a transportation facility for vulnerable road users, but also the 
level of comfort and safety provided by that facility.  

4. Provide safe and comfortable accommodation for vulnerable road users both along and across the 
right-of-way where necessary and appropriate. 

5. Require connected travel networks, best-practice design criteria, and context-sensitive approaches. 



  

May 2024 4 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Section 4. Applicability and Review Process 
MORPC will promote the Complete Streets concept throughout the region and, therefore, recommends that 
all local jurisdictions and the state adopt comprehensive Complete Streets policies consistent with the 
MORPC Complete Streets Policy. MORPC will seek incorporation of the Complete Streets concept and 
policy into the development of all transportation infrastructures within the region at all phases of their 
development to ensure that all projects throughout our region accommodate people using all modes of 
transportation.  

This Complete Streets Policy applies to all projects receiving MORPC-attributable federal funding, including 
the new construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, repair, maintenance, or planning of roadways, trails, 
bridges, and other transportation facilities. Projects on facilities where walking and bicycling is prohibited by 
law are still required to comply with the policy as it pertains to connections across them, such as 
underpasses and overpasses, as well as other modes of transportation that may travel along them, such as 
public transit. Additionally, projects limited exclusively to maintenance-type activities are required to comply 
with the policy but may be permitted to include low-cost accommodations that can feasibly be incorporated 
within the extent of the maintenance project.  

All projects selected for their first commitment of MORPC-attributable federal funding starting with the 2024-
2025 application cycle shall adhere to this policy and are required to follow the Complete Streets review 
process as detailed below. Projects approved for MORPC-attributable federal funding prior to 2024 are 
required to comply with the previous Complete Streets Policy, adopted in 2021. However, those projects 
should consider complying with this updated Complete Streets Policy where possible and are requested to 
provide related information during Commitment Updates, as required by the Policies for Managing MORPC-
Attributable Funds. Projects utilizing any other funding sources are also encouraged to adhere to this policy. 

Complete Streets Review Process 
The following steps are part of the general review process of MORPC-funded projects.  

1. Step 1: As described in the Policies for Managing MORPC-Attributable Funds, MORPC staff will 
host an applicant workshop following the announcement of the solicitation of applications. The 
workshop will include an overview of the Complete Streets Policy and provide an opportunity for 
project sponsors to discuss the policy requirements with MORPC staff. 

2. Step 2: MORPC staff perform an initial screening of new funding requests through the attributable 
funding application process, which will include review of the proposed project’s compliance with the 
Complete Streets Policy. Staff will be available throughout the funding application process to provide 
technical assistance related to the Complete Streets Policy requirements. Compliance with this 
Policy is a requirement for project eligibility and a factor in selection for funding. MORPC staff will 
provide relevant feedback to applicants regarding their project’s compliance with the Policy, and any 
potential revisions needed for their final application. 

3. Step 3: Project sponsors applying for MORPC-attributable federal funding are asked to acknowledge 
that they have read the Complete Streets Policy, and they must describe how their project will 
address the policy requirements. This currently includes listing the pedestrian, bicycle, and transit 
components that will be included in the proposed project. If the project does not provide any of these 
facilities, the project sponsor must explain if and what alternatives were considered and why they 
cannot be provided. MORPC staff will provide a summary of this information to the Attributable 
Funds Committee (AFC), who will ultimately determine the final funding commitments.  

 



  

May 2024 5 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

4. Step 4: After MORPC has committed funding to a project, MORPC staff will review the project 
throughout the project development process to provide assistance where needed and ensure that 
the requirements of the Complete Streets Policy are met. Due to the flexibility of the policy and the 
variety of approaches that may be taken to design a Complete Street, MORPC staff will work with 
the project sponsor throughout the project development process to find an acceptable design 
solution for both parties. Should a project design change significantly from the original scope (and 
funding application) to no longer be in compliance with the Complete Streets Policy, the project 
sponsor may be required to submit a new funding application. The AFC will determine if and when a 
new application is required.  

Section 5. Policy 
MORPC requires that all projects receiving MORPC-attributable federal funding adhere to this policy. Any 
project receiving MORPC-attributable funding must meet the requirements outlined below. Each of these 
requirements addresses one or more of the principles established in Section 3, Purpose, and helps Central 
Ohio to meet established regional goals and objectives. Projects utilizing any other funding sources are also 
encouraged to adhere to this policy.  

Requirements  
1. Each project shall use the most appropriate, context-sensitive design standards and procedures.  

For projects using MORPC-attributable federal funding, it will be necessary to meet or exceed 
standards and procedures acceptable to the Ohio and U.S. Departments of Transportation, as well 
as comply with State and Federal laws and regulations. Related information and resources can be 
found in Section 7, Design, regarding design criteria, design guidelines, and additional best practice 
design standards.  

2. Designs shall include accommodation of people using all modes of transportation and be sensitive to 
the context of the project setting (existing land uses, proposed land uses, etc.). It is important to note 
that Complete Streets may look different for every project and road type. However, every project 
shall be designed to optimize the level of comfort and safety for the people who are most vulnerable 
on our roadways, with due consideration of issues such as accessibility, functionality, and 
connectivity. The tools and resources in the Active Transportation Plan (ATP) provide the relevant 
guidance for determining appropriate facility types based on roadway conditions. 

3. People of all ages and abilities using all modes of transportation shall be accommodated during the 
entire life cycle of a project, including planning, design, construction, operations, and maintenance. 

a. This includes providing accommodations for people using all modes of transportation to 
continue to use the road safely and efficiently during any construction or repair work that 
infringes on the right-of-way and/or sidewalk. 

4. Safety shall be prioritized for the people who are most vulnerable on our roadways. Safety 
improvements for vulnerable road users will not be compromised to achieve an improved level of 
service for less vulnerable users. 

5. Consideration shall be given to street design that encourages safe travel speeds. Speed 
management and traffic calming elements including, but not limited to, road diets, medians, 
narrowing of lane widths, curb bump-outs at intersections, roundabouts, etc. should be considered 
where safe and appropriate. 

  



  

May 2024 6 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

6. Locations for enhanced street crossings shall be identified throughout the length of a project. The 
design of those crossings should include proven safety countermeasures that ensure high visibility 
and safety for vulnerable road users crossing the street. 

7. A systems approach shall be used in developing every roadway project to ensure regional 
connectivity of Complete Streets elements throughout the entirety of the project limits.  

a. If there is an existing facility or another project planned or in development near this project, 
the two shall be coordinated to ensure consistency and future connectivity between the 
facilities serving the corridor. 

b. Logical termini shall be chosen to include connections through “pinch points,” such as 
overpasses, railroad crossings, and bridges. Logical termini shall also be designed to provide 
safe and adequate transitions at facility end points. 

c. If the project is adjacent to a destination point, such as a school, recreational facility, 
shopping center, hospital, office complex, or transit facility, the project shall provide the 
opportunity for the destination to have access to the project’s pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities. 

8. Every project shall identify future planned facilities or services and likely future demand for all modes 
of transportation within the project limits. Where feasible, projects should make the necessary 
modifications to existing infrastructure to accommodate these future planned facilities and services, 
and the project design shall not preclude the provision of future improvements. 

9. Every project shall involve the local transit agency in the design process to ensure that sufficient 
accommodation for transit vehicles and access to transit facilities is provided. The project sponsor 
shall engage the local transit agency at the start of the Project Development Process and provide 
the opportunity for the transit agency to participate throughout the entire process. 

a. Public transit facilities shall be designed with the goals of Complete Streets in mind by 
including sidewalks, bicycle connections, or secure bicycle parking, among others. 

b. When designing a facility that includes or crosses an existing or future transit route, ensure 
that the appropriate pedestrian and ADA access is provided to and from the transit stops. 

Recommendations 
The recommendations outlined below should also be considered, as appropriate to the context of a project.  

1. Street furniture, such as bike racks, benches or mobility hubs, should be considered as part of all 
projects, where appropriate, as long as they do not impede any user. 

2. Project sponsors should consider including street trees and landscape components, with careful 
analysis of tree species, site, and design considerations. Considerations should include, but are not 
limited to, providing adequate space for tree roots to grow and selecting trees that require less 
maintenance and do not inhibit the movement of people using adjacent sidewalks or pathways. 

a. Any project that requires removal of existing trees as part of construction should provide an 
equal or greater number of replacement trees.  

3. Each project design should be coordinated with appropriate access management strategies. Access 
management strategies should consider the placement of sidewalks and ramps to eliminate sight 
distance issues. 

  

https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures


  

May 2024 7 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

4. Although this policy focuses primarily on the engineering aspects of roadway projects, the project 
sponsor should provide education, engagement, encouragement, and equitable enforcement 
strategies during and after the project. The education component should include government 
officials, developers, the public, and other relevant parties.  

5. While this policy focuses on transportation, local governments should review their related policies, 
regulations, and standards to ensure that they are complementary to the development of Complete 
Streets. This includes land use and zoning policies, as well as building design and development 
standards, etc.  

6. Local agencies should regularly update transportation design standards and procedures, and 
coordinate with partners to ensure compatibility in those standards and procedures throughout the 
region. Agencies should also regularly train staff on any updates to the standards and procedures so 
that they can adhere to them appropriately.  

7. Local governments are encouraged to adopt their own Complete Streets policies, consistent with this 
regional policy and federal and state design standards. State governments should work with the 
local Metropolitan Planning Organizations to ensure consistency in policies at the state, regional, 
and local level. 

Section 6. Appeal Process 
Project sponsors may request an exemption or re-review of their projects by the Appeals Committee if they 
cannot reach an agreement with MORPC staff regarding project compliance with the Complete Streets 
policy. The Appeals Committee is composed of six (6) representatives and will meet on an “as needed” 
basis. The voting membership consists of three (3) representatives from the Attributable Funds Committee 
(AFC) and three (3) representatives from the Active Transportation Committee (ATC). When an appeal is 
filed, the chairs of the AFC and ATC will appoint their respective representatives to the Appeals Committee. 

MORPC staff will review the requests initially and provide a report with recommendations to the committee 
in advance of each meeting. The applicant will have the opportunity to review the report and add comments 
to it prior to its submittal to the committee. During each meeting, the committee shall discuss and evaluate 
the request(s) and vote on a recommendation. The committee may invite the applicant to attend the 
meeting(s). A vote of at least four (4) committee members is needed to act. If no agreement can be reached, 
the project sponsor must propose an alternative that can obtain the votes necessary for approval. Members 
with conflicts of interest on a particular project before the committee must recuse themselves from 
deliberation on that project.  

Instead of an exemption, the Appeals Committee may also suggest a lesser level of accommodation or 
accommodation on a parallel route. All appeals and resulting decisions will be kept on record and made 
publicly available.  

Section 7. Design 
Project sponsors are required to work with MORPC and Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) staff  
to determine the most appropriate design for a project and to ensure that the design does not conflict with 
State or Federal laws and regulations. For example, all project designs must comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act as well as the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). National best practice 
design guidance, standards, and recommendations should be referenced in the design and implementation 
of Complete Streets but may require the use of design exceptions or requests for experimentation. 

  



  

May 2024 8 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Design Criteria 
ODOT has developed manuals for use on transportation projects in the state of Ohio that comply with 
Federal laws and regulations and compile the relevant criteria established in various national manuals, 
guides, and related resources. These ODOT manuals are intended to minimize the need for referencing 
multiple resources, and tailor design criteria to the needs of communities and transportation facilities in Ohio.  

The following ODOT manuals should be used for designing projects that receive MORPC-Attributable Funds: 

• Location and Design Manual, Volume 1 – Roadway Design 
• Multimodal Design Guide 

Design Guides 
When receiving MORPC-Attributable Funding for a project that is on the National Highway System (NHS), a 
local agency must seek approval from ODOT to use a locally preferred roadway design guide that differs 
from the ODOT manuals. The locally preferred guide must be officially adopted by the local agency and 
recognized by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) as an “alternate roadway design guide.” If the 
project is not on the NHS, a local agency does not have to obtain approval from ODOT to use a locally 
preferred roadway design guide, so long as it is adopted by the local agency and it is recognized by FHWA. 

The following publications are recognized by FHWA as alternate roadway design guides, as of November 
2023, and may be used in project design to develop Complete Streets: 

General Street Design 
• Global Designing Cities Initiative (GDCI)  

o Global Street Design Guide, 2016 and the Designing Streets for Kids supplement, 2020 
• Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  

o Designing Walkable Urban Thoroughfares: A Context Sensitive Approach, 2010  
and the supplemental Implementing Context Sensitive Design Handbook, 2017  

• NACTO Urban Street Design Guide, 2013 

Pedestrian Facilities 
• AASHTO Guide for the Planning, Design, and Operation of Pedestrian Facilities, 2021 

Bicycle Facilities 
• AASHTO Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, 2012 
• NACTO Urban Bikeway Design Guide, 2014 
• NACTO Don't Give Up at the Intersection, 2019 
• NACTO Designing for All Ages & Abilities, 2014 

Transit Facilities 
• AASHTO Guide for Geometric Design of Transit Facilities on Highways and Streets, 2014 
• NACTO Transit Street Design Guide, 2016 

More information about these requirements and relevant publications can be found in the Design Standards, 
FAST Act and Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act Provisions memo on the FHWA website: 
www.fhwa.dot.gov/design/standards/231116.cfm   

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://globaldesigningcities.org/publication/global-street-design-guide/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://globaldesigningcities.org/wp-content/uploads/guides/designing-streets-for-kids.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://ecommerce.ite.org/IMIS/ItemDetail?iProductCode=RP-036A-E
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://ecommerce.ite.org/IMIS/ItemDetail?iProductCode=IR-145-E
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://store.transportation.org/Item/CollectionDetail?ID=224
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://store.transportation.org/Item/CollectionDetail?ID=116
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://nacto.org/publication/urban-bikeway-design-guide/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://nacto.org/publication/dont-give-up-at-the-intersection/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://nacto.org/publication/urban-bikeway-design-guide/designing-ages-abilities-new/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/exit.cfm?link=https://store.transportation.org/Item/CollectionDetail?ID=133
https://nacto.org/publication/transit-street-design-guide/
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/design/standards/231116.cfm


  

May 2024 9 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Additional FHWA Resources: 
Other FHWA publications that support the development of complete streets are also available for reference. 
However, these are not officially recognized by the FHWA as alternate roadway design guides. These 
publications include, but are not limited to: 

• Achieving Multimodal Networks: Applying Design Flexibility and Reducing Conflicts, 2016 
• Bikeway Selection Guide, 2019 
• Separated Bike Lanes Planning and Design Guide, 2015 
• Crosswalk Marking Selection Guide, 2023 
• Primer on Safe System Approach for Pedestrians and Bicyclists, 2021 
• Pedestrian and Bicyclist Road Safety Audit Guide and Prompt List, 2020 
• Global Benchmarking Report: Improving Pedestrian Safety on Urban Arterials, 2023 

Additional resources and publications can be found on the FHWA website: 
www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/publications  

Section 8. Implementation and Evaluation 
The Complete Streets Policy is part of MORPC’s planning process and project selection for MORPC-
attributable funding. The vision and goals of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), Active 
Transportation Plan (ATP), and other key regional plans informed the development of this policy and will 
also guide MORPC staff in review of project compliance with the policy. 

MORPC shall, at a minimum, evaluate this policy every two years in alignment with the updates to the 
Policies for Managing MORPC-Attributable Funds. The review will be completed in advance of or in tandem 
with updates to the Policies for Managing MORPC-Attributable Funds so that any changes to the Complete 
Streets Policy may be incorporated into that update. This evaluation may include recommendations for 
amendments to the Complete Streets Policy and subsequently be considered for adoption by the 
Transportation Policy Committee. 

In order to evaluate the progress resulting from the policy, as well as potential needs for updating the policy, 
MORPC staff will document information related to project compliance with the policy. This will include 
regular reports to the Transportation Advisory Committee and Active Transportation Committee on project 
progress through the Complete Streets Review Process, as well as summaries of the challenges 
encountered, and resolutions made throughout the review process. 
  

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/publications/multimodal_networks/
https://highways.dot.gov/sites/fhwa.dot.gov/files/2022-07/fhwasa18077.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/publications/separated_bikelane_pdg/page00.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/resources/crosswalk_marking_selection_guide.pdf
https://highways.dot.gov/sites/fhwa.dot.gov/files/2022-06/fhwasa21065.pdf
https://highways.dot.gov/sites/fhwa.dot.gov/files/2022-08/fhwasa20042.pdf
https://international.fhwa.dot.gov/programs/mrp/docs/FHWA-PL-23-006.pdf
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/bicycle_pedestrian/publications


  

May 2024 10 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Appendix 
Key Term Definitions from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
 

Context 
Sensitive 
Design 
(CSD) 

Context Sensitive Design is a design process that not only considers physical 
aspects or standard specifications of a transportation facility, but also the 
economic, social, and environmental resources in the community being served by 
that facility.  A CSD approach helps to ensure projects: 

• Are safe for all users. 
• Use a shared stakeholder vision as a basis for decisions and for solving 

problems that may arise. 
• Meet or exceed the expectations of both designers and stakeholders, 

thereby adding lasting value to the community, the environment, and the 
transportation system. 

• Demonstrate effective and efficient use of resources.1 

Context 
Sensitive 
Solutions 
(CSS) 

The Context Sensitive Solutions process, as defined by FHWA, is a collaborative, 
interdisciplinary, and holistic approach to the development of transportation 
projects. The CSS process involves all stakeholders, including community 
members, elected officials, interest groups, and affected local, state, and federal 
agencies. The CSS process values equally the needs of agency and community, 
considering all trade-offs in decision-making. 

The CSS process is guided by four core principles: 

• A shared stakeholder vision to provide a basis for decisions. 
• A comprehensive understanding of contexts. 
• Continuing communication and collaboration to achieve consensus. 
• Flexibility and creativity to shape effective transportation solutions, while 

preserving and enhancing community and natural environments.2 

Equity Equity in transportation seeks fairness in mobility and accessibility to meet the 
needs of all community members. A central goal of transportation equity is to 
facilitate social and economic opportunities by providing equitable levels of access 
to affordable and reliable transportation options based on the needs of the 
populations being served, particularly populations that are traditionally 
underserved.  

It is important to note that transportation equity does not mean equal. An equitable 
transportation plan considers the circumstances impacting a community's mobility 
and connectivity needs, and this information is used to determine the measures 
needed to develop an equitable transportation network.3 

 
1 Understanding CSD and CSS, www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/css/what_is_css/ 
2 Understanding CSD and CSS, www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/css/what_is_css/ 
3 Environmental Justice, Title VI, Non-Discrimination, and Equity, www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/environmental_justice/equity/ 
 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/css/what_is_css/
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/css/what_is_css/
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/environmental_justice/equity/


  

May 2024 11 MORPC Complete Streets Policy 
 

Key Term Definitions (Continued) 
 

Resilience Resilience is the ability to anticipate, prepare for, and adapt to changing conditions 
and withstand, respond to, and recover rapidly from disruptions. The Fixing 
America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, signed into law in December 2015, 
requires agencies to take resiliency into consideration during transportation 
planning processes.4 

Road User The term “road user” means a motorist, passenger, public transportation operator 
or user, truck driver, bicyclist, motorcyclist, or pedestrian, including a person with 
disabilities. (23 U.S.C. 148(a)(8)). 

Shared 
Mobility 

Shared mobility – the shared use of a vehicle, bicycle, or other mode – is an 
innovative transportation strategy that enables users to gain short-term access to 
transportation modes on an as-needed basis. The term shared mobility includes 
various forms of carsharing, bikesharing, ridesharing (carpooling and vanpooling), 
and on-demand ride services. It can also include alternative transit services, such 
as paratransit, shuttles, and private transit services (called microtransit), which can 
supplement fixed-route bus and rail services.5 

Sustainability Sustainability is often described using the “triple bottom line” concept, which 
includes giving consideration to three primary principles: Social, Environmental, 
and Economic. The goal of sustainability is the satisfaction of basic social and 
economic needs, both present and future, and the responsible use of natural 
resources, all while maintaining or improving the well-being of the environment on 
which life depends.6 

Vulnerable 
Road Users 

“Vulnerable road users” is a term applied to those most at risk in traffic. Thus, 
vulnerable road users are mainly those unprotected by an outside shield, namely 
pedestrians and two-wheelers, as they sustain a greater risk of injury in any 
collision against a vehicle and are therefore highly in need of protection against 
such collisions.7 

 

 
4 Resilience and Transportation Planning, www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/sustainability/resilience/publications/ratp/index.cfm 
5 Shared Mobility: Current Practices and Guiding Principles 
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop16022/fhwahop16022.pdf 
6 What is Sustainability? www.sustainablehighways.dot.gov/overview.aspx#quest1 
7 Safety of Vulnerable Road Users, https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/docs/oecd_safety.pdf 
 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/sustainability/resilience/publications/ratp/index.cfm
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop16022/fhwahop16022.pdf
http://www.sustainablehighways.dot.gov/overview.aspx#quest1
https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/docs/oecd_safety.pdf


�

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��456�� 789:;<=8>9>?=:�@=A?BC�D=EE?>>FF�D=EEG:?>C�HIJ?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF�789:;<=8>9>?=:�HIJ?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF��KL5+6�� M?BN�O?AAP�789:;<=8>9>?=:�Q>GIC�R?8FB>=8��ST4U6�� H<8?A�VVP�VWVX�YZ[\U]46�L,̂._3̀a.1�4bcbde6�fT2.g̀a1h�ij._aka,̂�l./�+010ha1h�+5Lj]bT̀ /̀am3̀0m_,�K312̂no�pJF8C�>q=�CF98;P�rst@D�;=A?B?>;�9<<A?B9>?=:;�u=8�rst@Dv9>>8?wG>9wAF�uFIF89A�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�uG:I?:xy�H<<8=z?E9>FAC�{X|�E?AA?=:�?;�9J9?A9wAF�9::G9AAC�>=�wF�9AA=B9>FI�>=�<8=}FB>;�?:�rst@D~;�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<A9::?:x�98F9y�rst@D�F;>9wA?;�F;�����������������������������������������������������������>=�xG?IF�>�F�;FAFB>?=:�=u�<8=}FB>;�>=�G;F�>�F;F�uG:I;y�tF;=AG>?=:�7v�vVX�9I=<>;�>�F����������>=�wF�G;FI�?:�>�F�G<B=E?:x�<8=}FB>�;=A?B?>9>?=:�BCBAFy���7�F�VWVXvVW�W�rF>8=<=A?>9:�789:;<=8>9>?=:�@A9:��r7@��?:BAGIF;�E9:C�;>89>Fx?F;�q?>��8Fx98I�>=�<�C;?B9A�<8F;F8J9>?=:P�Fuu?B?F:>�=<F89>?=:;P�9:I�;9uF>C�=u�>�F�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�;C;>FE�9A=:x�q?>��Fz<9:I?:x�w?NFP�<FIF;>8?9:P�>89:;?>P�u8F?x�>�9:I�8=9Iq9C�?:u89;>8GB>G8Fy�7�F����������wF?:x�9I=<>FI�wC�7v�vVX�uG8>�F8;�9AA�=u�>�F;F�r7@�;>89xF>x?F;�EC�E9N?:x�uG:I;�9J9?A9wAF�>=�A=B9A�}G8?;I?B>?=:;�>=�uG:I�<8=}FB>;�9II8F;;?:x�>�F;F�98F9;y��@8?=8�>=�u=8E9A�<8=}FB>�;=A?B?>9>?=:P�rst@D�8FJ?Fq;P�8FJ?;F;�9;�:FBF;;98CP�9:I�8F9I=<>;�>�F���������y�sJF8�>�F�A9;>�;FJF89A�E=:>�;P�>�F�H>>8?wG>9wAF��G:I;�D=EE?>>FF��H�D��EF>�>=�8FJ?Fq�9:I�G<I9>F�>�F���������y�7�F�I89u>;�=u�>�F�8FJ?;FI����������qF8F�9J9?A9wAF�=:�>�F�rst@D�qFw;?>F�9>��>><;���qqqyE=8<By=8x�<8=x89Ev;F8J?BF�E=8<Bv9>>8?wG>9wAFvuG:I?:xvu=8v>89:;<=8>9>?=:��u=8�<GwA?B�8FJ?Fq�9:I�B=EEF:>y�rst@D�9BBF<>FI�<GwA?B�B=EEF:>;�=:�>�F����������u8=E��9:G98C�VVP�VWVX�>�8=Gx���Fw8G98CP�VWVXy�D=EEF:>;�qF8F�8FBF?JFI�u8=E�=:F�B=EEF:>=8P�>�=Gx��>�F;F�B=EEF:>;�I?I�:=>�q9889:>�9II?>?=:9A�B�9:xF;�>=�>�F�@=A?B?F;y��r9}=8�B�9:xF;�u8=E�>�F�VWVX�JF8;?=:�?:BAGIF����HI}G;>?:x�>�F�;B�FIGAF�u=8�>�F�9<<A?B9>?=:;����tFJ?;FI�uG:I?:x�>98xF>�89:xF;�q?>��9:�?:B8F9;FI�FE<�9;?;�=:�uG:I?:x�;>9:Iv9A=:F�w?NF�9:I�<FIF;>8?9:�<8=}FB>;���tFJ?;?=:�>=�B89;��B8?>F8?9�>=�FE<�9;?�F�JGA:F89wAF�8=9I�G;F8�;9uF>C���tFE=JF�>89JFA�IFA9C�9;�9:�FJ9AG9>?=:�B8?>F8?9��



�

�

��������	

������������	��������������	�����������	������������
������ ���	�	����	����	���	! ��� ����	���  �������"�������	� ��
����� ��������	����!�
�����!�������� �����#� �$��  ���!�%����	������
���� ��
�����!����" ��� ����&���'(��������������� ���)��	� ��
��������	����!�������� �������" ��� ����&���'����������%��	��� ���������� ��� ��������#*�*���



�

�������	�
�������������������������������� !�!����� "#�$%�����&'�!&���('���)*��+,���-�.�/01��2345672/3/874�97:8;<�=7>>8//11�7?�/01�@8A��087��1B8743:�9:34484B�=7>>855874�85�A158B43/1A�35�/01�@1/2767:8/34�9:34484B��2B348C3/874�D@9�E�?72�/01�=7:F>GF5�@1/2767:8/34�-213H�34A��+,���-�.�/01�I��I�I�@1/2767:8/34��2345672/3/874�9:34�D@�9E�84;:FA15�>34<�5/23/1B815�J8/0�21B32A�/7�60<58;3:�621512K3/874.�1??8;814/�76123/8745.�34A�53?1/<�7?�/01�/2345672/3/874�5<5/1>�3:74B�J8/0�1L634A84B�G8M1.�61A15/2834.�/23458/.�?218B0/�34A�273AJ3<�84?235/2F;/F21H�34A��+,���-�.�/01��087�N1632/>14/�7?��2345672/3/874�D�N��E�5FG�3::7;3/15�632/�7?�8/5��F2?3;1��2345672/3/874�O:7;M�P234/�927B23>�D��OPE.�=74B15/874�@8/8B3/874�34A�-82�QF3:8/<�	>627K1>14/�927B23>�D=@-QE.�=32G74��1AF;/874�927B23>�D=�9E.�34A��2345672/3/874�-:/1243/8K15�927B23>�D�-9E�?F4A84B�/7�@��9=�34A�7/012�@9�5H�34A��+,���-�.�/01�@9��85�21567458G:1�?72�3::7;3/84B�/0151�?1A123:�/2345672/3/874�?F4A5�/03/�321�5FG�3::7;3/1A�/7�8/H�34A���+,���-�.�3::7;3/84B�/0151�?1A123:�/2345672/3/874�?F4A5�/7�:7;3:�RF285A8;/8745S�627R1;/5�?F2/0125�/01�5/23/1B815�84;:FA1A�84�/01�@�9H�34A��+,���-�.�/01��2345672/3/874�97:8;<�=7>>8//11.�/7�?382:<�3::7;3/1�/0151�?F4A5�84�;74?72>34;1�J8/0�?1A123:�34A�5/3/1�:3J5�34A�21BF:3/8745.�3A76/1A�G<��157:F/874���T�TUV�W9284;86:15�X72�-::7;3/874��?�@��9=�-//28GF/3G:1�X1A123:�XF4A84B.Y�J08;0�J35�5FG51ZF14/:<�1L634A1A�34A�21K851A�G<��157:F/8745���[��I.���[��I�.���[�I\.���[I�I].���]�[I.���̂�[.���̂�[�.�����[\.�����[].�����I.�34A�����H�34A��+,���-�.��157:F/874������84;:FA1A�/01�5/86F:3/874�/03/�/0151�67:8;815�G1�1K3:F3/1A�62872�/7�13;0�F6A3/1�7?�/01��2345672/3/874�	>627K1>14/�927B23>�D�	9EH�34A��+,���-�.�5/3??�34A�/01�-//28GF/3G:1�XF4A5�=7>>8//11.�;7>6751A�7?�>1>G125�7?�/01��2345672/3/874�-AK8572<�=7>>8//11�34A�21621514/3/8K15�7?�/01�=7>>F48/<�-AK8572<�=7>>8//11.�/01��2345672/3/874�97:8;<�=7>>8//11.�34A�7/012�84/1215/5.�;7>6:1/1A�/01�21K81J�34A�F6A3/1�84;:FA84B�3�6FG:8;�;7>>14/�61287AH�34A���+,���-�.�3�6FG:8;�;7>>14/�61287A�74�/01�F6A3/1�/7�/01�@��9=�=7>6:1/1��/211/5�97:8;<�J35�01:A�G1/J114�_34F32<�.�I�.�34A�X1G2F32<�̂.�I�H�34A��+,���-�.�/01�97:8;815�?72�@343B84B�@��9=�-//28GF/3G:1�XF4A5.�A3/1A�@3<�I�.�321�3K38:3G:1�74�/01�@��9=�J1G58/1�3/�0//65V̀̀JJJa>726;a72B̀627B23>�512K8;1̀>726;�3//28GF/3G:1�?F4A84B�?72�/2345672/3/874̀H�34A��+,���-�.�/01�=7>>F48/<�-AK8572<�=7>>8//11.�3/�8/5�>11/84B�74�-628:�T.�I�.�34A�/01��2345672/3/874�-AK8572<�=7>>8//11.�3/�8/5�>11/84B�74�@3<�[.�I�.�21;7>>14A1A�36627K3:�7?�/0151�67:8;815�/7�/01��2345672/3/874�97:8;<�=7>>8//11H�47J�/0121?721�����



���������	
�����
����
�
��
��
��������
��
�� 
�!"#$%&!�"�'&#
%&(')*
)&++'��  
&,
�� 
+'-.&�'&
! /'&#"(
%("##'#/
)&++'$$'&#0

�123456
78
 �9:3
391
;5<4241=
>5?
@:6:A46A
@��;BCD33?4EF3:E<1
GF6H=I
H:31H
@:J
KLKMI
:?1
91?1EJ
:NN?5O1H
35
E1
F=1H
:6H
:NN<41H
46
:<<52:346A
@��;BC:33?4EF3:E<1
>1H1?:<
>F6H46A8

�123456
K8
 �9:3
391
N5<4241=
E1
1O:<F:31H
:6H
FNH:31H
:=
6121==:?J
:>31?
391
25PN<13456
5>
FN25P46A
=5<4243:3456
:6H
=1<123456
2J2<18

�123456
Q8
 �9:3
391
�?:6=N5?3:3456
;5<42J
B5PP43311
>46H=
:6H
H131?P461=
39:3
:<<
>5?P:<
H1<4E1?:3456=
:6H
:23456=
5>
394=
25PP43311
25621?646A
:6H
?1<:346A
35
391
:H5N3456
5>
394=
?1=5<F3456
R1?1
3:S16
46
5N16
P11346A=
5>
394=
25PP433118




 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT
B9?4=
DP5?5=1
U?55P=I
B9:4?
+VW.&XVY
!Z[VY\]̂
%̂]\\V\[
)Y__V̀̀ VY\


 TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

�:31

;?1N:?1H
EJa
�?:6=N5?3:3456
�3:>>





 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Present in Person 
LaGrieta Acheampong 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Lee Bodnar 
Ron Bullard 
Gary Burkholder 
Christina Drummond 
Kristen Easterday 
Brad Ebersole 
Dave Efland 
Jennifer Fening 

Cindi Fitzpatrick 
Brad Foster 
Jeremiah Gracia 
Pam Hykes O’Grady 
Laurie Jadwin 
James Jewell 
Emily Keeler 
Ben Kessler 
Glenn Marzluf 
Rory McGuiness 

Eric Meyer 
Megan O’Callaghan 
Ryan Rivers 
Thom Slack 
Joe Steager 
Robyn Stewart 
Andy Volenik 
Andrew Williams 
Tim Wilson

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Attending Remotely 
Herb Asher 
Kristen Atha 
Michael Bivens 
Stacey Boumis 
Susan Brobst 
Ben Collins 
Shane Farnsworth 
Jeff Gottke 

Rebecca Hermann 
Tom Homan 
Christine Houk 
Carol Kauffman 
Bill LaFayette 
Nate Lang 
Joe Long 
Kris Long 

Steve Mazer 
Dave Medley 
Pat Myers 
Bernita Reese 
Alana Shockey 
Brandon Standley 
Nancy White 
Kenneth Wright 

 

Commission Members Present in Person 
Joe Antram 
Jamie Brucker 

Franklin Christman 
Jeff Hall

 

Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Ben Carpenter 
Terry Emery 
Sam Filkins 

Tom Johnson 
Mark Mauter 
Brittany Misner 

Eric Phillips 
RC Wise 

 

MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Parag Agrawal 
Mike Borger 
Todd Bradley 
Kerstin Carr 
Dave Dixon 
Andrea Doolittle 
Preston Frick 
Nick Gill 

Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Níel Jurist 
Eileen Leuby 
Kelsey Matson 
Jonathan Miller 
William Murdock 
Kyle Probert 

Melissa Rapp 
Padmini Roy-Dixon 
Shari Saunders 
Lei Sun 
Brandi Whetstone 
Robert Williams

 

MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
April Bumgardner 
Brian Filiatraut 

Lynn Kaufman 
Karina Peggau 

 

Guests Present in Person 
Sheila Boehner, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
David Clark, Clinton Township 
Grace Byler, Morrow County 

Cornell Robertson, Mannik Smith Group 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter

 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

  
Date: April 11, 2024 
Time: 2:15 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Transportation Policy Committee Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 2 

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Mike Anderson 
Cindi Cooper, City of Sunbury 
Mendra Hupp, Perry County Commissioners 

Andy Shifflett, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Daniel Van Epps 
Brent Welch, FCEO

 
Meeting Called to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Chris Amorose Groomes called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:15 
p.m. 
 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Report – Parag Agrawal, MORPC Chief Mobility & 
Infrastructure Officer & Senior Director of Programming 
Parag Agrawal presented the Metropolitan Planning Organization Report. Mr. Agrawal reported 
MORPC is working with various partners to draft the 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan 
(MTP) which is a vision of transportation investments over the next 25 years. Nick Gill will give a 
brief presentation on the MTP later in today’s meeting. Public engagement included the comment 
period which ended March 30, an online interactive map, a March 19 Open House, and visiting over 
50 communities. MORPC received more than 500 comments. Approximately 40% of the comments 
were encouraging the expansion of bike, pedestrian, and transit. Over 50 comments were on 
incorporating Complete Streets when widening the roadways. 
 
The SFY 2025 Planning Work Program (PWP) serves as the MPO budget and covers the various 
projects and tasks for the year. The $8.5 million document includes $4.76 million of federal highway 
funding, $3.75 million for special planning studies, and $1.3 million for ride sharing and air quality 
projects. A summary of the PWP was included in the meeting packet. It is up for adoption in May. 
 
MORPC Team Members are working on two federal grant applications.  

• Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A). Co-applicants are Ohio State, Honda, Franklin 
County Engineer’s Office, and the City of Columbus. The grant application is called Crash 
Analysis and Injury Research (CAIR). The application requests $2.1 million to analyze crash 
data in Central Ohio. 

• Prioritization Process Pilot Program (P4). This is a new program of Federal Highway that 
encourages the MPO to rebrand and refine their prioritization process. The application 
requests $1.2 million to enhance our prioritization process so we can include equity, 
sustainability, and workforce development. 

 
2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Study 
Director 
Nick Gill presented the 2024-2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update. The Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan (MTP) is the long-range transportation vision for the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) and is updated every four years. It ensures the flow of federal funds for 
transportation projects into the region. To be eligible to receive federal transportation funding, 
projects must be included in the MTP. The plan addresses the anticipated population, household, 
and job growth. The adopted goals drive the vision; the measurable objectives determine what 
needs to be done to achieve the goals; and the strategies describe how we are going to meet the 
objectives. Over 600 individual projects totaling $35 billion are identified in the MTP. The draft 
document is available on MORPC’s website.  Team Members are incorporating comments received 
during public engagement into the draft MTP. The MTP will be presented for adoption at the May 
meeting. Mr. Gill recognized and thanked Team Members working on the MTP. 
 
Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda 
Emily Keeler made a motion to accept the Transportation Policy Committee Consent Agenda, 
second by Christina Drummond; motion passed. 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-MPO.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-MTP.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/programs-services/metropolitan-transportation-plan-mtp/


Transportation Policy Committee Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 3 

 
 
The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:31 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Ben Kessler, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-�
45567889:�;<=>?�@6ABCD@�7�>8755C5E�FGHI�>HGEH7B�J>F>K�DL7D�G6D8C5M@�DLM�NGHI�GO�DLM�BMDHGPG8CD75�P8755C5E�GHE75CQ7DCG5�J;><K:�DLM�6@M�GO�HMECG578�DH75@PGHD7DCG5�P8755C5E�O65R@:�75R�DLM�HMECG578�P8755C5E�7SDCTCDCM@�DL7D�NC88�AM�65RMHD7IM5�C5�DLM�SGBC5E�@D7DM�OC@S78�9M7H�JUVWKX�YLM�>F>�G6D8C5M@�;<=>?Z@�755678�@SGPM�GO�NGHI�NCDL�<[<Y�6@C5E�OMRMH78�P8755C5E�RG887H@X�YLM�DGD78�UVW�\]\̂�A6REMD�GO�788�NGHI�M8MBM5D@�C@�_̀abc̀adef�DG�AM�@PM5D�C5�UVW�\]\̂�GH�87DMHX�YLM�NGHI�M8MBM5D@�GO�DLM�>F>�7@�@LGN5�C5�DLM�@6BB7H9�7DD7SLMR�DG�DLM�HM@G86DCG5�C@�RCTCRMR�C5DG�OG6H�@MSDCG5@g�� hK�VGHB687iV65RMR�>8755C5E�>HGEH7B�>HGjMSD@�JDGD78�A6REMD�GO�_kakbcaklb�OGH�UVW�\]\̂K�YLC@�C5S86RM@�NGHI�M8MBM5D@�HM87DMR�DG�DLM�SGHM�OMRMH7889�HMm6CHMR�P8755C5E�7SDCTCDCM@X�YLM@M�DG6SL�G5�788�7HM7@�C5S86RC5E�;757EMBM5D�n�<PMH7DCG5@:�YH75@CD�n�o6B75�UMHTCSM@�>8755C5E:�;MDHGPG8CD75�YH75@PGHD7DCG5�>875:�4SDCTM�YH75@PGHD7DCG5�>875:�YH75@PGHD7DCG5�pBPHGTMBM5D�>HGEH7B:�>6A8CS�p5TG8TMBM5D:�=MECG578�UDH7DMECS�p5CDC7DCTM@:�BMBAMH�7@@C@D75SM:�7@�NM88�7@�NGHI�HM87DMR�DG�R7D7:�B7PPC5E:�75R�BGRM8C5EX��\K�UPMSC78�UD6RCM@�JDGD78�A6REMD�_lal̀calc̀�OGH�UVW�\]\̂�GH�87DMHK�YLM@M�7HM�@PMSC78�@D6RCM@�SGBP8MDMR�NCDL�O65RC5E�G6D@CRM�GO�DLM�SGHM�P8755C5E�O65R@X�YLM@M�C5S86RM�NGHI�M8MBM5D@�HM87DMR�DG�qHGNDL�75R�;7jGH�rSG5GBCS�[MTM8GPBM5D�>8755C5E:�YMSL5CS78�4@@C@D75SM�>HGEH7B:�U7OM�UDHMMD@�OGH�488�4SDCG5�>875�75R�[MBG5@DH7DCG5�4SDCTCDCM@:�;GAC8CD9�;757EMBM5D:�75R�ŝh]�RM@CE57DMR�HMSCPCM5D@�OGH�M5L75SMR�BGAC8CD9�GO�@M5CGH@�75R�C5RCTCR678@�NCDL�RC@7AC8CDCM@�PHGEH7B@X��sK�=CRM@L7HC5E�75R�4CH�t678CD9�>HGjMSD@�JDGD78�A6REMD�C@�_balcuafff�OGH�UVW�\]\̂K��YLC@�C5S86RM@�DH75@PGHD7DCG5�@MHTCSM@�HM87DMR�DG�=CRM@L7HC5E�JqGLCG�?GBB6DMK�75R�4CH�t678CD9�4N7HM5M@@�7SDCTCDCM@X�

vwx� YH75@PGHD7DCG5�>G8CS9�?GBBCDDMM�YH75@PGHD7DCG5�4RTC@GH9�?GBBCDDMM�?GBB65CD9�4RTC@GH9�?GBBCDDMM��yzw+x� {CSI�qC88:�YH75@PGHD7DCG5�UD6R9�[CHMSDGH��|}v~x� 4PHC8�\\:�\]\�������~�vx� >HGPG@MR�=M@G86DCG5�Yi�i\�g��}��,��01�,�.����,�+wz���y���0���,0/�cfcu���011�1���./���/.�/0-���



�

�

��������	
������
��������
�����
�
��������������������������
�������
�����	������
����
�
������
�
����������	
���
����
��������
�
����������������	���	���������������
������� �!�"�����������������
������	
���
�������!�����
����#$#%���		��
��
����

�	���� �!�"�������&����������'�����()*�%+%,��������	�'�
�
����	�����������������
�
���������������-

�	�'�
.�!�����
����#$#%��� �



���������	
�����

�����������
��
���
�����
� !��"
#��$
%&%'
�"��� �(
)�$*
�$�($�+,

-.���/�0
1234567
83591:;3858<;9
1=187>1
173?7
76;9;><6
568<?<8<71
59@
:3;?<@7
8A7
97671153=
59@
A<BAC=
?5C27@
;::;3829<8=
4;3
:7;:C7
8;
835?7C
4377C=
DA737?73
59@
DA797?73
8A7=
6A;;17E
59@

-.���/�0
835?7C
<9
F79835C
�A<;
<9?;C?71
437G2798
63;11<9B1
;4
>29<6<:5C0
8;D91A<:0
59@
6;298=
H;29@53<71
;9
456<C<8<71
8A58
537
29@73
8A7
6;983;C
;4
?53<;21
C;65C
I23<1@<68<;910
1:76<5C�:23:;17
5B796<710
59@
8A7
�8587
;4
�A<;E
59@


-.���/�0
83591:;3858<;9
1=187>1
8A58
42968<;9
H718
59@
537
>;18
6;18�744768<?7
<96C2@7
37B2C53
6;;:7358<?7
59@
6;;3@<9587@
:C599<9B
59@
@76<1<;9�>5J<9B
563;11
B7;B35:A<6
59@
5@><9<18358<?7
H;29@53<71E
59@

-.��/�0
8A7
K��KLK
M783;:;C<859
�3591:;3858<;9
NC59
<96C2@71
456<C<858<9B
>2C8<�I23<1@<68<;95C
@<5C;B27
51
5
183587B=
8;
:3;?<@7
4;3
6;CC5H;358<;9
<9
;3@73
8;
>5<985<9
59@
<>:3;?7
8A7
83591:;3858<;9
1=187>E
59@

-.���/�0
<8
<1
8A7
3;C7
;4
8A7
>783;:;C<859
:C599<9B
;3B59<O58<;9
PMN�Q
8;
796;235B70
456<C<8587
59@
:3;?<@7
5
4;32>
4;3
8A<1
6;;:7358<;9
1;
51
8;
A7C:
1:79@
37B<;95C
83591:;3858<;9
429@1
>;18
744768<?7C=E
59@

-.���/�0
8A7
NC599<9B
-;3J
N3;B35>
PN-NQ
<1
8A7
@;62>798
8A58
;28C<971
8A7
D;3J
;4
8A7
MN�0
8A7
217
;4
37B<;95C
83591:;3858<;9
:C599<9B
429@10
59@
8A7
37B<;95C
:C599<9B
568<?<8<71
8A58
D<CC
H7
29@7385J79
<9
8A7
6;><9B
=753E
59@

-.���/�0
8A7
R7@735C
.<BAD5=
/@><9<18358<;90
R7@735C
�3591<8
/@><9<18358<;90
59@
8A7
�A<;
S7:538>798
;4
�3591:;3858<;9
A5?7
37?<7D7@
8A7
M��NF
R<165C
T753
KL
N-N
P12>>53=
58856A7@QE
59@

-.���/�0
5::3;?5C
;4
8A<1
D;3J
:3;B35>
H=
8A7
�3591:;3858<;9
N;C<6=
F;>><8877
<1
97671153=
4;3
M��NF
8;
3767<?7
47@735C
59@
18587
B35981
8;
566;>:C<1A
8A7
16;:7
;4
D;3J
D<8A<9
<8E
59@

-.���/�0
H51<6
37G2<37>7981
4;3
8A7
N-N
537
<96C2@7@
<9
8A7
�U�U
F;@7
;4
R7@735C
�7B2C58<;910
�<8C7
V0
�768<;9
�LKUVKWE
59@

-.���/�0
8A7
F;>>29<8=
/@?<1;3=
F;>><8877
58
<81
>778<9B
;9
/:3<C
X0
K�0
59@
8A7
�3591:;3858<;9
/@?<1;3=
F;>><8877
58
<81
>778<9B
;9
M5=
Y0
K�0
376;>>79@7@
5667:85967
;4
8A<1
D;3J
:3;B35>
H=
8A7
�3591:;3858<;9
N;C<6=
F;>><8877E
9;D
8A7374;37

Z�
��
�����[�S
ZT
�.�
��/	�N���/���	
N���FT
F�MM�����
�R
�.�
�\]̂�_\�
�̀ a\�b�c
�c�bb\ba
����\dd\�be

�768<;9
YU
 �A58
<8
A737H=
5667:81
8A7
58856A7@
M��NF
NC599<9B
-;3J
N3;B35>
4;3
R<165C
T753
KL
<9
;3@73
4;3
M��NF
8;
3767<?7
47@735C
59@
18587
:C599<9B
429@1U





���������	
�����
����
�
��
�

������	
��
 ����
�����
��
����������
��
����
����
���	���
��
���
����
�����	�
��
���
	�����
��
�������
��������	�
�����	��
����
���
����
 �!�����	�
��
���	�!�������	
�	�
"���
 �!�����	�
��
���	�!�������	#
$��
�����
��
	��
���	��
���
�	��	�
��
���
����%����



������	
&�
 ����
�����
��
����������
��
����
����
���	���
��
���
����
�����	�
$������
��
	�����
��
�������
��	��
������%��
$������
����
'(
�)��
�	��
'(
�)�*#
�	�����	�
������
������	�
���	�
����
�����	�
$�������
������	
��
 ����
����
���������	
$�
���������
��
� ��
��
�%���	��
��
����!��	��
��
����
!������
$�
���
���	�!�������	
������
+���������

������	
*�

 ����
����
���������
��	��
�	�
�������	��
����
���
������
����$������	�
�	�
�����	�
��
����
���������
��	���	�	�
�	�
������	�
��
���
���!���	
��
����
���������	
����
����	
�	
�!�	
�����	��
��
����
����������


,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
+����
-������
.������#
+����
/0123403
5670389:
;:988087
<3//0==038

 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

 ���


���!����
$�>
���	�!�������	
�����

-�������	�>
�������
��
'(
�)�*
�?�




��������	
��������	
�����������
������������������������
	���������� �!	����"#��$%�###�%�&
�
�����'�()�
�������	
������������*+,-.---/0102312�014�50316031312�678�89681:3;8�893:6312�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685�3:�0�=<3><36?�>@�6<01:=><6063>1�0281A38:B�C73:�D><E�8F85816�A>><431068:�>1�678�G818@36:�>@�0�7>F3:63A0FF?�5010284�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685B�H8F=312�585G8<:�A>FF0G><068�>1�/IJ.�04;01A312�KCL�31AFM4312�A>118A684�31@<0:6<MA6M<8�014�NOPQO.�0AA8::�5010285816.�8:63506312�A>:6:�6>�50316031�678�A>14363>1�>@�678�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685�31AFM4312�=0;85816�5010285816�014�48@3A3816�G<3428:.�86AB.�014�31A><=><06312�:8AM<36?�014�858<281A?�<8:=>1:8�316>�678�=F011312�=<>A8::B�/>136><312�@<83276�<03F�0A63;3638:�014�010F?R312�@><�48;8F>=312�6<814:S�5886312�>18T>1T>18�D367�A>55M13638:�6706�0<8�35=0A684�G?�@<83276S�014�=<>;34312�6358F?�31@><5063>1�;30�678�D8GB�/>136><312�2>>4:�5>;85816T<8F0684�F823:F063>1�014�>678<�<823>10F�@<83276�31363063;8:BU N>14363>1�<8=><6�>@�7327D0?�:?:685�014�<8:>M<A8:U QAA8::�/010285816U /0316031�V823>10F�KCL�Q<A7368A6M<8U W0<63A3=063>1�014�84MA063>1�>1�@<83276�31363063;8:U C<01:=><6063>1�:8AM<36?�0::3:601A8��������X����������"#��$%�###�%�Y
Z�[��	
������������*+\-.---L0@86?�A>1631M8:�6>�G8�0�:3213@3A016�@>AM:�@><�]Ĥ Q.�J_JC.�014�678�8163<8�N816<0F�J73>�<823>1B�C73:�0A63;36?�D><E:�6>�20678<�A<0:7�4060.�A>14MA6�A<0:7�4060�010F?:8:.�<8=><6�>1�:0@86?�5886312:.�81A>M<028�014�:M==><6�F>A0F�2>;8<15816:�6>�0==F?�@><�@M14312�6>�35=F85816�:0@86?�A>M168<580:M<8:.�A>14MA6�=<8T�014�=>:6TA<0:7�4060�010F?:3:�@><�:0@86?�=<>̀8A6:�6>�8;0FM068�678�G818@36:�>@�80A7�A>M168<580:M<8.�014�35=F85816:�678�abcdefg�hijk�lefcmnkedfdjkc�ofpbdq�rgfcs�U V823>10F�A<0:7�4060�010F?:3:U V823>10F�L0@86?�t4MA063>1U /85G8<�0::3:601A8U L0@86?�N>5536688�W0<63A3=063>1U W<>̀8A6�t;0FM063>1U L=8A30F�=<>̀8A6:�014�:6M438:��������X����������
"#�$$%�###�%���
�����
���u��
��Y�������	
������������*+vw.---N>><431063>1.�0::3:601A8.�014�>;8<:3276�6>�35=<>;8�6<01:36�:8<;3A8�014�D><E@><A8�5>G3F36?B�̂><E�31AFM48:�31682<063>1�>@�0FF�0:=8A6:�>@�6<01:36�014�5>G3F36?�6>�=<>;348�0AA8::�6>�0FF�=>=MF063>1:�D73F8�35=<>;312�678�<0128�>@�>=63>1:�@><�5886312�43;8<:8�5>G3F36?�1884:B

xyyz{|}~�y�y���~����y�����������z���xyyz{|}~�y���y���~����y���������Y���
�[��Y�����!����#�$�&(��������������(�����(���&��y~��������y������|~�y�yz������~y����z��������~�~}~�y�����{�������������� ~�y� �����y��¡¢£����¤¥����¦§̈©§©̈ª«¬��|~�z}���y�~�y�}zy~��y���~}z���y���~�~® ~��~��������¤��������~̄�~�y�°~z������¦§̈±²§̈ª«¬³



� �����������	�
�����	����	�������������	������� �
�������������������	��������������� ���������	����	�������������������	� �����������		�	���������
�����������	��	����� ��������	���������� ��������	!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(./010234000�3�5"67(8#"'6'+#7�9:8"#,-:-7'�!"#;"6:�<59!=�67$�9:8>-:-7'6'+#7?%$;-'.�@ABBCBBB ��	������	�	����		���������	�����������D����	�	�	������	������	����������@EFCBBB�D�����	G�		�����	�HHI ��	J
��	�	������KLFM�����N��
��������	�
�	�����������	�	����		��L�������������������	�	����		����������	��������	�����	�����	���������	�������	�	���������������������	�	�����D����	�	�	����EOBOFPQBBB�����EOBQFPOBBBL��	��H�������	������	��D���	J
��	����	����������D�������	����D�����	�	������������	�����������������
�����������	��	����L�������������������
�	����	��	�	����	��C�
����	������	�������������	��H�C����������������	�	�������
��	�����R	���C������������������	�	�������
��	����������
��
�	����R	����D�������R	�����
��	����������	����
��	�C�����������������STC��� UC��V�C������ ���
�����C���	��V ������	��C�	�������	�������
��	������	����		�������
��	����
�	����	��	D�����
����������	�	����		������	�	�������C����������	����������C���������������	�
������L���	��������������	��������	��	�����	�����	���	��DL� �����������	��WX�KBKAPKBKY��H��Z���	���	��WX�KEPK[��H�� ��������	�����������	����������R	���������V �� �����	�	����		��������������H���	�	�������� ��������������������������	����R	����	���	��������������������������������R	���� V	�����������	�����
������	�	�������
��	�����R	����Z����
���������������	����� ��������������R	�������
�	��\V��P������
����	��
�����!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(.
/02]231000�3�̂676;-_�̂68_�̀#>>-&'_�67$�ab6"-�c6'6?%$;-'.�@FQBCBBB�����	�	�	����	�����������\V��������	�������	��	�����������������������������	�������
���
����	��	����C����D	��������������������D�����	��������������TH������	��L�H������
�	��
������	�����������������	�����C�������������������������������	���������
�����������������������������L�H������
�	���		�����������	����
��	�������������	�C�������������������������������	�TH������	�L�H����������C��������
�	�������������������������������������������������	�������	�
�	��	�
������	������������	�	�����	���	����������	��D���������������������	�	��L� H���	��	�	�����	���	��������	��������������	��� d����	��������������������	�������
������������������������������	������� ������	�������������������������������	�������	�
�	��	�
������� ���������	�D����dL�L��	��
�� ����	���������������	����	�������������������	��!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(./021231000�3�c6'6�*76>e'+&(�67$�f-(-6"&b�g#"�5"67(8#"'6'+#7�!"#h-&'(�67$�!"#;"6:(?%$;-'.�@FKFCBBB



����������	
�����
��	�
���������	�
���������������������������������������������
����������������������������������
����
�������

����
������
	�����	��	����������	�
���������
��������������������
���	�
����������	�
�����
����������
	
��������������� �����!���
������������
�"�� #�$�������
������������
�������
������
������������
�����
����
�����������������	
�����
�"���
���	���"������
	���"���������
���
������
������������������������������������	�����
��������������
�������������������������
������������% ��
�����������������������������������
������	
�����
��	�
����% ���	��������������������
��	
	�����
�������	�
�������������
������������&�
�����������% ������
��������������
�����������
����
�"����������
������
��"�������		
���������
�&�'���% (	��������������	
�����
�������#�	
���$���% #��	
����
������
��������������)*+,-./012./343/350678999:;888�:�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�@A0/5B0�2>=CA030�<5.D>3E-50�=>,�2??C3.=/3+>0F-,G5/6�HIJK"KKKL���������	
�������	
�����
������"�����������������������"��	��������������������������
���������	
�����
��
����������
���������
�������������	����������$
������
��������������
�����M$��N�	�
���������������O$�	��������	�
����"�����������
���
������
������
�"�P����
�������Q�������M�
�����������N���������"��������������	
�����
��������������������
��
����"�����������
��"�����$�RS������������
�����������	���
�����
���������
�����
������
���������������������������������������% (	&�
&������������������
���% (	&�
&����������������
�����������
	���������������������
��
����% (	&�
&�����$�������PQ����������	�
�������"�����������
������% T���������
��
�����������
�������������
�	�
	
����$�RS�	�
�����% (	&�
&�����U����(����
����	�
������% �
�������������������
� T ���������������������������������������������
	���)*+,-./012./343/3506
7V8V9:;888�:�W+>G:X=>G5�Y-C/3B+,=C�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�)C=>>3>GF-,G5/6�HZOK"KKK����U
��&#����������	
�����
����������������
�������������
�������� "������������

�������������������	
�����
������&���������������������������������������
��
�&�	��
������
	������[K[Z&[KIK�����
	
�����������	
�����
���������������	���
������
���
����������������������������������������������������
��
��

������������������������
�������������
�������	
�����
��������������	�������	������������������������������������������
��% [K[Z&[KIK�����\
��
�&�	% $
	������
��&�������������������% $

�������
������� T ��	������������������% ���������������	
�����
����������	�������% \�����
����$����"�]���
����̂������������"�������
�
����������������)*+,-./012./343/35067V8_9:8̀88�:�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�)-aC3.�b>4+C45B5>/F-,G5/6�HJcK"KKK



���������	
�	���������
�����������	�����
��
�����
����������
���
�������������
���������������	�������������������������	
�	�������
������
�������
���
���
�����������������������������	�����������
�����������������������������
���������
��������������
����
������
���� ������	
�	�����
���
�!���
����������
��"��
�����
���������������������������"������������
���
�������������
������#��
�
�����������
���
��������������
���
������
	�������
���������	��������
���
��������$��%��&���
��'()*��$��%��&���
��'(*+������
���������
���
�!�����������������������������������
�����������
���������	�����
�����,
�����"���	��
�"�,
������������
	������������
�������
���
��������������	�������
������!����
������	��������������
�����������������
����������������
����������������
�������������	
�	���������
����������	�����- ������
���
�����������	
�	�������
����- ���������	
�	��������	������
�����#��
�
�����������
���
������- ���������	
�	��������	������
�����������
���
������
	�������
����- ���������	
�	��������	������
��������	��������
���
������- ���������	
�	������
��#���������
���������
���
�����	����./012345673489848:5;<=>?@A=>>>�A�B:C80DEF�G4/E4:C83�HD848E489:5I21C:4;�JK('�***������
���
�������������������������������
�����������L����"�������"����	��
������������������"������L����"�
��������������
� �����������
��������#MN�,�������������������
��������"�����������"����������
��������������������������������������	��
������������

����������
���������
���������������������������	���������
�����
�������������������������
� ������������������
����������
����
�����������������
�������������
�������&�����������	���������"�����������������
��- ������O*'*�N��
�����P����������M������- ����������
��Q
�����- N���
������������������- ,������M��
�R������"��S���
�������������������������
�- N�	���,
����
��T�	��
�������������./012345673489848:5;<U@=@A=>>>�A�.FEDD8DC�V00/18DE480D�ED1�G2WW0/4I21C:4;�JO)'�***,

������
��
�������
���
��������������
�����
������������X��������
�����������������������
��������������
�����
�������"������������
���
�����
� ����������	�"�������������
����
����������������������
���#MN�,�����
����������
�����
����
���
���������������������
���������
���
���
� ��
��������
������#MN�,���������
���
	���������
��
�����	�������
���������������������������
����������	�����
��
����������������������
���
��������������
	�����������
����
������	����������	�������
���
��- ���
����
����#������- N���
����,
����
���
��R�
���#������- #������������
�- ,�
��!X��������
����������������������- ���	��������
���
��������
������M������./012345673489848:5;<U@UYA=>>>�A�Z:[\:/�755854ED3:�ED1�G2WW0/4�]VE//̂09:/�_/0[�G̀ a�U>UY�.b.cI21C:4;�JO**�*** ���	�"��������	�
���"����
��d����e�������������
�����������������
��&$f�O*OK�



��������	�
�
�
�������������
��
��
����������������������������������
������
�����������
���������������
�������������
��
��
������
���
����
��������������������
���
�� �!"�"#�$�%&������
����������
�������
��� ��������
��� ��������������������������
��
���
��
���������
����������
�#������#�����
����
�������	
����������
�������
��������
�
���
�����#�'�������
�#�����
�
����
����������������
�������
��
�
�����������������������
����
������������������������������������
���
���������
�
�
�������������������	�
�
�
��(!���)�"""�������������
�����
��
��
�������������������������$�%&�������������� ��
�����
����
��������
�����	
������
��������
�
�������������
�� �
������������������
�

�
��� ������
��
���* $
��
��&�����+
����
�* ,���������
��������	��* +��� ��
����-./0123456237873794:;<=<=>?@@@�>�A9BC9.�644743DE29�DE0�F1GG/.3H10I93:�JK!�#"""��������	�
�
�
�������������
��
��
����������������������������������
������
�����������
���������������
�������������
��
��
������
���
����
��������������������
���
�� �!"�"#�$�%&������
����������
�������
��� ��������
��� ��������������������������
��
���
��
���������
����������
�#������#�����
����
�������	
����������
�������
��������
�
���
�����#�'�������
�#�����
�
����
����������������
�������
��
�
�����������������������
����
������������������������������������
���
���������
�
�
�������������������	�
�
�
��(!���)�"""�������������
�����
��
��
�������������������������$�%&�������������� ��
�����
����
��������
�����	
������
��������
�
�������������
�� �
������������������
�

�
��� ������
��
���* $
��
��&�����+
����
�* ,���������
��������	��* +��� ��
����-./0123456237873794:;LM?=>N@@@�>�-./I.DB�60B7E743.D37/EH10I93:�J��O#K����������	�
�
�
�����������������
���
�
�����
��������������������
�������������������������������������	�
�
�
��������
�������
��������������� ����
����������������
��������������,��#�P�+��Q&�#������Q&�#�RST�#�R��#����U���� ����
�����	�����
�����
������
�&�����T��	�&���������
�
��������������
����
�������
��� ������������
������
���������	�
�
�
������
�
���������
����
�����
���
����* ���#����#��&����
��������

�����������
�* �����&�����T��	�&���������������
����%
����* ����
�VW�X�,YQ�&���
��* $�������
�����������������������

�
��* $�������
�
�����������
��������
Z���
�
��-./0123456237873794:



���������	
�������������������������������������	�� 	!���"����#���$�%�
��#����&
	����'�(����)*�'��+�,-.///.///,01/.///�234567678 9:;6<6;=�>5?�@23<6AB?C=�5B;DA26E3FG�HBF83;�3?;645;3F�;A�234567�5;�;D3�37F�AI�JKL�M/MNGHBF83;�O235PFA>7�6?�5@@2AQ645;3C=�,0R1.///�IA2�:A7?BC;57;�?32<6:3?�57F�STUVWXXX�YZ�[\]ZZ�[̂_̀ab̂[c��dY_e�\Y�f̂�[g_̂]h�Yi\�Ỳ _̂�[\]\̂�Za[b]j�k̂]_[�M/MN�57F�M/M1GlD6?�>A2P�3C3437;�IA:B?3?�A7�:A7FB:;678�2386A75C�:AA2F675;6A7�AI�CA78m25783�;257?@A2;5;6A7�@C577678�>D6:D�67:CBF3?�:A7?6F325;6A7�AI�5::3??.�67I25?;2B:;B23.�C57F�B?3.�57F�DAB?678G�lD3�AB;:A43?�523�67;37F3F�;A�5FF23??�43F6B4�;324�733F?.�CA78m;324�67<3?;437;�@C577678�57F�:A4@23D37?6<3C=�5C687�<526AB?�CA:5C�57F�2386A75C�3IIA2;?�AI�;D3�n37;25C�oD6A�p386A7�IA2�;D3�q7;3C�67<3?;437;�57F�?BO?3rB37;�82A>;DGsoptn�>6CC�:AA2F675;3�>6;D�;D3�J;5;3�AI�oD6A.�un9lJ.�57F�A;D32�2386A75C�?;5P3DACF32?�v67:CBF678�OB;�7A;�C646;3F�;A�KAB7F5;6A7?.�lqw?.�nAB7;63?.�sB76:6@5C6;63?�57F�lA>7?D6@?x�;A�5FF23??�;D3�733F?�AI�;D3�2386A7�57F�@23@523�IA2�82A>;D�F3457F?�5??A:65;3F�>6;D�;D3�q7;3C�67<3?;437;G�lD3�:AA2F675;6A7�5@@2A5:D�>6CC�O3�;257?3:;m�O5?3F�>6;D�5�IA:5C�@A67;�O3678�;D3�J6C6:A7�y352;C57F�J6;3�67�z3>�9CO57=G�lD3�@26452=�IA:B?�>6CC�?;52;�>6;D�83A825@D63?�;D5;�523�>6;D67�;D3�N/m467B;3?�;25<3C�AI�;D3�?6;3G{ 9837:=�nAA2F675;6A7�tC57{ |7D57:3F�F5;5�57F�;25<3C�F3457F�4AF3C�:A<32583{ }@F5;3F�CA:5C�@C577678�FA:B437;?{ KB7F678�o@@A2;B76;63?{ u6?;�AI�q4@2A<3437;�nA7:3@;?&������~����%�����+���������������'���	
�����
�#���	
�&
	����'*�'��+�,N//./// -//��JlH��B?678�;ACC�:23F6;lD6?�>A2P�3C3437;�?B@@C3437;?�;D3�IA24BC5mIB7F3F�@2A8254�57F�67:CBF3?�23?352:D�57F�@C577678�3IIA2;?�;D5;�523�23rB623F�;A�IBCI6CC�sto�@C577678�57F�@2A�3:;�64@C3437;5;6A7�23?@A7?6O6C6;63?G�lD3�5:;6<6;=�67:CBF3?�3C3437;?�;D5;�?B@@C3437;�@2A�3:;�F3C6<32=.�F5;5�:ACC3:;6A7�57F�F5;5�457583437;.�@5??37832�256C�@C577678.�CA78m25783�?;BF63?�57F�?B?;5675O6C6;=G�J@3:6I6:�5:;6<6;63?�;D6?�=352�523�C6?;3F�O3CA>G{ p38BC52�23@A2;?�;A�434O32?�57F�soptn�:A446;;33?�A7�@2A�3:;�F3C6<32={ l25II6:�:AB7;?�IA2�5@@2AQ645;3C=�M//�CA:5;6A7?.�67:CBF678�O6P3�57F�@3F3?;2657�:AB7;?�5?�6F37;6I63F�67�5:;6<3�;257?@A2;5;6A7�:AB7;�@C57{ q4@C3437;�@2A�3:;?�;A�5FF23??�;D3�8A5C?.�AO�3:;6<3?.�57F�5:;6A7�6;34?�F3;56C3F�67�;D3�p386A75C�w5;5�9837F5G{ t2A<6F3�?@3:65C�?32<6:3?�57F�:A7FB:;�?@3:65C�;257?@A2;5;6A7�?;BF63?{ JB@@A2;�IA2�@5??37832�256C�@C577678{ p3?6C637:=�tC577678{ nAA2F675;6A7�>6;D�A;D32�2386A75C�5:;6<6;63?.�?B:D�5?�;D3�p386A75C�JB?;5675O6C6;=�9837F5�;A�IB2;D32�;D3�M/MNmM/1/�slt�8A5C?
&������~����%�����+
��������������������	
�������	����&��'�	#*�'��+�,MR1./// -//��JlH��B?678�;ACC�:23F6;

���	
�*�'��+�����"
�#���� ����������	��������������������������������	
	��������������������
	������������������



���������	���
����	��������������	��������������������������������		�	���������	����������������������������	�����������

���	������������������	��������	�������
�����������������������	�����������������
���	����
���������������������������������������������	�����������������������	����������������	������	����������	�
���������������	������������������
����	��������������	����������������������
������	������	���������	�������������	���������������������	�� ��������������! ���������"		�	�����#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01123456777�5�89:/�8)$//)*�;%$�,<<�,()-%=�#<9=�9=&�>/?%=*)$9)-%=�,()-.-)-/*@'&A/)0�BC�DEF�FFF "���������	������������������������������GH�DFDI�J��DFDK���LM�N������������O�PL�Q	���
��������	�����M���	�
���"���R��S"T���	�������������������������
���	�
�������������
���	��J��P��������DFDK���LM�N��������������
���������
��������������	��
���	���������	�����������������N�������L��������	������������
���������������������	������������������������������	�����������		����������������	�
��������DFCE������! ��
���������O�����! U��V������W���X������P�����������! N��������������	���
����"������������! ����	��������
����P����	���������������	#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01Y4Z456777�5�26Z7�>/*-A=9)/&�[/(-\-/=)�]̂7̂4_@'&A/)0�BC̀E�FaEBCKE�FaE���������� "���������	��������	����������W����b�������	������������������������������
��GH�DFDS����	��������������	��������������������	���	����������������������
�������������	���������
�����G�"���������IKCF���������
���c������������������
�������	�����J���������	�����P�	��������	�
��������
�������
�	�����������������������
�������N������	�������W�������������������������
�����G�"������������������������������������	����������
��������	�����������
���G�"�
��������	����������	��������G�"�����������������������������	�	������������
��
�������������������	�! "�������������������������R���T��������������G�"������	���	! N����������������G�"���d��������	! ���������
��������	! O�����������������������N���������������#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01Y4Z256777�5�26Z7�>/*-A=9)/&�[/(-\-/=)�̂7̂2@'&A/)0�BCaK�DIF���	��������������	��������������������	���	����������������������
�������������	���������
�����G�"���������IKCF���������
���c������������������
�������	�����J���������	�����P�	��������	�
��������
�������
�	�����������������������
�������N������	�������W�������������������������
�����G�"������������������������������������	����������
��������	�����������
���G�"�
��������	����������	��������G�"�����������������������������	�	������������
��
�������������������	�! "�������������������������R���T��������������G�"������	���	! N����������������G�"���d��������	! ���������
��������	! O�����������������������N���������������#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*0



�������������	
������	���������������������������������� ������!"#$%&%&' ()*%+%*,�-$.�/!"+%01.2,�$1*30!%4"56�715'"*�".*%#$*"5�*0�!"#$%&�$*�*3"�"&5�08�9:;�<�< 6=3%.�-0!>�"2"#"&*�-%22�.1//0!*�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�)00!5%&$*%&'�/!0'!$#.�$#0&'�/1?2%)��/!%+$*"�$&5�31#$&�."!+%)"�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�/!0+%5"!.�*3$*�."!+"�025"!�$512*.��/"0/2"�-%*3�5%.$?%2%*%".�$&5�%&5%+%51$2.�-%*3�20-"!�%&)0#".�$.�-"22�$.�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�$)*%+%*%".�%&�:!$&>2%&�@01&*,6�A0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�-%22�80)1.�0&�%&)!"$.%&'�$))"..�*0�."!+%)"�?,�%&)!"$.%&'�$-$!"&"..��)00!5%&$*%&'�."!+%)".�$&5�$55!"..%&'�?$!!%"!.�*0�BCDEFGF�B�HIJF�FKKECEFLM�MJBLNOIJMBMEIL�NPNMFHQ��RSTUV�HBELMBELN�MDF�WICBWWP�XFGFWIOFX�VIIJXELBMFX�UWBL�80!�*3"�AYZ�$&5�$5#%&%.*"!.�*3"�:=([.�9")*%0&��\���81&5%&'�80!�*3"�@021#?1.�1!?$&%4"5�$!"$6�AZ]Y@�%.�MDF�DINM�KIJ�MDF�̂JBL_WEL�VÌLMP�RIaEWEMP�RBLBbFJQ�c d&'$'"#"&*c e&)!"$."�)$/$)%*,c e&80!#$*%0&�)00!5%&$*%0&c 9*$*"�$&5�20)$2�)00!5%&$*%0&c (-$!"&"..�$&5�$))"..%?%2%*,fg
��h�ijkh��l����i��������������	
������	����������mnmo�p���
���q�rr����������������������\��������<������!"#$%&%&' ()*%+%*,�-$.�/!"+%01.2,�$1*30!%4"56�715'"*�".*%#$*"5�*0�!"#$%&�$*�*3"�"&5�08�9:;�<�< 6=3%.�-0!>�"2"#"&*�-%22�.1//0!*�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�)00!5%&$*%&'�/!0'!$#.�$#0&'�/1?2%)��/!%+$*"�$&5�31#$&�."!+%)"�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�/!0+%5"!.�*3$*�."!+"�025"!�$512*.��/"0/2"�-%*3�5%.$?%2%*%".�$&5�%&5%+%51$2.�-%*3�20-"!�%&)0#".6�A0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�-%22�80)1.�0&�%&)!"$.%&'�$))"..�*0�."!+%)"�?,�%&)!"$.%&'�$-$!"&"..��)00!5%&$*%&'�."!+%)".�$&5�$55!"..%&'�?$!!%"!.�*0�$)3%"+"�$�#0!"�"88%)%"&*�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�.,.*"#6�AZ]Y@�#$%&*$%&.�*3"�20)$22,�5"+"20/"5�@00!5%&$*"5�Y2$&�s]"'%0&$2�A0?%2%*,�Y2$&t�80!�*3"�AYZ�$&5�$5#%&%.*"!.�*3"�:=([.�9")*%0&��\���81&5%&'�80!�*3"�@021#?1.�1!?$&%4"5�$!"$6�=3%.�"2"#"&*�./")%8%)$22,�!"8"!.�*0�*3"�!"'%0&$2�-0!>�08�*3"�]"'%0&$2�A0?%2%*,�Y2$&6c d&'$'"#"&*c e&)!"$."�)$/$)%*,c e&80!#$*%0&�)00!5%&$*%0&c 9*$*"�$&5�20)$2�)00!5%&$*%0&c (-$!"&"..�$&5�$))"..%?%2%*,c =!$%&%&'�$&5�Y!08"..%0&$2�u"+"20/#"&*fg
��h�ijkh��l����i�



����������	
����
���������
�����������������������������
��� ��
�� ��!��"�#���$�����	
���%&����'�()*+,+++ -++.�/0123�3/45267879:�;6<=:>�?:8<@A�1:ABC9D7@�E;?/F�D@�3:@96<>�0GD7�<@A�8<6H:9�I67J6<8K�<@A�K:6=DC:�D@�<�-*LC7B@9M�<6:<N�267J6<8�K:6=DC:K�D@C>BA:�C<6I77>�8<9CGD@J,�=<@I77>�O768<9D7@,�96<@KD9,�PDH:�<@A�I:A:K96D<@�KBII769�<@A�K96<9:JD:K�O76�:8I>7M:6K�<@A�9G:�J:@:6<>�IBP>DCN�/0123�<A8D@DK9:6K�<@�:8:6J:@CM�6DA:�G78:�I67J6<8,�=<@I77>�I67J6<8,�<@A�<�K9<9:QDA:�6DA:KG<6:�8<9CGD@J�=:@A76�C7@96<C9�D@�C776AD@<9D7@�QD9G�0413�6DA:KG<6:�<J:@CD:KNR� ��#��S�#��"�����'T 267879:�<�CB>9B6:�7O�KBK9<D@<P>:�<@A�K8<69�8B>9D87A<>�96<=:>�9G67BJG7B9�3:@96<>�0GD7N�2BP>DC�:ABC<9D7@�<@A�6DA:�8<9CGD@J�K:6=DC:KNT 1<DK:�IBP>DC�<Q<6:@:KK�<P7B9�87PD>D9M�7I9D7@K�D@�9G:�6:JD7@N�U@C6:<K:�6DA:KG<6D@J�<@A�;?/�<CC:I9<@C:�97�D8I67=:�<D6�VB<>D9MNT W<9D7@<>�;6<@KD9�?<9<P<K:�1:I769D@JT 267J6<8�:=<>B<9D7@,�K96<9:JDC�I><@�<@A�9:>:Q76H�I7>DCMT 267879:�;?/�K:6=DC:K�97�6:ABC:�X0Y�96<=:>�<@A�<KK7CD<9:A�<D6�I7>>B9D7@�D@�C788B@D9D:K�@:<6�GDJGL=7>B8:�C766DA76K�<K�Q:>>�<K�D@�AD=:6K:�<@A�B@A:6K:6=:A�I7IB><9D7@K�������������������
������Z
������&����'�(*)*,+++ /0123�3/45�E-++.�BKD@J�97>>�C6:AD9F;GDK�Q76H�:>:8:@9�:@KB6:K�9G<9�/0123�C7@9D@B:K�<D6�I7>>B9D7@�O76:C<K9D@J�<@A�:ABC<9D@J�D9K�8:8P:6K�<@A�9G:�IBP>DC�7@�9G:�D8I769<@C:�7O�<D6�VB<>D9M,�D9K�G:<>9G�<@A�:@=D67@8:@9<>�D8I<C9K,�<@A�G7Q�97�6:ABC:�<D6�I7>>B9D7@N�[B69G:6876:,�/0123�I67=DA:K�9:CG@DC<>�<@A�I><@@D@J�<KKDK9<@C:�97�9G:�6:JD7@�7@�K96<9:JD:K�97�6:ABC:�OB:>�BK:�<@A�6:ABC:�:8DKKD7@K�<@A�:@:6JM�BK:NR� ��#��S�#��"�����'T 4D6�5B<>D9M�4>:69K�<@A�3776AD@<9D7@T 4D6�5B<>D9M�1:K:<6CGT \ABC<9D7@�<@A�0B96:<CGT 37@ABC9�KI:CD<>�K9BAD:K�<@A�I67]:C9K�6:><9:A�97�̂_̂ �:8DKKD7@KT 2><@@D@J�<@A�I7>DCM�<KKDK9<@C:

� �
��&����'` �a�b��c����



���������	�
���	�		�����������������������		�����������������
�	�
� ����������	�
!"#$%�&'$()*$+�&,+-�.(/$%"&0$�"%&(+1-%"&"*-(�1,&((*('�&)"*2*"*$+3�4#*+�&)"*2*"5�*(),./$+�*/$("*65*('�,-)&,�1,&((*('�$66-%"+�&(/�)--%/*(&"*('�7*"#�"#$8�"#%-.'#�-"#$%�1%-9$)"+3�:-�;./'$"3< =("$'%&"$�,-)&,�1,&((*('�$66-%"+�*("-�>!?@AB+�%$'*-(&,�"%&(+1-%"&"*-(�1,&((*('�1%-)$++$+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]�̀a�b����������
�	�
�c�d����	�		��4#*+�7-%0�$,$8$("�*+�6-%�)--%/*(&"*-(�7*"#�A!4e�"-�$(+.%$�&/#$%$()$�"-�6$/$%&,�&(/�+"&"$�%$f.*%$8$("+�&(/�6-%�"#$�6&)*,*"&"*-(�-6�$66$)"*2$�"%&(+*"�+$%2*)$+�*(�"#$�A!4e�+$%2*)$�&%$&g�8&*(,5�*(�h%&(0,*(�A-.("5�&(/�*(�1-%"*-(+�-6�&/9&)$("�)-.("*$+3�:-�;./'$"3< A!4eB+�1,&((*('�1%-)$++< A-("*(.$/�%$6*($8$("�-6�A!4eB+�i-('j?&('$�@,&(�&(/�-"#$%�1,&((*('�&)"*2*"*$+< k#-%"j?&('$�4%&(+*"�@,&(�lk?4@m�.1/&"$< k$%2*)$�)#&('$�1,&((*('< A!4e�+&6$"5�&(/�&++$"�8&(&'$8$("�1,&(+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]
�̀a�n����������
�	�
�ocd���	�		��4#*+�7-%0�$,$8$("�*+�6-%�)--%/*(&"*-(�7*"#�pA4�"-�$(+.%$�&/#$%$()$�"-�6$/$%&,�&(/�+"&"$�%$f.*%$8$("+�&(/�6-%�"#$�6&)*,*"&"*-(�-6�$66$)"*2$�"%&(+*"�+$%2*)$+�*(�p$,&7&%$�A-.("53�:-�;./'$"3< pA4B+�1,&((*('�1%-)$++�&(/�%$f.*%$8$("+�($$/$/�"-�%$)$*2$�6$/$%&,�.%;&(�&%$&�&(/�+"&"$�6.(/+< =81,$8$("�%$)-88$(/&"*-(+�6%-8�pA4B+�k"%&"$'*)�@,&(< pA4�+&6$"5�&(/�&++$"�8&(&'$8$("�1,&(+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]

d�����C�
�E�q�r�������s���



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-�� 456� 789:;<=8>9>?=:�@=A?BC�D=EE?>>FF�789:;<=8>9>?=:�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF�D=EEJ:?>C�GHI?;=8C�D=EE?>>FF��KL5+6� M?BN�O?AAP�789:;<=8>9>?=:�Q>JHC�R?8FB>=8��ST4U6� G<8?A�VVP�VWVX��YZ[\U]46� F̂;=AJ>?=:�7_̀_VXa�b],/cdedf0cd.1�.e�cg,�+5Lh]�+,c/.i.jdc01�4/01ki./c0cd.1�hj011d1l�h/.f,kkm��n:�J8o9:?pFH�98F9;P�qr?Br�r9IF�9�<=<JA9>?=:�=s�tWPWWW�=8�E=8FP�sFHF89A�<A9::?:u�A9q�vXw�xyQyDy�tzWz{�B9AA;�J<=:�A=B9A�=ss?B?9A;�>=�B==<F89>F�q?>r�;>9>F;�9:H�<JoA?B�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<8=I?HF8;�?:�J:HF8>9N?:u�9�B=:>?:J?:uP�B=E<8FrF:;?IFP�9:H�B==<F89>?IF�vzD{�EJA>?E=H9A�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<A9::?:u�<8=BF;;y�7r?;�EF>8=<=A?>9:�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<A9::?:u�<8=BF;;�?;�B988?FH�=J>�>r8=Jur�|}̂ @D�9;�9�sFHF89AAC�HF;?u:9>FH�EF>8=<=A?>9:�<A9::?:u�=8u9:?p9>?=:�v|@}{y��~IF8C�s=J8�CF98;P�>rF�QFB8F>98C�=s�>rF�xyQy�RF<98>EF:>�=s�789:;<=8>9>?=:�vR}7{�EJ;>�BF8>?sC�>r9>�F9Br�|@}�;F8I?:u�9�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�E9:9uFEF:>�98F9�v7|G{P�9�HF;?u:9>?=:�oC�R}7�=s�9:�J8o9:?pFH�98F9�q?>r�9�<=<JA9>?=:�=IF8�VWWPWWW�9;�HFs?:FH�oC�>rF��J8F9J�=s�>rF�DF:;J;P�?;�B988C?:u�=J>�>rF�EF>8=<=A?>9:�<A9::?:u�<8=BF;;�?:�9HrF8F:BF�q?>r�sFHF89A�;>9>J>F;�9:H�8FuJA9>?=:;y�7rF��FHF89A��?urq9C�GHE?:?;>89>?=:�v���G{�9:H��FHF89A�789:;?>�GHE?:?;>89>?=:�v�7G{�A9;>�B=:HJB>FH�>r?;�8FI?FqP�=:�>rF�QFB8F>98C�;�oFr9AsP�9>�|}̂ @D�?:�VWVV�9:H�q?AA�B=:HJB>�9:=>rF8�8FBF8>?s?B9>?=:�8FI?Fq�=s�|}̂ @D�?:�QF<>FEoF8�VWV�y���=qFIF8P�sFHF89A�8FuJA9>?=:;�9A;=�;<FB?sC�>r9>�>rF�;>9>F�9:H�|@}�EJ;>�9::J9AAC�;FAs_BF8>?sC�>=�>rF����G�9:H�>rF��7G�>r9>�>rF�<A9::?:u�<8=BF;;�?;�9HH8F;;?:u�>rF�E9�=8�?;;JF;�s9B?:u�>rF�98F9�9:H�?;�oF?:u�B=:HJB>FH�?:�9BB=8H9:BF�q?>r�9AA�9<<A?B9oAF�8F�J?8FEF:>;y��̂F;=AJ>?=:�7_̀_VX�;FAs_BF8>?s?F;�|}̂ @D�;�EF>8=<=A?>9:�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<A9::?:u�<8=BF;;�9:H�9ss?8E;�>r9>�|}̂ @DP�9;�9:�|@}P�?;�EFF>?:u�9AA�8F�J?8FEF:>;�?:�?>;�>89:;<=8>9>?=:�<A9::?:u�q=8Ny��G>>9BrEF:>a�̂F;=AJ>?=:�7_̀_VX�



���������	
�����

��������������
��
���
�����
������� ����
!���"���������
� �����#
�����""$

%&���'�(
)*+
�,-./01,)-)21.
314256
71882))++
19
)*+
:2;��*21
�+<21.-4
34-..2.<
71882//21.
2/
;+/2<.-)+;
-/
)*+
8+),10142)-.
04-..2.<
1,<-.2=-)21.
>:3�?
91,
)*+
714@8A@/
�,A-.2=+;
',+-B
-.;

%&���'�(
C
7D�
�EFGCC�
,+H@2,+/
)*-)
)*+
/)-)+
-.;
:3�
5+,)296(
-)
4+-/)
+I+,6
91@,
6+-,/(
)*-)
)*+
),-./01,)-)21.
04-..2.<
0,15+//
2/
A+2.<
5-,,2+;
1@)
2.
-551,;-.5+
J2)*
-44
-00425-A4+
,+H@2,+8+.)/(
2.54@;2.<K

 L?
C
�G�G7G
LC�
-.;
�M
�G�G7G
ECFC
>:+),10142)-.
�,-./01,)-)21.
34-..2.<
,+H@2,+8+.)/?B
?
�+5)21./
L��
-.;
L�N>5?
-.;
>;?
19
)*+
74+-.
'2,
'5)(
-/
'8+.;+;
>�
�G�G7G
�EF�(
�EFN
>5?
-.;
>;?
-.;
�F
7D�
0-,)
MCB
C?
�2)4+
O�
19
)*+
72I24
�2<*)/
'5)
19
LMN�(
-/
-8+.;+;
>�
�G�G7G
FFF;�L?
-.;
�M
7D�
0-,)
LB
�?
�M
�G�G7G
ECC(
0,1*2A2)2.<
;2/5,282.-)21.
1.
)*+
A-/2/
19
,-5+(
5141,(
5,++;(
.-)21.-4
1,2<2.(
/+P
1,
-<+
2.
+804168+.)
1,
A@/2.+//
1001,)@.2)6B
E?
�+5)21.
LLLFL>+?
19
)*+
�.9,-/),@5)@,+
�.I+/)8+.)
-.;
Q1A/
'5)
>��Q'?
>3@A425
�-J
LL��ER(
-4/1
S.1J.
-/
)*+
TU20-,)2/-.
�.9,-/),@5)@,+
�-JV?
-.;
�M
7D�
0-,)
N
,+<-,;2.<
)*+
2.I14I+8+.)
19
;2/-;I-.)-<+;
A@/2.+//
+.)+,0,2/+/
2.
��W���9@.;+;
0,1X+5)/B
N?
C
7D�
0-,)
CF(
,+<-,;2.<
)*+
2804+8+.)-)21.
19
)*+
+H@-4
+804168+.)
1001,)@.2)6
0,1<,-8
1.
9+;+,-4
-.;
9+;+,-4�-2;
*2<*J-6
51./),@5)21.
51.),-5)/B
�?
�*+
0,1I2/21./
19
)*+
'8+,25-./
J2)*
W2/-A242)2+/
'5)
19
LMMF
>�
�G�G7G
LLFL
+)
/+HG?
-.;
�M
7D�
0-,)/
�(
C�
-.;
CRB
R?
�*+
�4;+,
'8+,25-./
'5)(
-/
-8+.;+;
>�
�G�G7G
NLFL?
0,1*2A2)2.<
;2/5,282.-)21.
1.
)*+
A-/2/
19
-<+
2.
0,1<,-8/
1,
-5)2I2)2+/
,+5+2I2.<
9+;+,-4
92.-.52-4
-//2/)-.5+B
M?
�+5)21.
C�
19
�2)4+
C
�G�G7G
,+<-,;2.<
)*+
0,1*2A2)21.
19
;2/5,282.-)21.
A-/+;
1.
<+.;+,B
-.;
LF?
�+5)21.
EF�
19
)*+
�+*-A242)-)21.
'5)
19
LM�C
>M
�G�G7G
�M�?
-.;
�M
7D�
0-,)
�
,+<-,;2.<
;2/5,282.-)21.
-<-2./)
2.;2I2;@-4/
J2)*
;2/-A242)2+/B
-.;

%&���'�(
)*2/
T/+49�5+,)2925-)21.V
2/
/+0-,-)+
9,18
)*+
:3�
5+,)2925-)21.
;1.+
A6
)*+
D+;+,-4
&2<*J-6
';82.2/),-)21.
-.;
D+;+,-4
�,-./2)
';82.2/),-)21.(
J*25*
J-/
4-/)
51.;@5)+;
-)
:��37
2.
F
-.;
J244
A+
51.;@5)+;
-<-2.
2.
FNB
-.;

%&���'�(
-/
-
0,+,+H@2/2)+
)1
)*+
,+5+20)
19
9+;+,-4
92.-.52-4
-//2/)-.5+
>0+,
�M
7D�
�@A)2)4+
'(
�+5)21.
LG�?(
:��37
2/
,+H@2,+;
)1
0,1I2;+
)*+
�2)4+
O�
'//@,-.5+/
2.54@;+;
2.
'))-5*8+.)
'B
-.;

%&���'�(
)*+
7188@.2)6
';I2/1,6
71882))++
-)
2)/
8++)2.<
1.
'0,24
M(
F�
-.;
)*+
�,-./01,)-)21.
';I2/1,6
71882))++
-)
2)/
8++)2.<
1.
:-6
L(
F�
,+5188+.;+;
-00,1I-4
19
)*2/
,+/14@)21.
A6
)*+
�,-./01,)-)21.
314256
71882))++B
.1J
)*+,+91,+

U�
��
�����O�W
UY
�&�
��'	�3���'���	
3���7Y
7�::�����
�D
�&�
�Z[\�]Z�
�̂ _Z�̀ ab
�bà Z̀̀_
����ZccZ�̀ d

�+5)21.
LG
 �*-)
2)
5+,)292+/
)*-)
)*+
@,A-.
),-./01,)-)21.
04-..2.<
0,15+//
2/
5-,,2+;
1@)
2.
51.91,8-.5+
J2)*
-44
)*+
-00425-A4+
9+;+,-4
,+H@2,+8+.)/
)1
)*+
;+<,++
)*-)
2/
-00,10,2-)+
91,
)*+
/2=+
-.;
51804+P2)6
19
)*+
-,+-G




���������	
�����
�����
���
����
����
�
��
�

������	
��
 ����
��
��������
���
�����
� 
������	���
�	
������!�	�
��
�����
"
�	�
��

������	
#�
 ����
����
��!!�����
��	��
�	�
�����!�	��
����
���
���!��
����$������	�
�	�
�����	�
��
����
��!!�����
��	���	�	�
�	�
������	�
��
���
�������	
��
����
���������	
%���
��&�	
�	
���	
!����	��
��
����
��!!������


'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''
(����
�!�����
)���!���
(����
*+,-./+.
012+.345
65433+32
7.**+88+.3

 '''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''

9���


��������
$:;
���	���������	
�����

������!�	��;
��
����
"
<
���	����
9=�
�����
� 
������	���

 ����
�
<
(�	�������
(�	��������
��>����!�	��





�����������	��	�	
����������������������������������������������������� �!!�""����#���� $���%�&'���%��"�(��(��"���)����(����(��%�)��*����+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)��,%�!�(���-�.�%(!��(��,��%��".�%(�(����#-��$/��(�0����)�!.�'�0�(����(���12��,�(��� �*�������("�3)(��,�4567�#78�9:;: :�8<<<���(�"�=:$���������%�=>�%�!��("��!.�"���&'�75� +����%(�84���?����")%�!���(�������+���%���'�3""�"(����%��%�!"��,�(���-�.�%(!��(��,��%��".�%(�(������@,,�)(>�(�����,���(���12��,�(��� �*�������("�3)(��,�4567�#��%����,(�%�%�,�%%���(���"�(���A���>��(���"B$�(��(�������(��(����.�%"������(���9��(���;(�(�"�"����/����(����%�>����,�%�)�/�)���%/��%���(�������%����/�&���C)�>����,%�!�.�%(�)�.�(������/�&���������(���&���,�("��,/��%�&���(��%0�"��">&D�)(���(����")%�!���(����>���%���'�.%��%�!��%��)(�*�('�,�%�0��)������ �%�)��*�"�+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)������0�����!!����(��'�(�E����'�!��">%�"���)�""�%'�(���,,�)(>�(��(��"���%��!��(:�F�(��>(���!�(����(����&�*������%����"">%��)�/����� ���%��"�(��(G��4:�@�)��A.%��%�!B�����A,�)���('B�#�"���,��������;�)(���"�84:8H#�$�����84:8H�#&$$�0����&��)���>)(����%��.�%�(������)�!.����)��0�(������%�=>�%�!��("��,�(������>��(���":��8:�2(�0������"�%(�(���)��>"�"��,���%(�8��,�(��"��"">%��)������*�%'�)��(%�)(�">&D�)(�(��(���3)(�����(������>��(���":��H:����"��"">%��)���&����(�"����� �,�%�(���.�%�����>%����0��)��+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)���"��C(������(��(���.%��%�!/��C)�.(�0��%��(���+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)���"�(��.%�*���/��%��"����(���,�%!��,�.�%"�����.%�.�%('��%�%����.%�.�%('��%���(�%�"(�(��%�����%�"(%>)(>%�"��%��!.%�*�!��("�(��%���/����0��)��)�"��(����"">%��)���&����(�"����� ��%���'�(%��",�%���,�%�(��������%��,�(���,����0����.�%���"G�� #�$�(���.�%�����>%����0��)��(���.%�.�%('��"�>"���,�%���.>%.�"��,�%�0��)��+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)���"��C(�����/��%�,�%����(��%�.>%.�"����*��*����(���.%�*�"�����,�"�!���%�"�%*�)�"��%�&���,�("/��%��#&$�(���.�%�����>%����0��)������ �%�(���"��0��%"��.��%�.�""�""�����,�(���.%�.�%(':��7:�2(�0����.%�*����,�%�">)��!�(���"��,���!���"(%�(����,�%�(���.%��%�!��"��%��,�>���&'�(���;�)%�(�%'��,��%��".�%(�(�����%�(����,,�)����(��0��!�(��'�������(��".�)�,�)��>(��%�('�(����*��%��"���&����>�%��(���(��(��(/��(��%�".��"�%"/�">&��%��(��"/�)��(%�)(�%"/�">&)��(%�)(�%"/�(%��",�%��"/�">))�""�%"������(�%�"(/������(��%�.�%(�)�.��("��%�+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)��>���%�">)��.%��%�!�0����)�!.�'�0�(������%�=>�%�!��("��!.�"����%�.>%">��(�(��(���3)(/�(������>��(���"/�����(��"��"">%��)�:��I:�2(���%��"�(��(�(���9��(���;(�(�"���"���%���(�(��"��E�D>��)������,�%)�!��(�0�(��%���%��(����'�!�((�%��%�"����>���%�(���3)(/�(������>��(���"/�����(��"��"">%��)�:���J2;�3;;9�3? @��"���*������)��"���%�(�����,�����,�%�(���.>%.�"���,��&(�������+���%���,����)�����""�"(��)��,�%�(��"��%�D�)(������"�&�������������� /��("�)��(%�)(�%/�">&)��(%�)(�%"/�(%��",�%��"/�">))�""�%"������(�%�"(������(��%�.�%(�)�.��("����(����%�D�)(:�����.�%"���0��"��"����(>%���..��%"����(��"�%�"��>(�����"��>(��%�K���(��"����(��"��"">%��)�����&����,��,����� :���� �



����������	�	
��������	������	 	����	�	����������	�����������	�� �!��"���#		$%&'()	*+,	-,&./&01(2,	/.	*+'3	2/(*&12*4	*+,	2/(*&12*/&4	./&	'*3,5.4	'*3	133')(,,34	1(6	3%22,33/&3	'(	'(*,&,3*	7+,&,'(1.*,&	&,.,&&,6	*/	13	*+,	82/(*&12*/&89	1)&,,3	13	./55/:3;		 <=	�>?@ABCDEF	GBHI	�FJKACHB>DL=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&	3+155	2/0-5N	:'*+	*+,	O,)%51*'/(3	&,51*'P,	*/	(/(6'32&'0'(1*'/(	'(	.,6,&155N	133'3*,6	-&/)&103	/.	*+,	$,-1&*0,(*	/.	M&1(3-/&*1*'/(	7+,&,'(1.*,&	8$QM894	M'*5,	RS4	T/6,	/.	U,6,&15	O,)%51*'/(34	V1&*	W<4	13	*+,N	01N	X,	10,(6,6	.&/0	*'0,	*/	*'0,	7+,&,'(1.*,&	&,.,&&,6	*/	13	*+,	YO,)%51*'/(3Z94	:+'2+	1&,	+,&,'(	'(2/&-/&1*,6	XN	&,.,&,(2,	1(6	016,	1	-1&*	/.	*+'3	2/(*&12*=		 W=	�>D[BLE\B?BDCHB>D=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&4	:'*+	&,)1&6	*/	*+,	:/&]	-,&./&0,6	XN	'*	6%&'()	*+,	2/(*&12*4	3+155	(/*	6'32&'0'(1*,	/(	*+,	)&/%(63	/.	&12,4	2/5/&4	(1*'/(15	/&')'(4	),(6,&	/&	3,̂	7'(25%6'()	-&,)(1(2N4	),(6,&	'6,(*'.'21*'/(	/&	,̂-&,33'/(4	1(6	3,̂%15	/&',(*1*'/(94	1),	7'(25%6'()	.,6,&155N	-&/*,2*,6	R_	N,1&3	/&	/56,&94	6'31X'5'*N	/&	/*+,&	+1(6'21-4	5/:̀'(2/0,	3*1*%34	5'0'*,6	a()5'3+	-&/.'2',(2N4	&,5')'/(4	),(,*'2	'(./&01*'/(4	),(6,&	'6,(*'.'21*'/(4	2&,,64	0'5'*1&N	3*1*%3	7-13*4	-&,3,(*4	/&	.%*%&,94	0,6'215	2/(6'*'/(34	/&	01&'*15b.10'5'15	3*1*%3	'(	*+,	3,5,2*'/(	1(6	&,*,(*'/(	/.	3%X2/(*&12*/&34	'(25%6'()	-&/2%&,0,(*3	/.	01*,&'153	1(6	5,13,3	/.	,c%'-0,(*=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&	3+155	(/*	-1&*'2'-1*,	,'*+,&	6'&,2*5N	/&	'(6'&,2*5N	'(	*+,	6'32&'0'(1*'/(	-&/+'X'*,6	XN	d,2*'/(	RS	TUO	W<=e	/.	*+,	O,)%51*'/(34	'(25%6'()	,0-5/N0,(*	-&12*'2,3	:+,(	*+,	2/(*&12*	2/P,&3	1	-&/)&10	3,*	./&*+	'(	f--,(6'̂	g	*/	-1&*	W<	/.	*+,	O,)%51*'/(3=		 h=	#>ABEBHCHB>DL	i>\	#KjE>DH\CEHLk	BDEAK[BDJ	�\>EK\F?FDHL	>i	"CHF\BCAL	CD[	�lKB@?FDH=	m(	155	3/5'2'*1*'/(3	,'*+,&	XN	2/0-,*'*'P,	X'66'()	/&	(,)/*'1*'/(	016,	XN	*+,	2/(*&12*/&	./&	:/&]	*/	X,	-,&./&0,6	%(6,&	1	3%X2/(*&12*4	'(25%6'()	-&/2%&,0,(*3	/.	01*,&'153	/&	5,13,3	/.	,c%'-0,(*4	,12+	-/*,(*'15	3%X2/(*&12*/&	/&	3%--5',&	3+155	X,	(/*'.',6	XN	*+,	2/(*&12*/&	/.	*+,	2/(*&12*/&n3	/X5')1*'/(3	%(6,&	*+'3	2/(*&12*	1(6	*+,	O,)%51*'/(3	&,51*'P,	*/	(/(6'32&'0'(1*'/(	/(	*+,	)&/%(63	/.	&12,4	2/5/&4	(1*'/(15	/&')'(4	),(6,&	/&	3,̂	7'(25%6'()	-&,)(1(2N4	),(6,&	'6,(*'.'21*'/(	/&	,̂-&,33'/(4	1(6	3,̂%15	/&',(*1*'/(94	1),	7'(25%6'()	.,6,&155N	-&/*,2*,6	R_	N,1&3	/&	/56,&94	6'31X'5'*N	/&	/*+,&	+1(6'21-4	5/:̀'(2/0,	3*1*%34	5'0'*,6	a()5'3+	-&/.'2',(2N4	&,5')'/(4	),(,*'2	'(./&01*'/(4	),(6,&	'6,(*'.'21*'/(4	2&,,64	0'5'*1&N	3*1*%3	7-13*4	-&,3,(*4	/&	.%*%&,94	0,6'215	2/(6'*'/(34	/&	01&'*15b.10'5'15	3*1*%3=		 R=	!Di>\?CHB>D	CD[	�F@>\HL=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&	3+155	-&/P'6,	155	'(./&01*'/(	1(6	&,-/&*3	&,c%'&,6	XN	*+,	O,)%51*'/(3	/&	6'&,2*'P,3	'33%,6	-%&3%1(*	*+,&,*/	1(6	3+155	-,&0'*	122,33	*/	'*3	X//]34	&,2/&634	122/%(*34	/*+,&	3/%&2,3	/.	'(./&01*'/(4	1(6	'*3	.12'5'*',3	13	01N	X,	6,*,&0'(,6	XN	*+,	o'6̀Q+'/	O,)'/(15	V51(('()	T/00'33'/(	7oQOVT94	*+,	Q+'/	$,-1&*0,(*	/.	M&1(3-/&*1*'/(	7Q$QM94	/&	p=d=	$QM	*/	X,	-,&*'(,(*	*/	132,&*1'(	2/0-5'1(2,	:'*+	3%2+	O,)%51*'/(34	/&6,&34	1(6	'(3*&%2*'/(3=	q+,&,	1(N	'(./&01*'/(	&,c%'&,6	/.	1	2/(*&12*/&	'3	'(	*+,	,̂25%3'P,	-/33,33'/(	/.	1(/*+,&	:+/	.1'53	/&	&,.%3,3	*/	.%&('3+	*+'3	'(./&01*'/(4	*+,	2/(*&12*/&	3+155	3/	2,&*'.N	*/	oQOVT4	Q$QM	/&	p=d=	$QM4	13	1--&/-&'1*,4	1(6	3+155	3,*	./&*+	:+1*	,../&*3	'*	+13	016,	*/	/X*1'(	*+,	'(./&01*'/(=		 e=	#CDEHB>DL	i>\	�>DE>?@ABCDEF=	m(	*+,	,P,(*	/.	*+,	2/(*&12*/&n3	(/(2/0-5'1(2,	:'*+	*+,	(/(6'32&'0'(1*'/(	-&/P'3'/(3	/.	*+'3	2/(*&12*4	oQOVT	3+155	'0-/3,	3%2+	2/(*&12*	31(2*'/(3	13	'*4	Q$QM	/&	*+,	p=d=	$QM	01N	6,*,&0'(,	*/	X,	1--&/-&'1*,4	'(25%6'()4	X%*	(/*	5'0'*,6	*/;		 1=	q'*++/56'()	/.	-1N0,(*3	*/	*+,	2/(*&12*/&	%(6,&	*+,	2/(*&12*	%(*'5	*+,	2/(*&12*/&	2/0-5',34	1(6b/&	X=	T1(2,551*'/(4	*,&0'(1*'/(4	/&	3%3-,(3'/(	/.	*+,	2/(*&12*4	'(	:+/5,	/&	'(	-1&*=		 r=	!DE>\@>\CHB>D	>i	�\>sBLB>DL=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&	1(6	3%X2/(*&12*/&739	3+155	'(25%6,	*+,	-&/P'3'/(3	/.	-1&1)&1-+3	<	*+&/%)+	e	'(	,P,&N	3%X2/(*&12*4	'(25%6'()	-&/2%&,0,(*3	/.	01*,&'153	1(6	5,13,3	/.	,c%'-0,(*4	%(5,33	,̂,0-*	XN	*+,	O,)%51*'/(3	/&	6'&,2*'P,3	'33%,6	-%&3%1(*	*+,&,*/=	M+,	2/(*&12*/&	1(6	3%X2/(*&12*/&739	3+155	*1],	3%2+	12*'/(	:'*+	&,3-,2*	*/	1(N	3%X2/(*&12*	/&	-&/2%&,0,(*	13	oQOVT4	Q$QM		/&	p=d=	$QM	01N	6'&,2*	13	1	0,1(3	/.	,(./&2'()	3%2+	-&/P'3'/(3	'(25%6'()	31(2*'/(3	./&	(/(2/0-5'1(2,=	V&/P'6,64	+/:,P,&4	*+1*	'(	*+,	,P,(*	1	2/(*&12*/&	/&	3%X2/(*&12*/&739	X,2/0,3	'(P/5P,6	'(4	/&	'3	*+&,1*,(,6		



����������	�	
��������	������	�����	����������	����	�	� !"���#�"��#	�#	� $$��%#	��	�	#%� ��	�&	� "�	'�#%"�����	��%	"���#�"��#	�#	� !"���#�"��#(�)	*�+	#%, %��	-./01	�#	.2.3	��	%��%#	����	� "�	����������	��	$#��%"�	��%	���%#%���	�&	-./01	�#	.2.3	��'�	��	�''������	��%	"���#�"��#	*�+	#%, %��	��%	4���%'	5���%�	��	%��%#	����	� "�	����������	��	$#��%"�	��%	���%#%���	�&	��%	4���%'	5���%�6	



 
Commission Members Present in Person 
LaGrieta Acheampong 
Chris Amorose Groomes 
Joe Antram 
Lee Bodnar 
Jamie Brucker 
Ron Bullard 
Gary Burkholder 
Franklin Christman 
Christina Drummond 
Brad Ebersole 
Dave Efland 

Jennifer Fening 
Cindi Fitzpatrick 
Brad Foster 
Jeremiah Gracia 
Jeff Hall 
Pam Hykes O’Grady 
Laurie Jadwin 
James Jewell 
Emily Keeler 
Ben Kessler 
Glenn Marzluf 

Rory McGuiness 
Eric Meyer 
Megan O’Callaghan 
Ryan Rivers 
Joe Steager 
Robyn Stewart 
Andy Volenik 
Andrew Williams 
Tim Wilson

 
Commission Members Attending Remotely 
Herb Asher 
Kristen Atha 
Michael Bivens 
Stacey Boumis 
Susan Brobst 
Ben Carpenter 
Ben Collins 
Terry Emery 
Shane Farnsworth 
Sam Filkins 
Jeff Gottke 

Rebecca Hermann 
Tom Homan 
Christine Houk 
Tom Johnson 
Carol Kauffman 
Bill LaFayette 
Nate Lang 
Joe Long 
Kris Long 
Mark Mauter 
Steve Mazer 

Dave Medley 
Brittany Misner 
Pat Myers 
Eric Phillips 
Bernita Reese 
Alana Shockey 
Brandon Standley 
Nancy White 
RC Wise 
Kenneth Wright 

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members Present in Person 
Kristen Easterday Thom Slack 
 
MORPC Staff Present in Person 
Parag Agrawal 
Mike Borger 
Todd Bradley 
Kerstin Carr 
Dave Dixon 
Andrea Doolittle 
Preston Frick 
Nick Gill 

Ralonda Hampton 
Shawn Hufstedler 
Níel Jurist 
Eileen Leuby 
Kelsey Matson 
Jonathan Miller 
William Murdock 
Kyle Probert 

Melissa Rapp 
Padmini Roy-Dixon 
Shari Saunders 
Lei Sun 
Brandi Whetstone 
Robert Williams

 
MORPC Staff Attending Remotely 
April Bumgardner 
Brian Filiatraut 

Lynn Kaufman 
Karina Peggau 

 
Guests Present in Person 
Sheila Boehner, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
David Clark, Clinton Township 
Grace Byler, Morrow County 

Cornell Robertson, Mannik Smith Group 
Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

 
Guests Attending Remotely 
Mike Anderson 
Cindi Cooper, City of Sunbury 
Mendra Hupp, Perry County Commissioners 

Andy Shifflett, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Daniel Van Epps 
Brent Welch, FCEO

 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
  

Date: April 11, 2024 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Location: MORPC Town Hall 



Commission Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 2 

 
Meeting Called to Order – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Chris Amorose Groomes called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 
Chair Amorose Groomes announced she is appointing Terry Emery, City Manager of Marysville, to 
chair a newly formed Central Ohio Passenger Rail Advisory Committee. She will name additional 
committee members in the next month and will report the names at the May Commission meeting. 
 
Recognition of Guests and New Members – Eileen Leuby, MORPC Membership Services 
Officer 
Elieen Leuby welcomed new Commission representatives and guests: 

• Brad Foster, Franklin County Engineer 

• David Clark, Clinton Township Trustee 
 
Ms. Leuby announced this is Franklin Christman’s last meeting before his retirement. 
 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 
William Murdock welcomed members and announced thee is a link to the Logan County/Indian Lake 
Tornado Relief Fund in the member newsletter issued this morning. 
 
Over 200 students applied for MORPC’s Summer Intern Program. While we have matched many of 
them, there are still many available. Mr. Murdock encouraged members to consider this as an 
opportunity for your community to connect them to public service while helping your community. Last 
year we connected fifty students. 
 
Mr. Murdock thanked those who attended this year’s State of the Region. The event recording is 
available on MORPC’s YouTube Channel. The event celebrated great public servants like Franklin 
Christman, Lark Mallory, and the framework effort in Licking County. Contact MORPC if interested in 
connecting with keynote speaker Majora Carter. MORPC unveiled the early results from the Leaders 
Listen Survey with The Columbus Dispatch. 
 
Approximately 2,000 people from MORPC’s 15 counties responded to the Leaders Listen Survey 
that focused on housing and transportation. The survey confirmed the stress on low to moderate 
income families when they are looking for housing that they can afford. For those in the lower 
income levels, thirty to forty percent are cutting back on essentials to afford housing. MORPC is 
working on the final report. 
 
The 15-county Regional Water Study with Ohio EPA kicked off April 1. A monthly conversation 
series with communities kicks off April 24. 
 
MORPC is excited to get the Passenger Rail Committee started. We will move forward connecting to 
communities that expressed interest in the committee. MORPC partnered with the City of Fort 
Wayne to issue an RFQ for the Midwest Connect (Chicago-Columbus-Pittsburgh) route. Midwest 
Connect is one of the first ten out of 68 national grant applicants moving forward. The State of Ohio 
is working on the 3C&D RFP. 
 
Last week, Congresswoman Beatty hosted U.S. Department of Transportation Deputy Secretary 
Polly Trottenberg, and community leaders from the LinkUS area to tour some of the routes and 
officially announce the $42 million grant to support the West Broad Corridor. Mr. Murdock thanked 
those that provided letters of support for the grant application. MORPC continues to work with 
partners and COTA on the Transit Supportive Infrastructure (TSI). MORPC created a tool that we 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-ED-Report.pdf
https://secure.givelively.org/donate/united-way-of-logan-county-inc/indian-lake-tornado-relief-fund
https://secure.givelively.org/donate/united-way-of-logan-county-inc/indian-lake-tornado-relief-fund
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QPwI_pVnshQ


Commission Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 3 

 
are rolling out community by community. We are creating one-page lists of community projects 
specific to your community. 
 
MORPC’s Economic Development Director has been all over the region meeting with folks in 
economic development and community leaders to learn what gaps we can fill, what tools we are not 
using as a region, and what resources we can leverage. The Economic Development Team 
interviewed seven comparable Economic Development Districts (EDDs) across the country to gather 
insight and information. Based on the interviews, the Team recommends creating a new 
Comprehensive Economic Development (CEDS) Committee that will advise on our work. The CEDS 
will think regionally about how the EDD can advance all our communities and how it can leverage 
things MORPC is already doing. We are working with U.S. EDA to make sure we are structuring it 
appropriately. It will come through the Bylaws Committee later in the year.  
 
The Member Benefit of the Month is the Council of Development Finance Agencies (CDFA). All 
MORPC members receive a free membership in the national association that provides training, 
access to resources and financing opportunities. 
 
The Grant Opportunity of the Month is the Preservation and Reinvestment Initiative for Community 
Enhancement (PRICE). The grant allows communities to get assertive and creative with 
manufactured housing and how that can impact affordability issues. 
 
Upcoming Events: 

• “Mobilizing Your Workforce” Rural Series – April 25, 10 a.m., City of Marysville City Hall 

• Beyond Dialogue: Implementing DEIB in Your Organization – April 30, 5 p.m., MORPC 

• Regional Planning Update Lunch: Central Area – May 1, 12 p.m., Franklin County Office 
Tower, 16th Floor 

• May Pre-Commission Luncheon – May 9, 12 p.m., MORPC, Featuring Colonel Andrew P. 
Powers 

• 2024 Supplier Diversity & Procurement Summit – May 15, 9 a.m., Columbus Metropolitan 
Library 

• “Raising the Fun Factor: Revitalization that Accelerates Value” Rural Series – May 22, 10 
a.m., City of Newark-County Office 

 
Proposed Resolution 06-24: “Accepting the Village of Mt. Sterling as a member of the Mid-
Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC)” – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 
Director 
Joe Antram made a motion to approve Resolution 06-24, second by Franklin Christman; motion 
passed. 
 
Regional Data Advisory Committee – Christina Drummond (City of Powell), Regional Data 
Advisory Committee Chair 
Christina Drummond presented the Regional Data Advisory Committee Report. Ms. Drummond 
announced two new members joined the committee last week; Rick Wagner, Deputy Director of 
Technology for the City of Columbus and Sam Filkins, Vice President of the Area Development 
Foundation representing Knox County. 
 
Ms. Drummond gave an update on how the Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) Working 
Groups are moving the 2023-2025 Regional Data Agenda forward. 
 
The preliminary highlights of the Leaders Listen Survey focused on Housing were shared during the 
State of the Region. Ms. Drummond shared key findings of the survey: 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-RDAC.pdf


Commission Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 4 

 

• Approximately thirty-eight percent of residents in the 15-county Central Ohio area can find 
affordable housing. 

• Over half of all respondents indicated they sacrificed or missed payments on necessities 
such as food, clothing, utilities, or auto-maintenance. Almost half of lower income residents 
reported sacrificing food, close to a third reported sacrifices in the areas of clothing, utilities, 
and automotive payments or maintenance. Middle income households, those earning up 
to just under $100,000 annually are also showing significant signs of strain. 

• Eighty-two percent of residents say LinkUS would be moderately to extremely beneficial to 
the community. 

 
Look for an Actionable Insights report later this Spring. 
 
Ms. Drummond thanked Kerstin Carr for all she has done. She is a wonderful sounding board, 
innovative collaborator, and source of support for the work of RDAC. 
 
Regional Policy Roundtable – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 
William Murdock presented the Regional Policy Roundtable Update. Last week’s visit from 
Congresswoman Beatty and U.S. DOT Deputy Secretary Polly Trottenberg was a major vote of 
confidence for what we are doing and leading nationally. During the visit we were able to advocate 
for other regional opportunities to build on the LinkUS efforts. The monthly Member Newsletter 
issued early today includes legislative updates. The next Regional Policy Roundtable Meeting is May 
23. There are new MORPC information cards available that provide links to all to our online 
information, meetings, policy agenda, etc. 
 

• Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Steve Tugend gave the legislative update highlighting the following: 
o 2025 Community Project Funding 
o State of the State Address 
o Capital Budget and Strategic Community Investment Fund 
o Association of Defense Communities Conference 

 
Sustainability Advisory Committee – Ben Kessler (City of Bexley), Sustainability Advisory 
Committee Chair 
Ben Kessler presented the Sustainability Advisory Committee Report. Ohio EPA and MORPC are 
hosting regular webinars for interested parties to learn more about the Regional Water Study and its 
progress. The first webinar is April 24. 
 
MORPC and partners recently submitted a $73.5 million grant application to the U.S. EPA Climate 
Pollution Reduction Grant program. The Growing Green program proposes a strategic blend of solar 
installations, smart LED street lighting, and electric bus rapid transit vehicles. MORPC appreciates 
the support from our members and partners in this process, receiving 50 letters of support identifying 
250 potential public sector solar projects. Funding announcements are expected late summer or 
early fall. 
 
In March, you may have seen headlines claiming that Columbus has the worst air quality of the 
major cities in the U.S., for a second year in a row. MORPC and Ohio EPA officials confirmed this 
claim is inaccurate and inconsistent with MORPC’s annual reports and official data from Ohio EPA’s 
monitors. While MORPC is not privy to the specific data and methods for the IQAir global report, we 
know from the available information that there are flaws.  
 

https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-RPR.pdf
https://www.morpc.org/2023/wp-content/uploads/2024/04/04-11-2024-SAC.pdf


Commission Minutes 

April 11, 2024 

Page 5 

 
Air Quality Awareness Week is May 6-10. Mayor Kessler encouraged members to consider adopting 
an Air Quality Awareness Week proclamation. Contact MORPC’s Air Quality & Sustainability 
Coordinator Mauro Diaz-Hernandez for more information and a sample proclamation. 
 
Earth Day is April 22. It was first celebrated in 1970, the year the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency was established. Celebrate Trails Day is April 27. Earth Day Columbus is hosting their 
annual celebration on April 27, 11 a.m.-8 p.m., at Genoa Park. MORPC Team Members will be 
present so please stop by. MORPC can help promote your Earth Day events on social media.  
 
The next Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting is June 5, 2:30 p.m. at MORPC.  
 
Mayor Kessler recognized and thanked Kerstin Carr for her work and shared comments from the 
Sustainability Advisory Committee and her staff.  
 
Transportation Policy Committee – Chris Amorose Groomes (City of Dublin), MORPC Chair 
Chair Amorose Groomes called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:15 p.m. 
The session adjourned at 2:31 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 
 
Chair Amorose Groomes asked Commissioner Joe Antram if he would like to speak about last 
month’s tornado in Logan County. Commissioner Antram shared how he felt everyone’s prayers, 
thoughts, and support. He appreciates the communities that sent law enforcement, tree services, 
dump trucks, cranes, etc. There was a great outpouring of support. They are working hard to 
recover. He appreciated the opportunity to say thank you. 

 
Commission Consent Agenda  
Andy Volenik made a motion to approve the Commission Consent Agenda, second by Emily Keeler; 
motion passed.  
 
Other Business 
William Murdock announced Kerstin Carr is leaving MORPC. Dr. Carr has been at MORPC 18 years 
and given so much to the region and has an incredible impact on MORPC. MORPC will miss her. 
Every year MORPC employees fund an intern for the local summer intern program. We are naming 
the scholarship in honor of Dr. Carr next year. 
 
Dr. Carr shared how she was affiliated with MORPC before starting to work here. She worked with 
the Ride Solutions Program and AEP on her dissertation from 2004-2006. She started at MORPC to 
develop a regional safety program in 2006. Her work at MORPC included safety, active 
transportation, community development, and sustainability. She thanked the Commission for their 
support and engagement. Dr. Carr thanked Mr. Murdock for being supportive and empowering. She 
praised her Team for their passion for their work. It was a hard decision for her to leave. She is 
spending time with her daughter and family over the summer. She has a professional coaching 
certification and expects to continue coaching. She will continue to cheer on MORPC. Chair 
Amorose Groomes thanked Dr. Carr for her service and announced there is a reception for Dr. Carr 
immediately following today’s meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Ben Kessler, Secretary 
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 



��

� ����������	
���������������������������� ��	������	�� �!	��� ��"#$��� ���� �� ��	�%
����&����"#$��� ' %�( ��� 	���������������)�����$�*�

+,-./0123-��
�45567889:�;<=>?�@6ABCD@�75�7EE8CF7DCG5�DG�DHI�<HCG�JIE7KDBI5D�GL�MK75@EGKD7DCG5�N<J<MO�LGK�E8755C5P�L65Q@�DG�FG5DC56I�DHI�BIDKGEG8CD75�E8755C5P�EKGPK7B:�7@�F6KKI5D89�QILC5IQ�A9�DHI�RSTUVWXUYZXYU[�RS\[WX][SX�̂�_̀aW�bZXc�VdẀ�eS̀fS�VW�Xg[�hijkVUXjWVS�RSTUVWXUYZXYU[�lVfmn�ò][�̀T�Xg[W[�TYSpW�VU[�Vdd̀ZVX[p�X̀�qrstu�̀S�V�hT̀U]YdVn�aVWjWc�VSp�̀Xg[UW�VU[�Vdd̀ZVX[p�VX�Xg[�pjWZU[Xj̀S�GL�;<=>?�75Q�GDHIK�7PI5FCI@v�MHI�7EEKGEKC7DI�EGKDCG5@�GL�DHI�PK75D@�75Q�DHI�8GF78�@H7KI@�7KI�C5F86QIQ�C5�DHI�7PI5F9�A6QPID�LGK�wxwyv��zGK�{D7DI�zC@F78�|I7K�N{z|O�wxw}:�~HCFH�AIPC5@��689��:�wxwy:�;<=>?�C@�KI�6I@DC5P���:���:�y}�GL�5I~�FGBAC5IQ�zIQIK78��CPH~79�4QBC5C@DK7DCG5�Nz��4O�75Q�zIQIK78�MK75@CD�4QBC5C@DK7DCG5�NzM4O�E8755C5P�L65Q@:�75Q��yw�:wy��GL�5I~�<J<M�B7DFHC5P�L65Q@v�MHI�;<=>?�8GF78�@H7KI�LGK�DHI@I�PK75D@�C@��yw�:wy�m��g[W[�VU[�Xg[�hT̀U]YdVn�TYSpW�WYkk̀UXjS��Xg[�aVW[�XUVSWk̀UXVXj̀S�E8755C5Pv���C@DGKCF7889:�;<=>?�H7@�I5FG6K7PIQ�KCQI@H7KC5P�75Q��75EGG8@v��5�{z|�wxw}�;<=>?�~C88�AI�6@C5P���}x:xxx�GL�;<=>?�?G5PI@DCG5�;CDCP7DCG5�4CK��678CD9�N?;4�O�L65Q@�LGK�DHI�KCQI@H7KC5P�EKGPK7Bv��<DHIK�QC@FKIDCG57K9�@EIFC78�EKG�IFD@�C5F86QI��yxx:xxx�C5�;<=>?�{M���L65Q@�LGK�=IPCG578�{6EE8IBI5D78�>8755C5P�DHKG6PH�~GK��I8IBI5D���}�}��xxx�DH7D�C5F86QI@�@I�I5�7FDC�CDCI@��� �v�>KG�IFD���EIQCDCG5�{z|�wxw}���46PBI5D�DHI�ILLGKD@�GL�DHI�M�>�EKG�IFD�DG�I5@6KI�DHI�DCBI89�FGBE8IDCG5�GL�EKG�IFD@�L65QIQ�~CDH�;<=>?�7DDKCA6D7A8I�L65Q@v��

���� ;CQ�<HCG�=IPCG578�>8755C5P�?GBBC@@CG5���IF6DC�I�?GBBCDDII�<LLCFIK@�75Q��G7KQ�;IBAIK@����+�� �CF���C88:�MK75@EGKD7DCG5�{D6Q9�JCKIFDGK�������� 4EKC8�w�:�wxwy�� ¡¢£�¤��� >KGEG@IQ�=I@G86DCG5�x��wy��¥¦§̈©ª«¬¬®̄ �̈©°�,±,²3³́µ,�2́/,²³./�³.�¶́·,�0̧ ·̧́²0³́.1¹�º́³»¼�,±,²3³,�0½/,,-,1³¹�º́³»¼�012�/,²,́µ,�¶312¹�¶/.-�³»,�¡¾ ¾�¿°ÀÁ«̈Â°®̈�ªÃ�Ä«Á®ÅÀª«̈Á̈¬ª®�Á®Æ�̈©°�Ç©¬ª�¿°ÀÁ«̈Â°®̈�ªÃ�Ä«Á®ÅÀª«̈Á̈¬ª®È�



�

�

����������	�
���	���������������������������������������������������������������	��������
����������������������	�� ���!����������������	"�����
������!����
���
�	����������	"������#���!� ���������	��������������#�������������
�����
�������#�������	�	����	�"���#���������������� ����
��������#���$��%�&��	������ '��(�������
��	���
�)������	����#�	�����
�	�	����������	������	���
�
�������
��	��#���	���������&��!��������	�*�+,+��������
�*�+�+������-����	����������
����������
��������	.��/������
�	����#����������	���
�	������	���������������
����	#��������
������������ ���
�	����������#�����������(�����
��	�� �%����������� ����		�	���������������	��������
�	����������
���"��������
����
�������	����"���
�����	�������������� 	�	��		�	���������������	�������0�	������	�
��	����
���
�� ������������������������	��� +��/�������������%���������	�	����������	����	�����	�����&��!�������/�������������%���������	��� *��%��
�����	������ ���	����#���
����������������������#������	����������	 	�����������#����������������� ���%���
������&��#���#���������������������	�	�#��	��#�����������)	���������� �����
�����������	��#������#����#���������+�������������������	���������������-���.�1���	���23�456789:�;<=>�=3�?53=@6975?�9�AB9=675696C5D�9859�E>8�>F>65�96?�E>8�E=65�G987=CH:975�B97758I��$��%�&��������������	������������
��
�������������	���������0���� ��J+�+"�������%��K���
����&�������	�
�����&��!���������**�'+�,��������)LM����+���/��)LM���,+"�����&�	����������N����&��!���������&�	�����
�
�����
����	�����#��L�
���������	����
����	��������-L��.�)�������+',����
���������#��%����	������O�
��������$��%"��	��#��
�	������
����������"�&�������������������������������������L�������	������
����	���������L����)LM�����"������P������ �J,'Q"��Q�������	���
�&�������������
����&��
������)LM����+���#��)LM����+���
	�&�������J,�'"�+����
���������
�
����&��!���������*��,+�'�������$��%�#�	�����O�
�L���)�������+',����
������������
��������� ���������	�������#���#���%�������$#�����#�	�&�	��������
����)LM�������L����)LM�����������P������ �J,��"����������	���
�&�������������
����&��
������)LM����+���$��%��������
���	���������������������%M����'������	����
��#�	�������� �������P������ �J,�+"����������	���
�&�������������
����&��
������)LM����+�����$��%�&�������������#�����#�������		�	������������������		�	������������������	����	������������������	��������������������	�������
����	��������	�����#���������+�������������������	����������������#���#�&��!���������**+�+�,�������)LM����+�	����J��+"�������)�R1���
	���/�����'"��$��%�������
����S)($�T	�)����)�����	���
����
	���������-))��.�
�	��������� �������������������	���� ������������
	��/��(�����������'"��$��%��������
���������������������&��
����J,"�'�"�������LUV����
������#�	��	�����������#�
�� �J�+W"����������������� ����	����"��$��%�



�

�

����������	�
���	����������������������
���������
����������������� �!������	�!��"���������##$%������ �!�����
��������&�������'��������	����������(�������������
����
���	����������������������
�
����	�����������������	�������

��		�"��������������	������������)*��������+������� �����
����������	����������,���	������-��������������	��'��&����������.��"��������	���
������!�����

��		�
����������	���	������	 �����	������������
�
��������	�����'��&������������������
	���������������/��������0* )�* �#���1�������������-��������
�����������(23����#������	��������	����
	��	�������
��������(23����$��'��&��.��������������	��������	�������'4'� �2�1 ���
�25.1��1������
������	��������������	���	�������������(23����$��'��&��.���/�����
����-���������
�-����������	�����������������&����������
�����	���������#����������&�������'������������������'�����6������7&'��'8�!�	�������
��	����������������	�������������������'�����6������7���'8���
��	�	�����
�-���'��&��'4'����
�������
�	�������
	����������0��� *�$ ���	�0�� ��#������!������������������
	�����-�������9�	��
����������������&'��'��1��.������&'��'���	���	��-����
�������
�!��������!��"��������	�����
�
��	��������������������	�����������������	�������������������6�	������/�������
�����������	-������
��/�����������9���
������������������	���
�������
����������	 �����
��������-�����������������	�!����'4'�����������'��&���
�&'��'�����	�����������������������	��������	���������	����	��	��'��&:	������������!�������������������	�	�����	���9���
������������������
�������
	���;�<��1���������=���	������������������



���������	
����

������������
���
���������
��������
��
 �!�
"##!��"����$
%���&
�������
"����'���$
()*+,
-./
0121)31
45./6
4078
*+1
9:;:
<1=-0*81.*
74
>0-.6=70*-*)7.
-./
*+1
?+)7
@�#"��'���
� 
A�"�$#���"����B

CD���E�F
GHI
�IJKIGLKM
NO
GHI
�P�P
QIRLKGSITG
NO
�KLTURNKGLGVNT
W�P�P
Q��X
VU
LYGHNKVZI[
GN
SL\I
]KLTGU
ONK
GKLTURNKGLGVNT
R̂LTTVT]
OYT[U
JNTUVUGITG
_VGH
GHI
àbcdefcghfgci
̀ajiefkiaf
dal
mnoe
phf
q̀̀mprs
dten
uanva
de
fwi
xyz{dcfzeda
àbcdefcghfgci
|dv}~
LT[

CD���E�F
GHIUI
OYT[U
LKI
L[SVTVUGIKI[
VT
�HVN
�M
GHI
�HVN
QIRLKGSITG
NO
�KLTURNKGLGVNT
W�Q��X�
LT[

CD���E�F
GHI
JNTGKLJGU
ONK
OVTLTJVL̂
LUUVUGLTJI
_V̂̂
VSRNUI
JIKGLVT
N�̂V]LGVNTU
YRNT
GHI
�V[�HVN
�I]VNTL̂
�̂LTTVT]
�NSSVUUVNT
W�����XF
VTĴY[VT]
GHI
RKN�VUVNT
NO
GHI
N̂JL̂
UHLKI
NO
RKN�IJG
JNUGU�
LT[

CD���E�F
GHI
GKLTURNKGLGVNT
R̂LTTVT]
RKNJIUU
VU
L̂UN
KI�YVKI[
GN
�I
VT
JNSR̂VLTJI
_VGH
GHI
�̂ILT
EVK
EJG
ESIT[SITGU
NO
����
W�EEEX�
LT[

CD���E�F
VG
VU
KI�YVKI[
�M
GHI
�P�P
Q��F
GHLG
VT
JNTTIJGVNT
_VGH
OV̂VT]
LRR̂VJLGVNTU
ONK
LUUVUGLTJIF
�����
]V�IU
LT
LUUYKLTJI
GHLG
VG
_V̂̂
JNSR̂M
_VGH
�VĜI
��
NO
GHI
�V�V̂
�V]HGU
EJG
NO
����
LT[
GHI
�P�P
Q��
KI�YVKISITGU
GHIKIYT[IK�
LT[

CD���E�F
�����
HLU
IUGL�̂VUHI[
RKNJI[YKIU
ONK
GHI
QVUL[�LTGL]I[
�YUVTIUU
�TGIKRKVUI
WQ��X
RKN]KLSF
LT[
VG
VU
GHI
]NL̂
NO
�����F
_VGHVT
GHI
KI�YVKISITGU
NO
�P�P
Q��
LT[
�Q��F
GHLG
Q��U
�I
YGV̂VZI[
GN
GHI
SL�VSYS
I�GITG
OILUV�̂I
_HIT
RKNJYKVT]
I�YVRSITGF
UYRR̂VIUF
LT[
UIK�VJIU�
LT[

CD���E�F
GN
[N
UNSI
NO
GHI
RKN�IJGU
VT
GHI
�GLGI
�VUJL̂
�ILK
����
�����
�̂LTTVT]
CNK\
�KN]KLS
W�C�X
LT[
GHI
�ITGKL̂
�HVN
�YKL̂
�̂LTTVT]
�K]LTVZLGVNT
W�����X
�C�F
VG
_V̂̂
�I
TIJIUULKM
GN
UIJYKI
SLGJHVT]
OYT[U
OKNS
NGHIK
L]ITJVIU
LT[
GN
UY�JNTGKLJG
_NK\
NK
SL\I
RYKJHLUIU
RIK
GHI
IUGVSLGI[
LSNYTGU
UHN_T
VT
GHI
LGGLJHSITGU�
TN_
GHIKIONKI

��
��
�������Q
��
�D�
��<�?��?
����?���
��������
�?���;;�?��

�IJGVNT
�P
 �HLG
GHI
I�IJYGV�I
[VKIJGNK
VU
LYGHNKVZI[
GN
OV̂I
LRR̂VJLGVNTU
_VGH
LT[
I�IJYGI
]KLTG
L]KIISITGU
NT
�IHL̂O
NO
�����
_VGH
�P�P
Q��
LT[
�Q��F
GN
LV[
VT
OVTLTJVT]
GIJHTVJL̂
UGY[VIU
LT[
NGHIK
GKLTURNKGLGVNT
KÎLGI[
LJGV�VGVIUP

�IJGVNT
�P
 �HLG
GHI
I�IJYGV�I
[VKIJGNK
VU
LYGHNKVZI[
GN
ITGIK
VTGN
L
JNTGVTYVT]
L]KIISITG
_VGH
�Q��
GN
VSR̂ISITG
��
�P�P�P
����
LT[
��
�P�P�P
�����F
LU
SLM
�I
LSIT[I[F
VT
GHI
�N̂YS�YU
SIGKNRN̂VGLT
R̂LTTVT]
LKILF
VTĴY[VT]
[IUV]TLGVNT
NO
�����
LU
GHI
SIGKNRN̂VGLT
R̂LTTVT]
NK]LTVZLGVNT
KIURNTUV�̂I
 ONK
 JNT[YJGVT]
 GHI
 JNTGVTYVT]F
 JNNRIKLGV�IF
 LT[
JNSRKIHITUV�I
YK�LT
GKLTURNKGLGVNT
R̂LTTVT]
RKNJIUUP




���������	
����
����
�

�������
��
 ����
���
���� ��!�
"�#����#
�$
� ���#�%�"
��
����#
����
�
������ ��&
�&#��'���
(���
)*)�
��
���" ��
�#��$+�#������
+,�����&
-�#
���
.)/0)1
���, "��&
"�$�&������
�-
2)/0.
�$
���
/�&����,
�#��$+�#������
0,�����&
)#&���%�����
3/�0)4
-�#
���" ����&
���
������ ��&1
���+�#���!�1
��"
��'+#����$�!�
�#��$+�#������
+,�����&
+#���$$�

�������
5�
 ����
���
���� ��!�
"�#����#
�$
� ���#�%�"
��
����#
����
��&���&
�&#��'���$
�-
���+�#�����
(���
���
�� ����$1
����#+�#���"
' ����+�,����$1
��"
����#
�������$
��"
$+����,
"�$�#���$
(�����
���
�#��$
-�#
��##6��&
-�#(�#"
���
�#��$+�#������
+,�����&
+#���$$
���$�$����
(���
7789
��"
.999�

�������
:�
 ����
���
���� ��!�
"�#����#
�$
� ���#�%�"
��
���� ��
��"
-�,�
(���
$ ��
�++,�������
��
�$$ #����1
�#
��6
����#
"�� '���
#�; �#�"
<6
���
=���
*)�1
�--��� ����&
���
+ #+�$�$
�-
���,�
>7
�-
���
.�!�,
/�&��$
9��
�-
?@A51
���, "��&
�'��"'���$�

�������
A�
 ����
���
���� ��!�
"�#����#
�$
� ���#�%�"
��
- #��$�
$ ��
�""������,
��-�#'�����
�$
=���
*)�
�#
)*)�
'�6
#�; �#�
��
����������
(���
���
�++,�������
-�#
���
0B0�

�������
C�
 ����
���
���� ��!�
"�#����#
�$
� ���#�%�"
��
$��
-�#��
��"
���� ��
�--�#'���!�
"�$�"!����&�"
< $���$$
+�,����$
��
����������
(���
���
+#�D���E$
+#�� #�'���
���"$�

�������
F�
 ����
���
-�,,�(��&
�$��'���"
- �"��&
<�
#�; �$��"
-#�'
)*)�G

 ��
 H�1�A@1@5:
�-
��(
��'<���"
IJB9
0K
��"
I�9
�������
:�L�
- �"��&
3+, $
H5M?1M5�
�-
��(
2)/0.
��"
)*)�
'������&
- �"$
����4�

 <�
 HMLL1@�:
��
)*)�
-�"�#�,
��"
$����
- �"$
+, $
HMM1�MA
�-
��(
,���,
'������&
- �"$
��
������ �
���
.���#�,
)���
/ #�,
0,�����&
)#&���%������

 ��
 HC:L1LLL
�-
2)/0.
.29N
- �"$
��
$ ++�#�
2)/0.
!��+��,
��"
#�"�$��#�
'������&
+#�&#�'�

 "�
 H:C:1LLL
��
2)/0.
.29N
- �"$
-�#
��#
; �,��6
�(�#���$$
+#�&#�'�

 ��
 H5LL1LLL
��
2)/0.
��OP
- �"$
-�#
$�!��
����!����$
��
/�&����,
� ++,�'����,
0,�����&�

-�
 HMC:1LLL
��
2)/0.
��OP
- �"$
-�#
���
��������,
9$$�$�����
0#�&#�'�

&�
 H?1L�M1LLL
��
IJB9
- �"��&
3+, $
H?AC1CLL
�-
,���,Q2)/0.
��"
H@L1�LL
�-
)*)�
'������&
- �"$4
-�#
��-�
��#���$
I�#
9,,
9�����
0,��
��"
*�'��$�#�����
9���!����$�

��
 H?C�1M:L
��
I�9
�������
:�?L
- �"��&
-�#
+#�&#�'
�"'���$�#������



���������	
����
����
�


�������
��
 ����
 !�"��#$%&
�  !�"�'
 !�(���$
��'
����"����$)
*���
!�+�����,
-#',��$
����%��,
�  !�.�+���%&
/0)121)34�
��
"�!��#$
5�'�!�%)
676�)
��'
%���%
5#�'$)
-�
�#���!�8�'
��
������#��

�������
03�
 ����
���
�.��#��"�
'�!����!
�$
��!�-&
�#���!�8�'
��
����!
����
��&
�,!��+���$
*���
���$�
�!
����!
5#�'��,
�,�����$
��'
*���
��&
$#-����!����!$
�!
"��'�!$
����$$�!&
��
#�'�!��9�
��&
�5
���
����"����$
�'����5��'
��
���
�����
:�$��%
;��!
<3<2
=>=$
5�!
�+�#��$
����
��"�
-���
���%#'�'
��
���
�  !�"�'
-#',��
�5
���
�,���&�

�������
00�
 ����
���
�.��#��"�
'�!����!
�$
�#���!�8�')
�5
!�?#�!�')
��
�  !�"�
���
�!
+�!�
�.���$���$
�5
��+�
5�!
 �!5�!+����
�5
$�!"���$
5�!
��&
�5
���
�,!��+���$
'�$�!�-�'
��
���$
!�$�%#����
��'
��
!����"�
5#�'$
�!
�$$#�
����,�
�!'�!$
���
��
�.���'
<2
 �!����
�5
���
�!�,���%
����%
�5
���
�,!��+���
�+�#��$
*����#�
5#!���!
�#���!�8�����
5!�+
���$
@�++�$$����

�������
0<�
 ����
���
�.��#��"�
'�!����!
�$
�#���!�8�'
��
��9�
$#��
����!
������
��'
�.��#��
��'
'�%�"�!
$#��
����!
'��#+���$
�$)
�����,
*���
���
�'"���
�5
%�,�%
��#�$�%)
��
$��%%
'��+
����$$�!&
��'
�  !� !����
��
��!!&
�#�
���
������
�5
���$
!�$�%#�����

�������
0A�
 ����
���$
@�++�$$���
5��'$
��'
'���!+���$
����
�%%
5�!+�%
'�%�-�!�����$
��'
������$
�5
���$
@�++�$$���
�����!���,
��'
!�%����,
��
���
�'� ����
�5
���$
!�$�%#����
*�!�
��9��
��
� ��
+�����,$
�5
���$
@�++�$$����





 



@�!�$
B+�!�$�
C!��+�$)
@���!
DEFGHIEH
JKLEHMNO
PONMMEML
QHDDERREHM


S55����"�
'���T
 U�&
�)
<3<1
�#-+����'
-&T
 V��9
C�%%)
�!��$ �!������
��#'&
7�!����!
=!� �!�'
-&T
 �!��$ �!������
���55
B#���!��&T
 6���
W�"�$�'
@�'�
�������
40A�<0
:�!
B�����
7���T
 U�&
�)
<3<1


B�����+���
BT
 X�$�
�5
B���"����$
��
-�
�#-����!����'
B�����+���
YT
 �#++�!&
�5
�����
:�$��%
;��!
<3<2
U6W=@
=%�����,
>�!9
=!�,!�+
B�����+���
@T
 �����
:�$��%
;��!
<3<2
@6W=6
=%�����,
>�!9
=!�,!�+
>�!9
S%�+���$




����������	�	�
	���
���
�	�����			����	��	����������	��	��	 !���"�#$���%&		'(	)�*��	+�,,!��	,$#-���"./$%��#����"./�$"0��1	�!���%���/#�%�2,$��*�".	����3$#�	4	�00#�5�,$��16	789:;;;	��	�!%.���%	��#	,����11$"��!�	0#�"��".:	,$#-���".:	$"%	$%��#����".	��	,!1��01�	��"%�#�:	7';;:;;;	��#	�$"0��1	�!���%���	��	�$#��!�	�$"0��1	0#���%�#�:	$"%	7';:;;;	��#	#�%�2,$��*�".	����3$#�	��#	<=>?+@A	0�#���"(	=�*�#	<?=�	$#�	$1��	0$#����0$��".	�"	$	�*$#�%	��#�����	$##$".�,�"�(		B(	��#	C!$1��6	�3$#�"���	,$#-���"./$%��#����".	4	D!#�".	 EF	B;B9:	$00#�5�,$��16	7B;:;;;	��	�!%.���%	��#	$�#	G!$1��62#�1$��%	0#�"��".:	�#$��1:	�!�#�$�*:	,$#-���".:	$"%	$%��#����".	��	,!1��01�	��"%�#�(	�"	$%%����"$1	7H;:;;;	��	�!%.���%	��#	�I�"�	$"%	0$#���!1$��	��#��$���".	��#�����(		J(	K0	��	78;:;;;	��	�!���"�#$���%	��#	�#$����	��!"��".	��#�����(		8(	+�"��"!$���"	��	L"��1	��".	>$".�	?1$""�".	 !00�#�	��"�!1�$"�	��	!0	��	7MN9:;;;(		9(	 $��	 �#����	E�#	�11	 $���6	�����"	?1$"	��"�!1�$"�	$"%	��"�#$���%	$���������	��	!0	��	7':';;(;;;(		�11	��*�#	�!"%�	#������%	$"%	��"�#$���	��	��	1��	3�#�	�#	3�11	��	$%%#����%	�6	��*�#	#���1!���"�	��	#�G!�#�%(	



��������	
��������	
�����������
������������������������
	���������� �!	����"#��$%�###�%�&
�
�����'�()�
�������	
������������*+,-.---/0102312�014�50316031312�678�89681:3;8�893:6312�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685�3:�0�=<3><36?�>@�6<01:=><6063>1�0281A38:B�C73:�D><E�8F85816�A>><431068:�>1�678�G818@36:�>@�0�7>F3:63A0FF?�5010284�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685B�H8F=312�585G8<:�A>FF0G><068�>1�/IJ.�04;01A312�KCL�31AFM4312�A>118A684�31@<0:6<MA6M<8�014�NOPQO.�0AA8::�5010285816.�8:63506312�A>:6:�6>�50316031�678�A>14363>1�>@�678�6<01:=><6063>1�:?:685�31AFM4312�=0;85816�5010285816�014�48@3A3816�G<3428:.�86AB.�014�31A><=><06312�:8AM<36?�014�858<281A?�<8:=>1:8�316>�678�=F011312�=<>A8::B�/>136><312�@<83276�<03F�0A63;3638:�014�010F?R312�@><�48;8F>=312�6<814:S�5886312�>18T>1T>18�D367�A>55M13638:�6706�0<8�35=0A684�G?�@<83276S�014�=<>;34312�6358F?�31@><5063>1�;30�678�D8GB�/>136><312�2>>4:�5>;85816T<8F0684�F823:F063>1�014�>678<�<823>10F�@<83276�31363063;8:BU N>14363>1�<8=><6�>@�7327D0?�:?:685�014�<8:>M<A8:U QAA8::�/010285816U /0316031�V823>10F�KCL�Q<A7368A6M<8U W0<63A3=063>1�014�84MA063>1�>1�@<83276�31363063;8:U C<01:=><6063>1�:8AM<36?�0::3:601A8��������X����������"#��$%�###�%�Y
Z�[��	
������������*+\-.---L0@86?�A>1631M8:�6>�G8�0�:3213@3A016�@>AM:�@><�]Ĥ Q.�J_JC.�014�678�8163<8�N816<0F�J73>�<823>1B�C73:�0A63;36?�D><E:�6>�20678<�A<0:7�4060.�A>14MA6�A<0:7�4060�010F?:8:.�<8=><6�>1�:0@86?�5886312:.�81A>M<028�014�:M==><6�F>A0F�2>;8<15816:�6>�0==F?�@><�@M14312�6>�35=F85816�:0@86?�A>M168<580:M<8:.�A>14MA6�=<8T�014�=>:6TA<0:7�4060�010F?:3:�@><�:0@86?�=<>̀8A6:�6>�8;0FM068�678�G818@36:�>@�80A7�A>M168<580:M<8.�014�35=F85816:�678�abcdefg�hijk�lefcmnkedfdjkc�ofpbdq�rgfcs�U V823>10F�A<0:7�4060�010F?:3:U V823>10F�L0@86?�t4MA063>1U /85G8<�0::3:601A8U L0@86?�N>5536688�W0<63A3=063>1U W<>̀8A6�t;0FM063>1U L=8A30F�=<>̀8A6:�014�:6M438:��������X����������
"#�$$%�###�%���
�����
���u��
��Y�������	
������������*+vw.---N>><431063>1.�0::3:601A8.�014�>;8<:3276�6>�35=<>;8�6<01:36�:8<;3A8�014�D><E@><A8�5>G3F36?B�̂><E�31AFM48:�31682<063>1�>@�0FF�0:=8A6:�>@�6<01:36�014�5>G3F36?�6>�=<>;348�0AA8::�6>�0FF�=>=MF063>1:�D73F8�35=<>;312�678�<0128�>@�>=63>1:�@><�5886312�43;8<:8�5>G3F36?�1884:B

xyyz{|}~�y�y���~����y�����������z���xyyz{|}~�y���y���~����y���������Y���
�[��Y�����!����#�$�&(��������������(�����(���&��y~��������y������|~�y�yz������~y����z��������~�~}~�y�����{�������������� ~�y� �����y��¡¢£����¤¥����¦§̈©§©̈ª«¬��|~�z}���y�~�y�}zy~��y���~}z���y���~�~® ~��~��������¤��������~̄�~�y�°~z������¦§̈±²§̈ª«¬³



� �����������	�
�����	����	�������������	������� �
�������������������	��������������� ���������	����	�������������������	� �����������		�	���������
�����������	��	����� ��������	���������� ��������	!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(./010234000�3�5"67(8#"'6'+#7�9:8"#,-:-7'�!"#;"6:�<59!=�67$�9:8>-:-7'6'+#7?%$;-'.�@ABBCBBB ��	������	�	����		���������	�����������D����	�	�	������	������	����������@EFCBBB�D�����	G�		�����	�HHI ��	J
��	�	������KLFM�����N��
��������	�
�	�����������	�	����		��L�������������������	�	����		����������	��������	�����	�����	���������	�������	�	���������������������	�	�����D����	�	�	����EOBOFPQBBB�����EOBQFPOBBBL��	��H�������	������	��D���	J
��	����	����������D�������	����D�����	�	������������	�����������������
�����������	��	����L�������������������
�	����	��	�	����	��C�
����	������	�������������	��H�C����������������	�	�������
��	�����R	���C������������������	�	�������
��	����������
��
�	����R	����D�������R	�����
��	����������	����
��	�C�����������������STC��� UC��V�C������ ���
�����C���	��V ������	��C�	�������	�������
��	������	����		�������
��	����
�	����	��	D�����
����������	�	����		������	�	�������C����������	����������C���������������	�
������L���	��������������	��������	��	�����	�����	���	��DL� �����������	��WX�KBKAPKBKY��H��Z���	���	��WX�KEPK[��H�� ��������	�����������	����������R	���������V �� �����	�	����		��������������H���	�	�������� ��������������������������	����R	����	���	��������������������������������R	���� V	�����������	�����
������	�	�������
��	�����R	����Z����
���������������	����� ��������������R	�������
�	��\V��P������
����	��
�����!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(.
/02]231000�3�̂676;-_�̂68_�̀#>>-&'_�67$�ab6"-�c6'6?%$;-'.�@FQBCBBB�����	�	�	����	�����������\V��������	�������	��	�����������������������������	�������
���
����	��	����C����D	��������������������D�����	��������������TH������	��L�H������
�	��
������	�����������������	�����C�������������������������������	���������
�����������������������������L�H������
�	���		�����������	����
��	�������������	�C�������������������������������	�TH������	�L�H����������C��������
�	�������������������������������������������������	�������	�
�	��	�
������	������������	�	�����	���	����������	��D���������������������	�	��L� H���	��	�	�����	���	��������	��������������	��� d����	��������������������	�������
������������������������������	������� ������	�������������������������������	�������	�
�	��	�
������� ���������	�D����dL�L��	��
�� ����	���������������	����	�������������������	��!"#$%&'()*&'+,+'+-(./021231000�3�c6'6�*76>e'+&(�67$�f-(-6"&b�g#"�5"67(8#"'6'+#7�!"#h-&'(�67$�!"#;"6:(?%$;-'.�@FKFCBBB



����������	
�����
��	�
���������	�
���������������������������������������������
����������������������������������
����
�������

����
������
	�����	��	����������	�
���������
��������������������
���	�
����������	�
�����
����������
	
��������������� �����!���
������������
�"�� #�$�������
������������
�������
������
������������
�����
����
�����������������	
�����
�"���
���	���"������
	���"���������
���
������
������������������������������������	�����
��������������
�������������������������
������������% ��
�����������������������������������
������	
�����
��	�
����% ���	��������������������
��	
	�����
�������	�
�������������
������������&�
�����������% ������
��������������
�����������
����
�"����������
������
��"�������		
���������
�&�'���% (	��������������	
�����
�������#�	
���$���% #��	
����
������
��������������)*+,-./012./343/350678999:;888�:�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�@A0/5B0�2>=CA030�<5.D>3E-50�=>,�2??C3.=/3+>0F-,G5/6�HIJK"KKKL���������	
�������	
�����
������"�����������������������"��	��������������������������
���������	
�����
��
����������
���������
�������������	����������$
������
��������������
�����M$��N�	�
���������������O$�	��������	�
����"�����������
���
������
������
�"�P����
�������Q�������M�
�����������N���������"��������������	
�����
��������������������
��
����"�����������
��"�����$�RS������������
�����������	���
�����
���������
�����
������
���������������������������������������% (	&�
&������������������
���% (	&�
&����������������
�����������
	���������������������
��
����% (	&�
&�����$�������PQ����������	�
�������"�����������
������% T���������
��
�����������
�������������
�	�
	
����$�RS�	�
�����% (	&�
&�����U����(����
����	�
������% �
�������������������
� T ���������������������������������������������
	���)*+,-./012./343/3506
7V8V9:;888�:�W+>G:X=>G5�Y-C/3B+,=C�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�)C=>>3>GF-,G5/6�HZOK"KKK����U
��&#����������	
�����
����������������
�������������
�������� "������������

�������������������	
�����
������&���������������������������������������
��
�&�	��
������
	������[K[Z&[KIK�����
	
�����������	
�����
���������������	���
������
���
����������������������������������������������������
��
��

������������������������
�������������
�������	
�����
��������������	�������	������������������������������������������
��% [K[Z&[KIK�����\
��
�&�	% $
	������
��&�������������������% $

�������
������� T ��	������������������% ���������������	
�����
����������	�������% \�����
����$����"�]���
����̂������������"�������
�
����������������)*+,-./012./343/35067V8_9:8̀88�:�<*=>0?+*/=/3+>�)-aC3.�b>4+C45B5>/F-,G5/6�HJcK"KKK



���������	
�	���������
�����������	�����
��
�����
����������
���
�������������
���������������	�������������������������	
�	�������
������
�������
���
���
�����������������������������	�����������
�����������������������������
���������
��������������
����
������
���� ������	
�	�����
���
�!���
����������
��"��
�����
���������������������������"������������
���
�������������
������#��
�
�����������
���
��������������
���
������
	�������
���������	��������
���
��������$��%��&���
��'()*��$��%��&���
��'(*+������
���������
���
�!�����������������������������������
�����������
���������	�����
�����,
�����"���	��
�"�,
������������
	������������
�������
���
��������������	�������
������!����
������	��������������
�����������������
����������������
����������������
�������������	
�	���������
����������	�����- ������
���
�����������	
�	�������
����- ���������	
�	��������	������
�����#��
�
�����������
���
������- ���������	
�	��������	������
�����������
���
������
	�������
����- ���������	
�	��������	������
��������	��������
���
������- ���������	
�	������
��#���������
���������
���
�����	����./012345673489848:5;<=>?@A=>>>�A�B:C80DEF�G4/E4:C83�HD848E489:5I21C:4;�JK('�***������
���
�������������������������������
�����������L����"�������"����	��
������������������"������L����"�
��������������
� �����������
��������#MN�,�������������������
��������"�����������"����������
��������������������������������������	��
������������

����������
���������
���������������������������	���������
�����
�������������������������
� ������������������
����������
����
�����������������
�������������
�������&�����������	���������"�����������������
��- ������O*'*�N��
�����P����������M������- ����������
��Q
�����- N���
������������������- ,������M��
�R������"��S���
�������������������������
�- N�	���,
����
��T�	��
�������������./012345673489848:5;<U@=@A=>>>�A�.FEDD8DC�V00/18DE480D�ED1�G2WW0/4I21C:4;�JO)'�***,

������
��
�������
���
��������������
�����
������������X��������
�����������������������
��������������
�����
�������"������������
���
�����
� ����������	�"�������������
����
����������������������
���#MN�,�����
����������
�����
����
���
���������������������
���������
���
���
� ��
��������
������#MN�,���������
���
	���������
��
�����	�������
���������������������������
����������	�����
��
����������������������
���
��������������
	�����������
����
������	����������	�������
���
��- ���
����
����#������- N���
����,
����
���
��R�
���#������- #������������
�- ,�
��!X��������
����������������������- ���	��������
���
��������
������M������./012345673489848:5;<U@UYA=>>>�A�Z:[\:/�755854ED3:�ED1�G2WW0/4�]VE//̂09:/�_/0[�G̀ a�U>UY�.b.cI21C:4;�JO**�*** ���	�"��������	�
���"����
��d����e�������������
�����������������
��&$f�O*OK�



��������	�
�
�
�������������
��
��
����������������������������������
������
�����������
���������������
�������������
��
��
������
���
����
��������������������
���
�� �!"�"#�$�%&������
����������
�������
��� ��������
��� ��������������������������
��
���
��
���������
����������
�#������#�����
����
�������	
����������
�������
��������
�
���
�����#�'�������
�#�����
�
����
����������������
�������
��
�
�����������������������
����
������������������������������������
���
���������
�
�
�������������������	�
�
�
��(!���)�"""�������������
�����
��
��
�������������������������$�%&�������������� ��
�����
����
��������
�����	
������
��������
�
�������������
�� �
������������������
�

�
��� ������
��
���* $
��
��&�����+
����
�* ,���������
��������	��* +��� ��
����-./0123456237873794:;<=<=>?@@@�>�A9BC9.�644743DE29�DE0�F1GG/.3H10I93:�JK!�#"""��������	�
�
�
�������������
��
��
����������������������������������
������
�����������
���������������
�������������
��
��
������
���
����
��������������������
���
�� �!"�"#�$�%&������
����������
�������
��� ��������
��� ��������������������������
��
���
��
���������
����������
�#������#�����
����
�������	
����������
�������
��������
�
���
�����#�'�������
�#�����
�
����
����������������
�������
��
�
�����������������������
����
������������������������������������
���
���������
�
�
�������������������	�
�
�
��(!���)�"""�������������
�����
��
��
�������������������������$�%&�������������� ��
�����
����
��������
�����	
������
��������
�
�������������
�� �
������������������
�

�
��� ������
��
���* $
��
��&�����+
����
�* ,���������
��������	��* +��� ��
����-./0123456237873794:;LM?=>N@@@�>�-./I.DB�60B7E743.D37/EH10I93:�J��O#K����������	�
�
�
�����������������
���
�
�����
��������������������
�������������������������������������	�
�
�
��������
�������
��������������� ����
����������������
��������������,��#�P�+��Q&�#������Q&�#�RST�#�R��#����U���� ����
�����	�����
�����
������
�&�����T��	�&���������
�
��������������
����
�������
��� ������������
������
���������	�
�
�
������
�
���������
����
�����
���
����* ���#����#��&����
��������

�����������
�* �����&�����T��	�&���������������
����%
����* ����
�VW�X�,YQ�&���
��* $�������
�����������������������

�
��* $�������
�
�����������
��������
Z���
�
��-./0123456237873794:



���������	
�������������������������������������	�� 	!���"����#���$�%�
��#����&
	����'�(����)*�'��+�,-.///.///,01/.///�234567678 9:;6<6;=�>5?�@23<6AB?C=�5B;DA26E3FG�HBF83;�3?;645;3F�;A�234567�5;�;D3�37F�AI�JKL�M/MNGHBF83;�O235PFA>7�6?�5@@2AQ645;3C=�,0R1.///�IA2�:A7?BC;57;�?32<6:3?�57F�STUVWXXX�YZ�[\]ZZ�[̂_̀ab̂[c��dY_e�\Y�f̂�[g_̂]h�Yi\�Ỳ _̂�[\]\̂�Za[b]j�k̂]_[�M/MN�57F�M/M1GlD6?�>A2P�3C3437;�IA:B?3?�A7�:A7FB:;678�2386A75C�:AA2F675;6A7�AI�CA78m25783�;257?@A2;5;6A7�@C577678�>D6:D�67:CBF3?�:A7?6F325;6A7�AI�5::3??.�67I25?;2B:;B23.�C57F�B?3.�57F�DAB?678G�lD3�AB;:A43?�523�67;37F3F�;A�5FF23??�43F6B4�;324�733F?.�CA78m;324�67<3?;437;�@C577678�57F�:A4@23D37?6<3C=�5C687�<526AB?�CA:5C�57F�2386A75C�3IIA2;?�AI�;D3�n37;25C�oD6A�p386A7�IA2�;D3�q7;3C�67<3?;437;�57F�?BO?3rB37;�82A>;DGsoptn�>6CC�:AA2F675;3�>6;D�;D3�J;5;3�AI�oD6A.�un9lJ.�57F�A;D32�2386A75C�?;5P3DACF32?�v67:CBF678�OB;�7A;�C646;3F�;A�KAB7F5;6A7?.�lqw?.�nAB7;63?.�sB76:6@5C6;63?�57F�lA>7?D6@?x�;A�5FF23??�;D3�733F?�AI�;D3�2386A7�57F�@23@523�IA2�82A>;D�F3457F?�5??A:65;3F�>6;D�;D3�q7;3C�67<3?;437;G�lD3�:AA2F675;6A7�5@@2A5:D�>6CC�O3�;257?3:;m�O5?3F�>6;D�5�IA:5C�@A67;�O3678�;D3�J6C6:A7�y352;C57F�J6;3�67�z3>�9CO57=G�lD3�@26452=�IA:B?�>6CC�?;52;�>6;D�83A825@D63?�;D5;�523�>6;D67�;D3�N/m467B;3?�;25<3C�AI�;D3�?6;3G{ 9837:=�nAA2F675;6A7�tC57{ |7D57:3F�F5;5�57F�;25<3C�F3457F�4AF3C�:A<32583{ }@F5;3F�CA:5C�@C577678�FA:B437;?{ KB7F678�o@@A2;B76;63?{ u6?;�AI�q4@2A<3437;�nA7:3@;?&������~����%�����+���������������'���	
�����
�#���	
�&
	����'*�'��+�,N//./// -//��JlH��B?678�;ACC�:23F6;lD6?�>A2P�3C3437;�?B@@C3437;?�;D3�IA24BC5mIB7F3F�@2A8254�57F�67:CBF3?�23?352:D�57F�@C577678�3IIA2;?�;D5;�523�23rB623F�;A�IBCI6CC�sto�@C577678�57F�@2A�3:;�64@C3437;5;6A7�23?@A7?6O6C6;63?G�lD3�5:;6<6;=�67:CBF3?�3C3437;?�;D5;�?B@@C3437;�@2A�3:;�F3C6<32=.�F5;5�:ACC3:;6A7�57F�F5;5�457583437;.�@5??37832�256C�@C577678.�CA78m25783�?;BF63?�57F�?B?;5675O6C6;=G�J@3:6I6:�5:;6<6;63?�;D6?�=352�523�C6?;3F�O3CA>G{ p38BC52�23@A2;?�;A�434O32?�57F�soptn�:A446;;33?�A7�@2A�3:;�F3C6<32={ l25II6:�:AB7;?�IA2�5@@2AQ645;3C=�M//�CA:5;6A7?.�67:CBF678�O6P3�57F�@3F3?;2657�:AB7;?�5?�6F37;6I63F�67�5:;6<3�;257?@A2;5;6A7�:AB7;�@C57{ q4@C3437;�@2A�3:;?�;A�5FF23??�;D3�8A5C?.�AO�3:;6<3?.�57F�5:;6A7�6;34?�F3;56C3F�67�;D3�p386A75C�w5;5�9837F5G{ t2A<6F3�?@3:65C�?32<6:3?�57F�:A7FB:;�?@3:65C�;257?@A2;5;6A7�?;BF63?{ JB@@A2;�IA2�@5??37832�256C�@C577678{ p3?6C637:=�tC577678{ nAA2F675;6A7�>6;D�A;D32�2386A75C�5:;6<6;63?.�?B:D�5?�;D3�p386A75C�JB?;5675O6C6;=�9837F5�;A�IB2;D32�;D3�M/MNmM/1/�slt�8A5C?
&������~����%�����+
��������������������	
�������	����&��'�	#*�'��+�,MR1./// -//��JlH��B?678�;ACC�:23F6;

���	
�*�'��+�����"
�#���� ����������	��������������������������������	
	��������������������
	������������������



���������	���
����	��������������	��������������������������������		�	���������	����������������������������	�����������

���	������������������	��������	�������
�����������������������	�����������������
���	����
���������������������������������������������	�����������������������	����������������	������	����������	�
���������������	������������������
����	��������������	����������������������
������	������	���������	�������������	���������������������	�� ��������������! ���������"		�	�����#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01123456777�5�89:/�8)$//)*�;%$�,<<�,()-%=�#<9=�9=&�>/?%=*)$9)-%=�,()-.-)-/*@'&A/)0�BC�DEF�FFF "���������	������������������������������GH�DFDI�J��DFDK���LM�N������������O�PL�Q	���
��������	�����M���	�
���"���R��S"T���	�������������������������
���	�
�������������
���	��J��P��������DFDK���LM�N��������������
���������
��������������	��
���	���������	�����������������N�������L��������	������������
���������������������	������������������������������	�����������		����������������	�
��������DFCE������! ��
���������O�����! U��V������W���X������P�����������! N��������������	���
����"������������! ����	��������
����P����	���������������	#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01Y4Z456777�5�26Z7�>/*-A=9)/&�[/(-\-/=)�]̂7̂4_@'&A/)0�BC̀E�FaEBCKE�FaE���������� "���������	��������	����������W����b�������	������������������������������
��GH�DFDS����	��������������	��������������������	���	����������������������
�������������	���������
�����G�"���������IKCF���������
���c������������������
�������	�����J���������	�����P�	��������	�
��������
�������
�	�����������������������
�������N������	�������W�������������������������
�����G�"������������������������������������	����������
��������	�����������
���G�"�
��������	����������	��������G�"�����������������������������	�	������������
��
�������������������	�! "�������������������������R���T��������������G�"������	���	! N����������������G�"���d��������	! ���������
��������	! O�����������������������N���������������#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*01Y4Z256777�5�26Z7�>/*-A=9)/&�[/(-\-/=)�̂7̂2@'&A/)0�BCaK�DIF���	��������������	��������������������	���	����������������������
�������������	���������
�����G�"���������IKCF���������
���c������������������
�������	�����J���������	�����P�	��������	�
��������
�������
�	�����������������������
�������N������	�������W�������������������������
�����G�"������������������������������������	����������
��������	�����������
���G�"�
��������	����������	��������G�"�����������������������������	�	������������
��
�������������������	�! "�������������������������R���T��������������G�"������	���	! N����������������G�"���d��������	! ���������
��������	! O�����������������������N���������������#$%&'()*+,()-.-)-/*0



�������������	
������	���������������������������������� ������!"#$%&%&' ()*%+%*,�-$.�/!"+%01.2,�$1*30!%4"56�715'"*�".*%#$*"5�*0�!"#$%&�$*�*3"�"&5�08�9:;�<�< 6=3%.�-0!>�"2"#"&*�-%22�.1//0!*�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�)00!5%&$*%&'�/!0'!$#.�$#0&'�/1?2%)��/!%+$*"�$&5�31#$&�."!+%)"�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�/!0+%5"!.�*3$*�."!+"�025"!�$512*.��/"0/2"�-%*3�5%.$?%2%*%".�$&5�%&5%+%51$2.�-%*3�20-"!�%&)0#".�$.�-"22�$.�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�$)*%+%*%".�%&�:!$&>2%&�@01&*,6�A0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�-%22�80)1.�0&�%&)!"$.%&'�$))"..�*0�."!+%)"�?,�%&)!"$.%&'�$-$!"&"..��)00!5%&$*%&'�."!+%)".�$&5�$55!"..%&'�?$!!%"!.�*0�BCDEFGF�B�HIJF�FKKECEFLM�MJBLNOIJMBMEIL�NPNMFHQ��RSTUV�HBELMBELN�MDF�WICBWWP�XFGFWIOFX�VIIJXELBMFX�UWBL�80!�*3"�AYZ�$&5�$5#%&%.*"!.�*3"�:=([.�9")*%0&��\���81&5%&'�80!�*3"�@021#?1.�1!?$&%4"5�$!"$6�AZ]Y@�%.�MDF�DINM�KIJ�MDF�̂JBL_WEL�VÌLMP�RIaEWEMP�RBLBbFJQ�c d&'$'"#"&*c e&)!"$."�)$/$)%*,c e&80!#$*%0&�)00!5%&$*%0&c 9*$*"�$&5�20)$2�)00!5%&$*%0&c (-$!"&"..�$&5�$))"..%?%2%*,fg
��h�ijkh��l����i��������������	
������	����������mnmo�p���
���q�rr����������������������\��������<������!"#$%&%&' ()*%+%*,�-$.�/!"+%01.2,�$1*30!%4"56�715'"*�".*%#$*"5�*0�!"#$%&�$*�*3"�"&5�08�9:;�<�< 6=3%.�-0!>�"2"#"&*�-%22�.1//0!*�#0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�)00!5%&$*%&'�/!0'!$#.�$#0&'�/1?2%)��/!%+$*"�$&5�31#$&�."!+%)"�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�/!0+%5"!.�*3$*�."!+"�025"!�$512*.��/"0/2"�-%*3�5%.$?%2%*%".�$&5�%&5%+%51$2.�-%*3�20-"!�%&)0#".6�A0?%2%*,�#$&$'"#"&*�-%22�80)1.�0&�%&)!"$.%&'�$))"..�*0�."!+%)"�?,�%&)!"$.%&'�$-$!"&"..��)00!5%&$*%&'�."!+%)".�$&5�$55!"..%&'�?$!!%"!.�*0�$)3%"+"�$�#0!"�"88%)%"&*�*!$&./0!*$*%0&�.,.*"#6�AZ]Y@�#$%&*$%&.�*3"�20)$22,�5"+"20/"5�@00!5%&$*"5�Y2$&�s]"'%0&$2�A0?%2%*,�Y2$&t�80!�*3"�AYZ�$&5�$5#%&%.*"!.�*3"�:=([.�9")*%0&��\���81&5%&'�80!�*3"�@021#?1.�1!?$&%4"5�$!"$6�=3%.�"2"#"&*�./")%8%)$22,�!"8"!.�*0�*3"�!"'%0&$2�-0!>�08�*3"�]"'%0&$2�A0?%2%*,�Y2$&6c d&'$'"#"&*c e&)!"$."�)$/$)%*,c e&80!#$*%0&�)00!5%&$*%0&c 9*$*"�$&5�20)$2�)00!5%&$*%0&c (-$!"&"..�$&5�$))"..%?%2%*,c =!$%&%&'�$&5�Y!08"..%0&$2�u"+"20/#"&*fg
��h�ijkh��l����i�



����������	
����
���������
�����������������������������
��� ��
�� ��!��"�#���$�����	
���%&����'�()*+,+++ -++.�/0123�3/45267879:�;6<=:>�?:8<@A�1:ABC9D7@�E;?/F�D@�3:@96<>�0GD7�<@A�8<6H:9�I67J6<8K�<@A�K:6=DC:�D@�<�-*LC7B@9M�<6:<N�267J6<8�K:6=DC:K�D@C>BA:�C<6I77>�8<9CGD@J,�=<@I77>�O768<9D7@,�96<@KD9,�PDH:�<@A�I:A:K96D<@�KBII769�<@A�K96<9:JD:K�O76�:8I>7M:6K�<@A�9G:�J:@:6<>�IBP>DCN�/0123�<A8D@DK9:6K�<@�:8:6J:@CM�6DA:�G78:�I67J6<8,�=<@I77>�I67J6<8,�<@A�<�K9<9:QDA:�6DA:KG<6:�8<9CGD@J�=:@A76�C7@96<C9�D@�C776AD@<9D7@�QD9G�0413�6DA:KG<6:�<J:@CD:KNR� ��#��S�#��"�����'T 267879:�<�CB>9B6:�7O�KBK9<D@<P>:�<@A�K8<69�8B>9D87A<>�96<=:>�9G67BJG7B9�3:@96<>�0GD7N�2BP>DC�:ABC<9D7@�<@A�6DA:�8<9CGD@J�K:6=DC:KNT 1<DK:�IBP>DC�<Q<6:@:KK�<P7B9�87PD>D9M�7I9D7@K�D@�9G:�6:JD7@N�U@C6:<K:�6DA:KG<6D@J�<@A�;?/�<CC:I9<@C:�97�D8I67=:�<D6�VB<>D9MNT W<9D7@<>�;6<@KD9�?<9<P<K:�1:I769D@JT 267J6<8�:=<>B<9D7@,�K96<9:JDC�I><@�<@A�9:>:Q76H�I7>DCMT 267879:�;?/�K:6=DC:K�97�6:ABC:�X0Y�96<=:>�<@A�<KK7CD<9:A�<D6�I7>>B9D7@�D@�C788B@D9D:K�@:<6�GDJGL=7>B8:�C766DA76K�<K�Q:>>�<K�D@�AD=:6K:�<@A�B@A:6K:6=:A�I7IB><9D7@K�������������������
������Z
������&����'�(*)*,+++ /0123�3/45�E-++.�BKD@J�97>>�C6:AD9F;GDK�Q76H�:>:8:@9�:@KB6:K�9G<9�/0123�C7@9D@B:K�<D6�I7>>B9D7@�O76:C<K9D@J�<@A�:ABC<9D@J�D9K�8:8P:6K�<@A�9G:�IBP>DC�7@�9G:�D8I769<@C:�7O�<D6�VB<>D9M,�D9K�G:<>9G�<@A�:@=D67@8:@9<>�D8I<C9K,�<@A�G7Q�97�6:ABC:�<D6�I7>>B9D7@N�[B69G:6876:,�/0123�I67=DA:K�9:CG@DC<>�<@A�I><@@D@J�<KKDK9<@C:�97�9G:�6:JD7@�7@�K96<9:JD:K�97�6:ABC:�OB:>�BK:�<@A�6:ABC:�:8DKKD7@K�<@A�:@:6JM�BK:NR� ��#��S�#��"�����'T 4D6�5B<>D9M�4>:69K�<@A�3776AD@<9D7@T 4D6�5B<>D9M�1:K:<6CGT \ABC<9D7@�<@A�0B96:<CGT 37@ABC9�KI:CD<>�K9BAD:K�<@A�I67]:C9K�6:><9:A�97�̂_̂ �:8DKKD7@KT 2><@@D@J�<@A�I7>DCM�<KKDK9<@C:

� �
��&����'` �a�b��c����



���������	�
���	�		�����������������������		�����������������
�	�
� ����������	�
!"#$%�&'$()*$+�&,+-�.(/$%"&0$�"%&(+1-%"&"*-(�1,&((*('�&)"*2*"*$+3�4#*+�&)"*2*"5�*(),./$+�*/$("*65*('�,-)&,�1,&((*('�$66-%"+�&(/�)--%/*(&"*('�7*"#�"#$8�"#%-.'#�-"#$%�1%-9$)"+3�:-�;./'$"3< =("$'%&"$�,-)&,�1,&((*('�$66-%"+�*("-�>!?@AB+�%$'*-(&,�"%&(+1-%"&"*-(�1,&((*('�1%-)$++$+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]�̀a�b����������
�	�
�c�d����	�		��4#*+�7-%0�$,$8$("�*+�6-%�)--%/*(&"*-(�7*"#�A!4e�"-�$(+.%$�&/#$%$()$�"-�6$/$%&,�&(/�+"&"$�%$f.*%$8$("+�&(/�6-%�"#$�6&)*,*"&"*-(�-6�$66$)"*2$�"%&(+*"�+$%2*)$+�*(�"#$�A!4e�+$%2*)$�&%$&g�8&*(,5�*(�h%&(0,*(�A-.("5�&(/�*(�1-%"*-(+�-6�&/9&)$("�)-.("*$+3�:-�;./'$"3< A!4eB+�1,&((*('�1%-)$++< A-("*(.$/�%$6*($8$("�-6�A!4eB+�i-('j?&('$�@,&(�&(/�-"#$%�1,&((*('�&)"*2*"*$+< k#-%"j?&('$�4%&(+*"�@,&(�lk?4@m�.1/&"$< k$%2*)$�)#&('$�1,&((*('< A!4e�+&6$"5�&(/�&++$"�8&(&'$8$("�1,&(+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]
�̀a�n����������
�	�
�ocd���	�		��4#*+�7-%0�$,$8$("�*+�6-%�)--%/*(&"*-(�7*"#�pA4�"-�$(+.%$�&/#$%$()$�"-�6$/$%&,�&(/�+"&"$�%$f.*%$8$("+�&(/�6-%�"#$�6&)*,*"&"*-(�-6�$66$)"*2$�"%&(+*"�+$%2*)$+�*(�p$,&7&%$�A-.("53�:-�;./'$"3< pA4B+�1,&((*('�1%-)$++�&(/�%$f.*%$8$("+�($$/$/�"-�%$)$*2$�6$/$%&,�.%;&(�&%$&�&(/�+"&"$�6.(/+< =81,$8$("�%$)-88$(/&"*-(+�6%-8�pA4B+�k"%&"$'*)�@,&(< pA4�+&6$"5�&(/�&++$"�8&(&'$8$("�1,&(+����C��D��	�		��EFGHI�JKLHMHLN�HI�OPQMHRSR�QTUN�VQP�HTVQPWJLHQTJU�OXPOQISI�JTR�GJI�TQ�VHTJU�OPQRXKL�QP�JTN�YXRZSL�[HLGHT�LGS�[QP\�OPQZPJW]�̂Q[SMSP_�ILJVV�WJN�YS�HTMQUMSR�LGPQXZG�LGS�PSUJLSR�JKLHMHLHSI�HT�OUJTTHTZ�JKLHMHLHSI�XTRSPLJ\ST�YN�QLGSPI]

d�����C�
�E�q�r�������s���



����������	
��������������
�� � ��

�������������������� �!�"��#����!��$�"��#�%�%$%�&'�� �()�*�+,�-.����*�+�-�'/(01��2345��6233734�'/(01-02345�86233734�950:7;59�/568�<5<=509�<2>5�80(40599�(3�1/5�(=?5;17:59�5912=679/5@�73�1/5�������&02398(01217(3��623�A�&�B)�&/5�  C��53;(D02459�20529�1(�=5�733(:217:5�73�1/5�E2F�1/5F�<23245�23@�(850215�1/5�9F915<�1(�539D05�85(865�23@�4((@9�<(:5�5GG7;75316FH�92G56FH�23@�73�1/5�<(91�95;D05�E2F�8(997=65)�������E766�9D88(01�1/5�<23245<531�23@�(850217(3�(G�1/5�102398(01217(3�9F915<�=F�058(01734�(3�719�;(3@717(39�23@�7@5317GF734�059(D0;59�1(�<551�5912=679/5@�850G(0<23;5�<529D059)�&/5�  C��;(3173D5@�2�;(05�I74/E2F�'2G51F� <80(:5<531��0(402<�AI' �B�1/21�79�910D;1D05@�23@�GD3@5@�1(�<2>5�97437G7;231�80(40599�73�05@D;734�/74/E2F�G212671759)�&/79�62E�05JD7059�91215�K58201<5319�(G�&02398(01217(3�AK�&9B�1(�7<865<531�2�'1215�I74/E2F�'2G51F��623�A'I'�B�23@�1(�LMMNOPP�PLQORS�TPPUOP�TV�RWOTN�NOXTYVPZ�[\]̂ \_P�PLQORS�̀aLVVTVX�bYNc�bTaa�WOà�RWO�PRLRO�dOOR�RWTP�05JD705<531)����;17:5�102398(01217(3�86233734�539D059�1/21�3(3-<(1(07e5@�102398(01217(3�G2;7671759�205�;(3910D;15@�29�8201�(G�2�<D617-<(@26�102398(01217(3�9F915<�23@�1/21�850G(0<23;5�<529D059�205�73�862;5�1(�4D7@5�53473550734H�5@D;217(3H�23@�53G(0;5<531�802;17;59�1/21�53/23;5�1/570�D9245�23@�1/5�92G51F�(G�3(3-�<(1(07919)�� �0(@D;1f�$51/(@� �453;759� ';/5@D65��(3@717(3�058(01�(G�/74/E2F�9F915<�23@�GD3@734f��99599�;D00531�;(3@717(3�(G�/74/E2F�9F915<�=F�;(665;1734�82:5<531�;(3@717(3�9D<<20759�G0(<��K�&�23@�6(;26�2453;759)��99791�<5<=509�73� @5317GF734�059(D0;59�355@5@�1(�=0734�71�1(�23�2;;5812=65�9123@20@�23@�73�2886F734�G(0�GD3@734)��((0@73215�5GG(01�E71/�1/5��K�&��9951�$23245<531�'F915<� ghijhklmnop�qmrstuvsuwx� yx�usszsz�{mt�|}j�ouz�g|j�'2G51F�86233734�23@�92G51F�GD3@734�28867;217(39f�%3;(D0245�<5<=509�1(�2@@0599�92G51F�;(3;5039�1/0(D4/�53473550734�23@�53G(0;5<531�<529D059)��99791�1/5<�E71/�1/570�28867;217(39�G(0�92G51F�GD3@734)��(3@D;1�985;726�91D@759�23@�80(?5;19�056215@�1(�102398(01217(3�92G51F�9D;/�29�7315095;17(3�<(@7G7;217(39�29�05JD5915@�=F�<5<=509�(0��K�&)� ghijhkh~h|klmnop�qmrstuvsuwxkhw�stx� hu�m�u���;17:5�102398(01217(3�86233734f��99791�6(;26�2453;759�23@�53171759�73�86233734�G(0�23@�7<865<531734�2;17:5�102398(01217(3�73G02910D;1D05�1/21�73;6D@59�=(1/�=7>5�23@�85@5910723�G2;7671759)��99791�<5<=509�E71/�10276�86233734�@5:56(8<531�23@�;(<86515�9105519)� ghijhkh~h|klmnop�qmrstuvsuwx� hu�m�u��&023971��6233734f��((0@73215�E71/�=(1/�8D=67;�23@�807:215�1023971�23@�<(=7671F�80(:7@509�(3�8D=67;�1023971�23@�/D<23�950:7;59�86233734)��99791�<5<=509�E71/�056215@�40231�28867;217(39�A�.+�H��.��H��&��H�51;)BH�86233734�@(;D<5319H�23@�<551734�86233734)� ghijh�k��hijgk�lmnop��mrstuvsuwx�ouz�|toux�w�y�sun�sx� hu�m�u��� �D@451f�&(126�"(0>�%65<531�� K�f�++�.��� �� ���H���� �.�H�����I"�H���H�����K�&H���H����$�����



����������	
��������������
�� � ��

������������������������ !"��#�#$� �%&"��'(&( #�)��*��&���� !"��#�#$� �%&"��'(&( #�)��*��&�+�%),�� -�%&".(&( #�#$� ��/$!�(.(&( #�$!�#��"�("��(�� -�0� #$ 1(�#��&�$ #�$ �� �1"-�#(-���� !"��#�#$� �%&"��'(&( #�)��*��&�+�%),�#/��1*/�#/$!�(.(&( #��234)3�5$..�$-( #$67�6(-(��.8�!#�#(8�� -��#/(���(!�1�0(!�#��&�9(�.�0�.�$&"��'(&( #!�� -�0���-$ �#(�#/(&�5$#/�#��-$#$� �.�6(-(��.��(!�1�0(!���/$!�(.(&( #��.!��$ '�.'(!�#/(�&� $#��$ *�� -�0���-$ �#$� ��6�"��*�(!!�6���"��:(0#!�$ �#/(��%)8�$ 0.1-$ *�#/(�"��:(0#!��5��-(-�61 -!�#/��1*/�234)3;<�=(-$0�#(-�>1 -!�)��*��&��?!� ((-(-��&( -&( #!�#��#/(��%)���(�0�&".(#(-��)(�$�-$0��("��#!�0� 0(� $ *�#/(�!#�#1!��6�6(-(��.�61 -!���(�&�-(�#��#/(�234)3�0�&&$##((!��234)3��.!��"��#$0$"�#(!�$ �"1@.$0�$ '�.'(&( #��""��#1 $#$(!�0� -10#(-��!�"��#��6�#/(�-('(.�"&( #��6��(*$� �..7�!$* $6$0� #�#�� !"��#�#$� �$&"��'(&( #!�$ 0.1-$ *�#�� !$#�"��:(0#!���� )��-10#A�B(#/�-� ?*( 0$(!� C0/(-1.(���� !"��#�#$� �%&"��'(&( #�)��*��&A�2���-$ �#(�5$#/�3=3��=$!#�$0#!���� -��8�B34)28�#�� !$#�"��'$-(�!�� -�.�0�.��*( 0$(!�� �"��:(0#�$ 6��&�#$� �6���#/(������������%)��2���-$ �#(�5$#/�3=3��2( #��.�366$0(�� ��%)�1"-�#(!�� -��&( -&( #�!0/(-1.(!��B� $#���DEFGHIJ<�KLKEMHM�NOPM<�JQEFORQ�STUVT;<�WHMXIKJHM�YOPM<�"��*��&�� Z[\][� [̂ _̀â_��2�..�@���#$� �� �"��:(0#�-(.$'(�7�� -�6$ � 0$ *��"#$� !�6���"��:(0#!A�?!� ((-(-8�5��9�5$#/�.�0�.�:1�$!-$0#$� !�#��$-( #$67�"��:(0#�61 -$ *�&(0/� $!&!�� -�0���-$ �#(�#/(&�5$#/�#/(�1!(��6�6(-(��.8�!#�#(�� -��#/(��.�0�..7��'�$.�@.(��(!�1�0(!8�$ 0.1-$ *�0���-$ �#$� �5$#/�TVbS;<�cSdV�ef�%)�61 -(-�"��:(0#!��?!!$!#�5$#/�!"(0$�.�61 -$ *��""��#1 $#$(!�!10/��!�234)3�=(-$0�#(-�>1 -!8���� !$#��(.�#(-�61 -$ *8�� -�=$!0�(#$� ��7�61 -$ *��""��#1 $#$(!��g��9�5$#/�"1@.$0�� -�"�$'�#(�"��# (�!�#��@�$ *�"��:(0#!�#/�#���(�(h#�(&(.7�#$&(�!( !$#$'(�� .$ (��!�i1$09.7��!�"�!!$@.(�� Z[\][�j�k̀lmn�o_p̂lapq� [̂ _̀â_�� r1-*(#A���#�.�g��9�s.(&( #�)%=tA�uuv�w�� �� xw�8���� x��8����>yg?8�xw8����3=3�8�xw8����B34)2�



����������	
��������������
�� � ��

������������������������ !�"!�#�$%&��!�#���'"()*!%%&�+*�,& &�&�-�.�&%/0!0�1&�/� (&�02�( & !���2(�#(&30�&�-�2(�4*+ 0�(*5"!(*�67'�&�-�-& &8&0*�&�&%/ !+&%�3* 9�-0��:9!0�*%*3*� �!�+%"-*0�"0!�#�!�;�(3& !���&�-� ��%0� ��&�&%/<*�-& &�&�-�-*)*%�2�&�-�2(*2&(*�;!�&%�2(�-"+ 0�&00�+!& *-�=! 9� 9*�)&(!�"0�2(�4*+ 0�&�-�2(�#(&30��;� 9*�>*#!��&%�:(&�02�( & !���$%&��!�#�?(#&�!<& !����7��&--! !��@��?>$?�!� *�-0� ��;"�+ !���&0�&�(*0�"(+*�;�(�(*5"*0 0�;�(�!�;�(3& !���(*#&(-!�#� (&�02�( & !��@�-*3�#(&29!+@�-*)*%�23*� @�&�-�)&(!�"0�� 9*(�+�33"�! /��**-0��� $(�-"+ A�1* 9�-� .#*�+!*0� '+9*-"%*�$(�)!-*�67'�&�-� *+9�!+&%�&00!0 &�+*� ��3*38*(0A����(-!�& *�=! 9� 9*�3�-*%!�#� *&3� ��8*�(*02��0!)*� ���*=�-& &��**-0�&00�+!& *-�=! 9� 9*� (&)*%�-*3&�-�3�-*%��$(*2&(*�%&�-�"0*�;�(*+&0 0�;�(� (&;;!+�0 "-!*0��$(�)!-*�-*3�#(&29!+�&�-�*+���3!+�-& &�;�(�0 "-!*0�&0��**-*-�� BCDEC� FG�HIIJIJ�:(&�0;�(3�(&=�-& &�!� ��"0*;"%�!�;�(3& !��@�0"##*0 �+��+%"0!��0@�&�-�0"22�( �-*+!0!���3&K!�#A��(*& *�-& &�)!0"&%!<& !��0� ��3&K*�;!�-!�#�&�-�(* (!*)!�#�!�;�(3& !���*&0/�;�(�"0*(0�;�(� (&�02�( & !���2%&��!�#�2"(2�0*0A�$(�-"+*�-& &�-(!)*��(*2�( 0�;�(�&�5"!+K�)!*=��;�;&+ 0�&�-�;!#"(*0�&8�" �+�33"�! !*0�&�-� 9*�(*#!���� BCDECLMCDEB� FG�HIIJIJ�>*02��-� ��&�-�-�+"3*� �(*5"*0 0A�.�0=*(�5"*0 !��0�;(�3�#�)*(�3*� @�(*0!-*� 0@�&+&-*3!&�&�-�8"0!�*00*0�;�(� (&�02�( & !���&�-�-*3�#(&29!+�-& &�� BCDECLMCDEB� FG�HIIJIJ�� N"-#* A�:� &%�O�(K�P%*3*� �$7,QA�RRS�T�� �� U�S@���� U��@SST�VWO.@�U�@S�R�?,?:@�U�@S�R�1?>$��



����������	
��������������
�� � ��

���������������������� !"#$� %!%&�"�'(!"�)�"*�+!"*,�-.(%&/�0!(�� !"#$� %!%&�"�'(!""&"*��1&#�2� 3�,(,/,"%�&#�%1,�4 ,!%&�"�!"0�/!&"%,"!"4,��5�%1,�)�"*�+!"*,�+. !(�� !"#$� %!%&�"�'(!"�!"0� ,(!%,0�!4%&6&%&,#���1,�$(!"�,7!/&",#�%1,� ,*&�"8#�% !"#$� %!%&�"�",,0#�!%�(,!#%�9��:,! #�&"%��%1,�5.%. ,�!"0�$ �$�#,#�!�/.(%&/�0!(�",%2� 3�%��/,,%�%1,� ,*&�"8#�",,0#��;� 3�&"4(.0,#�/!&"%,"!"4,�!4%&6&%&,#�5� �%1,�4.  ,"%�9��<�9�=��(�"*� !"*,� . !(�% !"#$� %!%&�"�$(!"�4�/$(,%,0�&"�9��<>�!"0�!(#��0,6,(�$/,"%�!4%&6&%&,#�5� �%1,�9�9��9����% !"#$� %!%&�"�$(!"���1&#�!4%&6&%:�!(#��&"4(.0,#�4�� 0&"!%&�"�2&%1�(�4!(�*�6, "/,"%#�!"0��%1, �% !"#$� %!%&�"�!*,"4&,#>�$! %&4&$!%&"*�&"�#$,4&!(�(�"*� !"*,�$(!""&"*�,55� %#>�/�"&%� &"*>�!"0� ,$� %&"*��"�5,0, !(�!"0�#%!%,�% !"#$� %!%&�"�(,*&#(!%&�">� ,*.(!%&�"#>�!"0�$�(&4&,#>�!"0�&"%,* !%&"*�% !"#$� %!%&�"�&"%���%1, � ,*&�"!(�$(!""&"*�,55� %#��� ' �0.4%?�-,%1�0� @*,"4&,#� A41,0.(,��1,�9�9��9����)�"*��+!"*,�� !"#$� %!%&�"�'(!"?�-�"&%� �!"0�!/,"0�!#�",,0,0�� BCDEC� FG�HIIJIJ��� %1�'&43!2!:�K�."%:��LM�� !"#$� %!%&�"�'(!"?�$ �6&0,�0!%!>�&"5� /!%&�">�!"0�4�� 0&"!%&�"�2&%1�'&43!2!:�K�."%:��LM�%��!##&#%�2&%1�$(!"�0,6,(�$/,"%��� BCDECNEOPQRSRT�BUVWXT� CPXUYIZ�[\[]�K�� 0&"!%,�2&%1�̂M̂ ��$(!""&"*�!4%&6&%&,#?�K�� 0&"!%,�2&%1�#$,4&!(�#%.0&,#�!"0�$ �_,4%#�%1!%�! ,�&"�%1,�,! (:�#%,$#��5�0,6,(�$/,"%��K�� 0&"!%,�2&%1�̂M̂ ���"�&/$(,/,"%&"*�#% !%,*&,#�&"�A%!%,�� !"#$� %!%&�"�!"0�M,6,(�$/,"%�@"!(:#&#>�+�.%,�9��K�"",4%>�@�=�>�;!(3�̀&3,�̂1&��!"0�� !"#$� %�̂1&��2&%1&"�K̂ +'̂ �� BCDECNaCDEB� FG�HIIJIJ�K�/$(,%,��%1, �(�"*� !"*,�#:#%,/�#%.0&,#?�b#,� ,*&�"!(�0!%!�!"0� ,#�. 4,#�!"0�%,41"&4!(�,7$, %&#,�&"�1&*12!:>�%1� �.*15! ,>�% !"#&%>�$,0,#% &!">�!44,##�/!"!*,/,"%>�5 ,&*1%>�!"0�c&3,2!:�$(!""&"*�%��!"!(:d,�#$,4&5&4�(�"*� !"*,�% !"#$� %!%&�"�",,0#�%��!##&#%�/,/c, #�� BCDECNeUPRf�gUhIZWiIWXG� CWjUOWj�� .̀0*,%?���%!(�;� 3�k(,/,"%�'LMl?���<�m�������
�� n��>���� n��>m99�op;@>�n�>����̂M̂ �>�n�>����-̂ +'K��������������



����������	
��������������
�� � ��

����������������������� !"#$��%&'" (��&��$ ) *%#$�+$#**"*,�-."(�/�01� $ ) *%�"*!$&' (�#''"%"�*#$��$#**"*,�#!%"2"%" (�%.#%�/"$$�(&��$ ) *%�%. �!�0 �3-+4�/�01� $ ) *%(5�#*'�!&00 *%$6�"*!$&' (��* �#!%"2"%6���78�9:99;�<=>?=�@AABCDE�FG�HIJ=KLM�I@ND�IFODDFM�#*'�3�#'(�P�0�Q$$�R"(!0 %"�*#06��0�,0#)�P�0��$#**"*,�P&*'(�%��!�)�$ % �#��#P %6�Q!%"�*�+$#*�P�0�%. �( 2 *�!�&*%6�S43+4��$#**"*,�#0 #��T*�U#*&#06�V�V�5�S43+4�0 ! "2 '�*�%"P"!#%"�*��P�#/#0'��P�%. ( �P&*'(�%��' 2 $���%. ��$#*���+0�'&!%W�X %.�'� Q, *!" (� �!. '&$ �S43+4��#P %6�Q!%"�*�+$#*W��R 2 $���#�(#P %6�#!%"�*��$#*�P�0�%. �( 2 *�!�&*%6�S43+4��$#**"*,�#0 #�"*�#!!�0'#*! �/"%.�%. �P&*'"*,��0�,0#)�,&"' $"* (�#*'�0 Y&"0 ) *%(�� Z[\][� _̂̀abcad�efeg�� h&', %W�-�%#$�i�01�j$ ) *%��� � kV��5���� kV��5����lmiQ5�k��4R4-5�k��5����X43+S�Q(��P�%. � *'��P��ln�V��#��0�o")#% $6�k��5����"(� o� !% '�%��!#006��2 0�"*%���ln�V������


	T-4-24 Adopting MORPC Complete Streets Policy.pdf
	MORPC Complete Streets Policy - May 2024.pdf
	May 2024
	Section 1. Complete Streets Defined
	Section 2. Background and Vision
	Vision Statement

	Section 3. Purpose
	Section 4. Applicability and Review Process
	Complete Streets Review Process

	Section 5. Policy
	Requirements
	Recommendations

	Section 6. Appeal Process
	Section 7. Design
	Design Criteria
	Design Guides
	Additional FHWA Resources:

	Section 8. Implementation and Evaluation
	Key Term Definitions from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
	Key Term Definitions (Continued)






